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Corporate Information

NEEHR

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive Directors
Mr. Kwong Jimmy Cheung Tim
(Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Ms. Lui Yuk Chu
(Deputy Chairman)

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr. Kan Ka Hon

Mr. Lau Sin Ming

Mr. Foo Tak Ching'

Mr. Wu Koon Yin Welly
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Mr. Kan Ka Hon (Chairman)
Mr. Lau Sin Ming

Mr. Foo Tak Ching'

Mr. Wu Koon Yin Welly
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Mr. Lau Sin Ming (Chairman)

Mr. Kan Ka Hon

Mr. Foo Tak Ching’

Mr. Wu Koon Yin Welly

Mr. Kwong Jimmy Cheung Tim
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Mr. Foo Tak Ching' (Chairman)
Mr. Kan Ka Hon

Mr. Lau Sin Ming

Mr. Wu Koon Yin Welly?

Mr. Kwong Jimmy Cheung Tim
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Mr. Kwong Jimmy Cheung Tim (Chairman)
Ms. Lui Yuk Chu

COMPANY SECRETARY
Mr. Lee Po Wing

AUDITOR
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu

1. Mr. Foo has confirmed that he will not offer himself for re-election in the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company and shall accordingly retire from office as of
1 August 2019.

2. Mr. Wu will be the Chairman of the Nomination Committee with effect from 1 August
2019.
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Chairman’s Statement

ERRE

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”), | am
pleased to present the annual results of Eminence Enterprise Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”) for the year
ended 31 March 2019.

For the year ended 31 March 2019, the Group’s profit attributable to
owners of the Company was approximately HK$50,510,000 as compared
to the profit attributable to owners of the Company of approximately
HK$53,539,000 last year (2018). This year’s gross profit margin was
approximately 94.7% compared to approximately 94.2% in 2018 and
consolidated revenue advanced by approximately 25.4%. The basic and
diluted earnings per share for the year ended 31 March 2019 were HK1.70
cents and HK1.67 cents (2018: basic and diluted earnings per share were
HK2.31 cents and HK2.15 cents) respectively.

This year, the Group successfully kicked off several major projects, such as,
the redevelopment of Matheson Building in Causeway Bay, the acquisition
of Easy Tower in Cheung Sha Wan, and the commencement of compulsory
sale of Wing Cheong Factory Building in Cheung Sha Wan. The Group
also successfully disposed Inverness Road Property, a residential building
development in Kowloon Tong, at a satisfactory price which minimized the
risks for the Group given the market volatility expected from the continuing
US and China trade war.

The Group is now in a better position to focus on industrial and non-
residential sectors and will continue to sharpen its competitive edge and
strengthen its income base to create and realize value in a sustainable
manner over the long term for shareholders.

The Board and | would like to express our most sincere gratitude to the

management team, our staff, shareholders and business partners for their
continued support.

Kwong Jimmy Cheung Tim
Chairman

Hong Kong, 17 May 2019
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEENWR D

The board of directors (the “Board”) of Eminence Enterprise Limited (the
“Company”) is pleased to announce the audited annual results of the
Company and its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) for the year ended
31 March 2019 together with comparative figures. These annual results
have been reviewed by the Company’s Audit Committee.

FINAL RESULTS

For the year ended 31 March 2019, the Group’s profit attributable to
shareholders of the Company was approximately HK$50,510,000 as
compared to the profit attributable to shareholders of the Company of
approximately HK$53,539,000 last year (2018). The decrease in profit for
the year was mainly attributable to, among other things, the increase in
loss on changes in fair value of financial assets, increase in administrative
expenses and decrease in gain on changes in fair value of investment
properties, which has been offset by the increase in rental income and
gain on disposal of a subsidiary. This year’s gross profit margin was
approximately 94.7% compared to last year (2018: approximately 94.2%),
and consolidated revenue advanced by 25.4%.

For the year ended 31 March 2019, the Group’s revenue amounted to
HK$62,228,000 compared to HK$49,605,000 last year, which represented
an increase of HK$12,623,000 or approximately 25.4% as compared to last
year (2018).

The basic and diluted earnings per share for the year ended 31 March 2019
were HK1.70 cents and HK1.67 cents (2018: basic and diluted earnings per
share were HK2.31 cents and HK2.15 cents) respectively.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board does not recommend the payment of final dividend for the year
ended 31 March 2019 (2018: nil).

BUSINESS REVIEW

During the year, the Group was principally engaged in property
development, property investment, comprising the ownership and rental of
investment properties, investment in securities and loan financing business
which property development and property investment are the core business
of the Group. The review of the individual business segments of the Group
are set out below.

(i) Property Development
One of the core business of the Group is property development.
The Group has extensive experience on property redevelopment, in
particular, acquisition of old buildings for renewal and redevelopment.
Below are the major projects of the Group during the year.

1. Project Matheson

As at 31 March 2019, the Group, through its subsidiary, owns
the site at Nos. 11, 13 and 15 Matheson Street, Causeway
Bay, Hong Kong. The total area of the site is approximately
2,857 sq ft. and is currently under development. After
development, the site will provide a gross floor area of
approximately 3,982 sq ft of commercial/office mixed-use
building. The development is expected to complete in the
fourth quarter of 2021.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BEEENWEDN

Project Wing Cheong

As at 31 March 2019, the Group, through its subsidiary,
owns approximately 86.4% of Wing Cheong Factory Building,
a building located at No. 121 King Lam Street, Kowloon,
Hong Kong. The site area is approximately 5,483 sq ft. On
12 September 2018, the Group filed an application under the
Lands (Compulsory Sale for Redevelopment) Ordinance for
auctioning all the units in Wing Cheong Factory Building. The
Group plans to develop the site into an industrial mixed-use
building with car parking spaces.

Disposal of Inverness Road Property

Inverness Road Property is a residential building located at
Nos. 14-20 Inverness Road, Kowloon, Hong Kong, also known
as New Kowloon Inland Lot No. 6573. It was a residential
building under the development of the Group.

On 8 March 2019, the Group successfully disposed
the Inverness Road Property and acquired Easy Tower
simultaneously. The disposal of the Inverness Road Property
allows the Group to focus on the industrial and non-residential
sectors and sharpen its competitive edge on industrial building
redevelopments. It also enables the Group to acquire Easy
Tower and raise cash for other development projects, such as
Wing Cheong, Fung Wah and Matheson Project. Furthermore,
the disposal enabled the Group to save approximately HK$135
million which the Group otherwise had to expend to complete
the Inverness Road Property and bring it to market.

For further details, please refer to “Material Acquisition and
Disposal” section below.
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(i)

Management Discussion and Analysis

EEENWE DM

Property Investment
The other core business of the Group is property investment.

During the year, the total rental income of the Group recorded
was approximately HK$42,627,000 (2018: approximately
HK$33,012,000), representing a 29.1% increase over the last year.
The increase is primarily due to the contributions from newly acquired
properties, as well as continued management of tenant mix, rental
reversion at major investment properties and properties held for
development for sale during the year under review.

Hong Kong

In Hong Kong, the Group owns residential units, commercial units
and industrial units with a total carrying amount of approximately
HK$1,129,400,000 as at 31 March 2019 (2018: approximately
HK$1,156,000,000). For the year ended 31 March 2019, the Group
recorded property rental income of approximately HK$23,339,000
(2018: approximately HK$16,516,000), representing an increase of
approximately 41.3% as compared with 2018.

Below are the major property investments of the Group during the
year.

1. Acquisition of Office Units and Car Parks in Capital Centre

The Group, through its subsidiary, owns the whole floor of 12th
Floor of Capital Centre, No. 151 Gloucester Road, Hong Kong,
as well as, car park spacing numbers 329, 330 and 331 on the
3rd Floor of the same building. The total saleable area of the
12th Floor is approximately 11,316 sq ft. The consideration
was HK$295 million. These properties were acquired for
investment purposes and for providing an opportunity to
expand and diversify the Group’s property investment portfolio,
and for generating a steady flow of rental income to the Group.
For further details, please refer to “Material Acquisition and
Disposal” and “Events after the end of the Reporting Period”
sections below.

(i)
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEENWRDN

2. Acquisition of Easy Tower

Easy Tower is an industrial building located at No. 609 Tai
Nan West Street, Cheung Sha Wan, Kowloon, Hong Kong,
with a total gross floor area of approximately 74,458 sq ft. It is
adjacent to Fung Wah Factorial Building, a site wholly owned

by the Group with a total saleable area of 46,312 sq ft.

The acquisition of Easy Tower enables the Group to better
focus on industrial and non-residential real estate activities
which in turn enhance its competitiveness in such field. Easy
Tower is also a source of recurring income to the Group

through renting out the units in the building.

It also allows the Group to redevelop both Easy Tower site and
Fung Wah Factorial Building site together and will significantly

enhance the development potential of both sites.

Singapore

In Singapore, the Group owns 3 residential units with a total
carrying amount of approximately HK$159,831,000 as at 31 March
2019 (2018: approximately HK$162,456,000). For the year ended
31 March 2019, the Group received property rental income of
approximately HK$2,840,000 (2018: approximately HK$2,719,000),

representing a 4.5% increase over the last year.

People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”)

In Huzhou City, Zhejiang Province of the PRC, the Group has
12 blocks of factory premises and 4 blocks of dormitories with
a total carrying amount of approximately HK$374,130,000 at
31 March 2019 (2018: approximately HK$338,177,000). For the
year ended 31 March 2019, the Group recorded property rental
income of approximately HK$16,448,000 (2018: approximately
HK$13,777,000), representing an increase of approximately 19.4%

as compared with 2018.
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(iii)

Management Discussion and Analysis

EEENWR D

Securities Investment

During the year, the Group has adopted a prudent attitude in its
securities investment. The Group had acquired listed securities
and disposed of some shares in the investment portfolio. The
Group recorded a loss on change in fair value of financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss of approximately HK$16,283,000
(2018: approximately HK$2,195,000). The impairment loss on
available-for-sale investments was nil (2018: approximately
HK$3,406,000). As a result, the Group reported a segment loss of
approximately HK$16,500,000 (2018: segment loss of approximately
HK$1,316,000) during the year under review. The Group received
dividend income from the listed securities of approximately
HK$3,667,000 during the year under review. The Group considers
that the prospects in respect of the listed shares investments
are healthy. The Group understands that the performance of the
investments may be affected by the degree of volatility in the Hong
Kong stock market and subject to other external factors that may
affect their values. Accordingly, the Group will continue to maintain
a diversified portfolio of investment of different segments of markets
to minimise the possible financial risks. Also, the Group will closely
monitor the performance progress of the investment portfolio from
time to time.

At 31 March 2019, the Group’s investment in equity securities
listed in Hong Kong amounting to approximately HK$56,338,000
(2018: approximately HK$3,436,000). It was derived from (i) the
purchase of securities of approximately HK$22,974,000 during
the year under review; (ii) the disposal of securities which had a
fair value of approximately HK$160,625,000; (iii) net decrease
in market value of securities investments in the amount of
approximately HK$16,659,000; and (iv) reclassified from available-
for-sale investments of approximately HK$207,213,000. This value
represented an investment portfolio comprising 4 (2018: 4) equity
securities which are listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

(iii)
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BEEENWEDN

The Group held significant securities investments as at 31 March

2019 as below:

Approx. % held

M2019F3A31H @ AEEIFEUTE
REHEE

to the total Fair value Approx. % of
issued Dividend gain (loss) for the total assets of
share capital of income for the year ended the Group at
the company/ Investment year ended 31 Mar 2019 Fair value at 31 Mar 2019
investment % cost/cost of 31 Mar 2019 HK$'000 31 Mar 2019 %
ERARRRS acquisition HK$'000 HE19E HK$'000 R2019F
BRE/RE HKS000  BZ2019F 3B3NALEE R20195 3B31R4E
No. of BBER REHA/ 3ANALEE  2AVERE 3R%AY AEEHEE
Company name (stock code) shares held BB WERA ZREMA (BE) AYE  ZHHESM
DREE/ (R HERMEE % Tién Tin Tén Tén %
China SCE Group Holdings Ltd. {1966)
hEEEIRRERA (1966) 6,800,000 0.16% 10,757 1,359 M 27812 0.69%
Best Food Holding Co. Ltd. (1488)
BRERARAT (1488) 21,660,000 1.37% 265,740 133 1,278 26,425 0.65%
Other listed shares*
Hth EmikfR - - 17,509 769 (877) 2,101 0.05%
Grand total:
&t 54,006 2,261 1,168 56,338 1.39%
* Other listed shares included 2 companies whose shares are listed on the Main * Hh ETARDBIE 2 BB R T E IR £

Board of the Stock Exchange.

(iv) Loan Financing

During the year, the Group recorded interest income from the loan
financing business amounting to approximately HK$19,601,000
(2018: approximately HK$16,593,000), representing approximately
31.50% of the total revenue of the Group. The segment profit of
loan financing business was approximately HK$5,726,000 for the
year ended 31 March 2019 (2018: approximately HK$9,208,000).
The outstanding principal amount of loans receivable as at 31 March
2019 was approximately HK$336,010,000 (2018: approximately
HK$265,297,000). At 31 March 2019, impairment allowance for
loans receivable amounted to approximately HK$9,192,000. During
the year under review, impairment allowance recognized in profit or
loss amounted to approximately HK$2,808,000 in its loan financing
business. The Group will continue to develop in this segment in order

to earn a higher interest income.

(iv)

B AR ©

RER AEESREERMEES
Z R B A 4 A19,601,00078 7T (2018
F : #916,593,000787T) © (HANEEE L
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEENWE DM

FINANCIAL REVIEW

g dE)

Year ended 31 March
HZESASIBLEE

2019 2018 Change
2019 F 20184F e )
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET FHET
Revenue [E 62,228 49,605 12,623
Gross profit ER 58,957 46,725 12,232
Gross profit margin EFIE 94.7% 94.2% 0.5%
Distribution and selling expenses £ $4A A - (40) (40)
Administrative expenses THHX (48,276) (85,525) (12,751)
Finance costs BhE AR (36,310) (31,373) (4,937)
Profit before taxation BREE AT A 50,910 54,608 (3,698)
Taxation BIE (400) (1,069) 669
Profit for the year AATRREGREE
attributable to shareholders of A

the Company 50,510 53,539 (3,029)
Net profit margin IR 81.2% 107.9% (26.7%)
Basic earnings per share SRERER HK1.70 cents HK2.31 cents (HK0.61 cents)
1.70 784 2.31781l (0.61784L)
Diluted earnings per share FRESER HK1.67 cents HK2.15 cents (HKO.48 cents)
1.67 B4l 2157841 (0.487%4l)

Revenue =EL-0

For the year ended 31 March 2019, the Group’s revenue increased by
25.4% to approximately HK$62,228,000 as compared with last year which
was derived from the increase in the rental income from the property
investment business and interest income from the loan financing business.

Gross Profit/Margin

Gross profit of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2019 was
approximately HK$58,957,000, representing an increase of approximately
26.2% or approximately HK$12,232,000 as compared to approximately
HK$46,725,000 in 2018. Gross profit margin for the year reached
approximately 94.7% (2018: approximately 94.2%), representing an
increase of 0.5% over the last financial year.

HZ20190F3A31HIEFE - AREBEZEER
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Profit before Taxation

Profit before taxation of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2019 was
approximately HK$50,910,000, as compared with last year profit before
taxation of approximately HK$54,608,000.

Administrative expenses of the Group increased from approximately
HK$35,525,000 to approximately HK$48,276,000, an increase of
approximately 35.9% as compared with the last year.

During the year under review, there was a loss on changes in fair value
of financial assets amounting to approximately HK$16,283,000 (2018:
approximately loss of HK$2,195,000).

Finance costs of the Group was approximately HK$36,310,000, increased
by approximately HK$4,937,000 or approximately 15.7% for the year
from approximately HK$31,373,000 in 2018, of which approximately
HK$17,123,000 (2018: approximately HK$17,128,000) is the effective
interest expense on convertible notes.

Profit Attributable to shareholders of the Company and Earnings per
Share

Profit attributable to shareholders of the Company for the year ended 31
March 2019 was approximately HK$50,510,000, as compared to last year
profit of approximately HK$53,539,000. Net profit margin is approximately
81.2% as compared to net profit margin last year of approximately 107.9%.

For this year, the taxation charge was approximately HK$400,000 whilst last
year the taxation charge was approximately HK$1,069,000.

Basic and diluted earnings per share for the year ended 31 March 2019
were approximately HK1.70 cents and HK1.67 cents respectively as
compared to basic and diluted earnings per share were approximately
HK2.31 cents and HK2.15 cents respectively in 2018.

Liquidity and Financial Resources

At 31 March 2019, total assets of the Group amounted to approximately
HK$4,034,545,000 (2018: approximately HK$4,011,917,000). In terms of
financial resources as at 31 March 2019, the Group’s total bank balances
and cash was approximately HK$141,582,000 (2018: approximately
HK$125,422,000).

At 31 March 2019, the Group has total bank borrowings of approximately
HK$1,075,229,000 (2018: approximately HK$1,092,660,000). The Group’s
gearing ratio, which is calculated as a ratio of total bank borrowings to
shareholders’ equity, was approximately 0.4 (2018: approximately 0.4). As
at 31 March 2019, the Group’s current ratio was approximately 4.8 (2018:
approximately 3.5).

The Group financed its operations primarily with recurring cash flow
generated from its operations and bank financing.

BRBEATE R
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Charges of Assets

As at 31 March 2019, the Group had bank loans amounting
to approximately HK$1,075,229,000 (2018: approximately
HK$1,092,660,000) which were secured by the Group’s properties with an
aggregate net book value of approximately HK$776,431,000 (investment
properties) and approximately HK$1,730,263,000 (properties held for
development for sale) respectively (2018: approximately HK$986,740,000
and HK$1,634,964,000).

Material Acquisitions and Disposals

(1)(a) Acquisition of Easy Tower

On 19 November 2018, the Group through Sonic Hover Limited,
a wholly-owned subsidiary, entered into a conditional sale and
purchase agreement with Easyknit Properties Holdings Limited, a
subsidiary of Easyknit International Holdings Limited (“Easyknit”).
Pursuant to which, Sonic Hover Limited agreed to acquire from
Easyknit Properties Holdings Limited the entire equity interest in
Wellmake Investments Limited (“Wellmake”), which the material
asset is Easy Tower. The sale consideration was of HK$470,000,000.
The transaction was approved by the independent shareholders of
the Company on 28 February 2019 and was duly completed on 8
March 2019.

Easy Tower is located at No. 609 Tai Nan West Street, Cheung
Sha Wan, Kowloon, also known as New Kowloon Inland Lot No.
6238, and is adjacent to Fung Wah Factorial Building, a lot already
owned by the Group. The total gross floor area of Easy Tower is
approximately 74,458 sq ft. while for the total saleable area of Fung
Wah Factorial Building is approximately 46,312 sq ft.

On completion, a property management agreement (“Property
Management Agreement”) was entered into between Wellmake,
which was then a subsidiary of the Company after the completion,
and UrbanMode (HK) Limited (“Manager”), a wholly-owned
subsidiary of Easyknit. Pursuant to which, Wellmake appointed
the Manager to manage Easy Tower for an initial period of three
years from completion. Easyknit group has been providing property
management services for Easy Tower and to facilitate the smooth
transition of Easy Tower ownership without disruption to the
management of Easy Tower, the Manager will manage and maintain
Easy Tower after completion.

Reasons for Acquisition

The acquisition of Easy Tower enables to Group better focus on
industrial and non-residential real estate activities which in turn
enhance its competitiveness in such sector. Easy Tower is also a
source of recurring income to the Group through renting out the units
in the building.

Acquiring Easy Tower also allows the Group to redevelop both Easy
Tower site and Fung Wah Factorial Building site together and will
significantly enhance the development potential of both sites.
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(1)(b) Disposal of Inverness Road Property

@)

On 19 November 2018, the Group, through its wholly-owned
subsidiary, Kingbest Capital Holdings Limited, entered into a
conditional sale and purchase agreement with Gold Anchor
Developments Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of Easyknit.
Pursuant to which, Kingbest Capital Holdings Limited agreed to
dispose to Gold Anchor Developments Limited the entire equity
interest in Total Expect Limited, which the material asset is Inverness
Road Property. The sale consideration was HK$1,035,000,000. The
transaction was approved by the independent shareholders of the
Company on 28 February 2019 and was duly completed on 8 March
2019.

Reasons for Disposal

Inverness Road Property is located at Nos. 14-20 Inverness Road,
Kowloon, Hong Kong, also known as New Kowloon Inland Lot
No. 6573. The disposal of the Inverness Road Property allows the
Group to focus on the industrial and non-residential sectors and
sharpen its competitive edge on industrial building redevelopment.
It also enables the Group to acquire Easy Tower and raise cash for
other development projects, such as Wing Cheong, Fung Wah and
Matheson Project. Furthermore, the disposal enabled the Group to
save approximately HK$135 million which the Group otherwise had to
expend complete the Inverness Road Property and bring it to market.
Through such acquisition and disposal, the Group received a net
proceeds of approximately HK$586,142,000.

For further details of the acquisition and disposal, please refer to the
joint announcement dated 21 November 2018 and the joint circular
dated 12 February 2019.

Acquisition of Office Units and Car Parks in Capital Centre

The Group completed the acquisition of office units 01, 02, 03, 05,
06, 07, 08 and 09 on the 12th Floor (with a total saleable area of
approximately 11,316 sq ft) and carparking spaces numbers 329,
330 and 331 on the 3rd Floor of Capital Centre, No. 151 Gloucester
Road, Hong Kong on 30 April 2018. The consideration was
approximately HK$295 million. These properties were acquired for
investment purposes and for providing an opportunity to expand and
diversify the Group’s property investment portfolio and for generating
a steady flow of rental income to the Group.

As of 31 March 2019, the rental income from the properties during the
year was approximately HK$3,598,000.

On 20 November 2018, the Company obtained the Shareholders’
approval to auction these properties (as a whole) through open tender
of not less than HK$310 million. Such approval allows the Company
to act swiftly on its investment portfolio and provides the Board
maximum flexibility in a sale and increase the pool of potential buyers.

(b) HEEXELBEYE
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For further information on the acquisition, please refer to the
Company’s announcement dated 11 January 2018 and circular dated
15 March 2018.

For further information on the tender, please refer to the Company’s
announcement dated 4 October 2018 and circular dated 20
November 2018.

Saved as disclosed above, the Group had no material acquisitions of
subsidiaries or associated companies during the year.

Exposure on Foreign Exchange Fluctuations

Most of the Group’s revenues and payments are in United States dollars,
Hong Kong dollars, Singapore dollars and Renminbi. During the year, the
Group did not have significant exposure to the fluctuation in exchange rates
and thus, no financial instrument for hedging purposes was employed. The
Group considered the risk of exposure to the currency fluctuation to be
minimal.

Contingent Liabilities
The Group did not have any significant contingent liabilities as at 31 March
2019 (2018: nil).

Capital Expenditure and Capital Commitments

Capital Expenditure

For the year ended 31 March 2019, the Group invested approximately
HK$1,489,000 (2018: approximately HK$1,433,000) in the purchase of
property, plant and equipment, and spent approximately HK$23,368,000
(2018: approximately HK$201,710,000) on addition of investment
properties, other than the acquisition of investment properties through
acquiring Wellmake. These capital expenditures were financed from internal
resources and funds from previous fund raising activities of the Company.

Capital Commitments

As at 31 March 2019, the Group had capital commitments in respect
of capital expenditure contracted for but not provided of approximately
HK$40,684,000 (2018: approximately HK$265,975,000).

BRABEMFRER  B2EAQRRN
2018F 1 A 11 HA A 20183 A 15
H e -

ERBENFAER  F2HEARER
20184 10 B4 BRI A KX 20184 11 A
20 HEYIRER ©

B R ERSN - AL BIRNE AR B A R
BARSKEE R B2 BRI -

SNEIRED 2 LK
AEE SR BET HIASTT BT I
TTRARBERE « RER - AEEI SR TR
FOR B AR AR - RIS B E RS
BT EfEEH AR - ARBERRET HIBRER
B2 R AR -

\\\\\\\\

201963 A31 A » AEE I (T E AR
B5(20184F « £) -

BERBXRERESE

BRI

HE2019F3ASTALLFE  AEEEKEY
1,489,000 Jt (20184 : %91,433,0007% 7T )
BEWE « WEM&ME - WE AL 23,368,000
7T (20184F : 49201,710,000/8 7T ) N8 B %
AW BBk IEELMERS ZIREMEL
Hh o REEAFAIMESIREARNIERKLE
BIARNRZEEAIRE o

B EAE

MR2019F3A31 B + ZREBBHACDFTLERE
B2 BAMFZE REIEL A 40,684,000
JL (2018 4F : 49265,975,00077T) °

WAREERAT | 2019 F5H

it

15



16

Management Discussion and Analysis
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EMPLOYEES

As at 31 March 2019, the Group had 55 employees (2018: 46). Staff
costs (including directors’ emoluments) amounted to approximately
HK$21,222,000 for the year under review (2018: approximately
HK$17,065,000). The Group remunerates its employees based on their
performance, experience and prevailing industry practice. The Group
has set out the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme for the Hong Kong’s
employees and has made contributions to the state-sponsored pension
scheme operated by the PRC government for the PRC employees. The
Group has a share option scheme to motivate valued employees.

PROSPECTS

The Hong Kong economy has been growing steadily despite an increasingly
challenging external environment.

Despite the uncertainties on global economic outlook caused by the
intensified US-China trade war, Brexit, and recent corrections in the financial
markets, Hong Kong’s economy remains resilient.

The Board maintains a cautiously optimistic view on the property market
and would continue devoting resources and effort in increasing and
replenishing its land bank for its property development business and will
also continue to adopt a prudent approach in acquiring and disposing
properties and other investments to secure steady recurring income and
capital appreciation for the Group.
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Biographical Details of Directors
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MR. KWONG JIMMY CHEUNG TIM
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Mr. Kwong, aged 76, is an executive director, chairman, chief executive
officer and authorised representative of the Company and chairman of the
Executive Committee. Mr. Kwong graduated from The University of Hong
Kong in 1965 and was admitted as Barrister-at-Law in the United Kingdom
in 1970 and in Hong Kong in 1973 respectively. He has over 30 years of
experience in the legal field. He serves as director of various subsidiaries
of the Company and Easyknit. Mr. Kwong was appointed to the Board as
an independent non-executive director in 2003, and was subsequently
re-designated as an executive director in 2007. In 2007, Mr. Kwong was
appointed as chairman and chief executive officer of the Company.

MS. LUl YUK CHU
Deputy Chairman

Ms. Lui, aged 61, is an executive director and deputy chairman of the
Company and a member of the Executive Committee. She is also an
executive director and vice president, and a member of the Executive
Committee of Easyknit International Holdings Limited (“Easyknit”). Ms. Lui
has been involved in the textiles industry for over 30 years and has extensive
experience in design, manufacturing, marketing and distribution of apparel.
She serves as director of various subsidiaries of the Company and Easyknit.
Ms. Lui was appointed to the Board as an executive director in 2003 and
was appointed as deputy chairman in 2006.

MR. KAN KA HON

Mr. Kan, aged 68, is an independent non-executive director of the Company
since 2003. He is also a member and chairman of the Audit Committee, a
member of the Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee. He
holds a Bachelor’s Degree in Science from The University of Hong Kong and
is a fellow member of The Association of Chartered Certified Accountants
and a member of The Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
He has over 30 years of experience in accounting and finance. Mr. Kan
is also an independent non-executive director of Victory City International
Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 0539).

MR. LAU SIN MING

Mr. Lau, aged 57, is an independent non-executive director of the Company
since 2004. He is also a member and chairman of the Remuneration
Committee, a member of the Audit Committee and Nomination Committee.
He is a fellow member of The Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants and a member of The Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. He has over 30 years of experience in accounting and auditing
and is now working as a tax consultant.
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Biographical Details of Directors

EECEE

MR. FOO TAK CHING

Mr. Foo, aged 85, is an independent non-executive director of the
Company since 2007. He is also a member and chairman of the Nomination
Committee, a member of the Audit Committee and Remuneration
Committee. He is currently a Partner of Messrs. Liu, Choi & Chan, a firm of
solicitors and notaries in Hong Kong and has been practising in the legal
field for more than 30 years. He obtained his LLB from the University of
London in the United Kingdom in 1968 and a diploma in Chinese Laws
from the University of East Asia in Macau in 1987. Mr. Foo was admitted
as a solicitor in England and Wales in 1972 and in Hong Kong in 1973 and
admitted as a barrister and solicitor in the State of Victoria, Australia in
1982. He is a Notary Public and a China Appointed Attesting Officer.

MR. WU KOON YIN WELLY

Mr. Wu, aged 34, was appointed as an independent non-executive
director of the Company on 1 January 2017. He is also a member of Audit
Committee, Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee. Mr.
Wu holds a Master in Finance degree from the University of Essex and a
Bachelor of Commerce degree in the University of Sydney. Mr. Wu is the
Vice President of Sales in FXCM, which is a leading provider of online foreign
exchange (FX) trading, CFD trading, spread betting and related services. Mr.
Wu has over 11 years of extensive experience in the brokerage industry.
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Corporate Governance Report
CEERRE

The board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) of the Company
is dedicated to maintaining the good standard of corporate governance
within a sensible and practical framework. The Board firmly believes that
the principles of transparency, accountability and independence are
essential for upholding the interests of the stakeholders and maximizing
shareholder’s value.

The Board is committed to excellence in corporate governance. It is
responsible for developing and reviewing the Company’s policies and
practices on corporate governance as well as compliance with legal and
regulatory requirements.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company’s corporate governance practices are based on the principles
and the code provisions as set out in the Corporate Governance Code
(“CG Code”) contained in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). During the year, the Company has fully
complied with the code provisions of the CG Code, except for the deviation
disclosed herein.

Under code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code provides that the roles of
Chairman and Chief Executive should be separate and should not be
performed by the same individual.

Mr. Kwong Jimmy Cheung Tim serves as Chairman as well as Chief
Executive Officer of the Company and this dual leadership role has been
adopted by the Company for a number of years. Such deviation is deemed
appropriate as it is considered to be more efficient to have one single person
to be Chairman of the Company as well as to discharge the executive
functions of a chief executive thereby enabling more effective planning
and better execution of long-term strategies. The Board believes that the
balance of power and authority is adequately ensured by the operations and
governance of the Board which comprises experienced and high calibre
individuals, with half of them being independent non-executive directors of
the Company. The Company will review the current structure when and as
it becomes appropriate.

Code provision C.2.5 of the CG Code provides that the Group should have
an internal audit function.

The Group does not have an internal audit function. During the year
under review, the Board has reviewed the effectiveness of the internal
control system of the Group and there were no major issues but areas
for improvement have been identified by the Audit Committee and
appropriate measures taken. The Board is of the view that the enterprise
risk management and internal control systems in place for the year and up
to the date of issuance of this announcement is effective and adequate. In
addition, the Board is currently of the view that there is no immediate need
to set up an internal audit function within the Group in light of the size, nature
and complexity of the Group’s business. The situation will be reviewed from
time to time.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The overall management of the business of the Company and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) is vested in the Board, who assumes the
responsibility for leadership and control of the Company and oversees the
Group’s businesses, strategic decisions and performances, interests of all
shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholders”) and that all issues are
considered in an objective manner.

BOARD COMPOSITION

During the year ended 31 March 2019 and up to the date of this annual
report, the Board comprised six (6) Directors, including two (2) executive
Directors and four (4) independent non-executive Directors. Mr. Foo Tak
Ching, who will retire from office by rotation, confirmed that he will not offer
himself for re-election in the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company, and shall accordingly be retired from office as of 1 August 2019.

Details of the Board are as follows:

Executive Directors
Mr. Kwong Jimmy Cheung Tim (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Ms. Lui Yuk Chu (Deputy Chairman)

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Kan Ka Hon
Mr. Lau Sin Ming

Mr. Foo Tak Ching (Mr. Foo has confirmed that he will not offer himself for re-election
in the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company and shall accordingly retire from
office as of 1 August 2019)

Mr. Wu Koon Yin Welly

Details of background and qualifications of all Directors are set out in the
section headed “Biographical Details of Directors” of this annual report.
Each of the Directors is subject to retirement by rotation at the AGM for a
term of up to three years under Article 99 of the Bye-laws of the Company.

The Board possesses a balance of skills, experience and diversity which are
appropriate for the requirements of the business of the Group. A balanced
composition of executive and independent non-executive Directors also
generates a strong independent element on the Board, which allows
independent and objective decision making process for the best interest of
the Group. The Company will review the composition of the Board regularly
to ensure the Board possesses the appropriate and necessary expertise,
skills and experience to meet the needs of the business development of the
Group.
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The Company has received written annual confirmation of independence
from each of the independent non-executive Directors pursuant to Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules. Despite the fact that each of Mr. Kan Ka Hon,
Mr. Lau Sin Ming and Mr. Foo Tak Ching, has served as an independent
nonexecutive Director on the Board for more than nine (9) years, the Board
is of the view that their duration of service will not interfere with their exercise
of independent judgement in carrying out their duties and responsibilities
as the independent non-executive Directors and believes that their valuable
knowledge and experience in the Group’s business will continually benefit
the Company and the Shareholders as a whole. Accordingly, the Company
considers that all independent non-executive Directors have met the
independence guidelines of Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

Appointment and Re-election of Directors

Pursuant to the bye-laws of the Company (the “Bye-Laws”), all Directors
are subject to retirement by rotation at annual general meeting of the
Company (the “AGM”) no later than the third AGM since the last re-election.
Any Director appointed by the Board to fill a casual vacancy shall hold office
only until the next following general meeting of the Company after his or her
appointment, or any Director appointed by the Board as an addition to the
existing Board shall hold office only until the next following annual general
meeting of the Company after his or her appointment and shall then be
eligible for re-election.

Board Meeting

The Board meets regularly four times a year, i.e. at approximately quarterly
intervals. During the year, the Board convened a total of four regular
meetings and the attendance of the Directors are set out as below section
headed “ATTENDANCE RECORD OF DIRECTORS AND COMMITTEE
MEMBERS”.

The Board is responsible for the approval and monitoring of the Group’s
overall strategies and policies, approval of business plans, evaluating
the performance of the Group and oversight of management. It is also
responsible for promoting the success of the Company and its businesses
by directing and supervising the Company’s affairs.

The Board focuses on overall strategies and policies with particular attention
paid to the growth and financial performance of the Group.

The Board delegates day-to-day operations of the Group to the executive
Directors and senior management of every business segment, while
reserving certain key matters for its approval. Decisions of the Board are
communicated to the management through executive Directors who have
attended Board meetings.

All Directors have been provided, on a monthly basis, with the Group’s
management information updates to give them aware of the Group’s
affairs and facilitates them to discharge their duties under the relevant
requirements of the Listing Rules.
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Continuous Professional Development

During the year, the Company provides regular updates on the business
performance of the Group to the Directors. The Directors are regularly
updated on the latest development regarding the Listing Rules and other
applicable statutory requirements to ensure compliance and upkeep of
good corporate governance practices.

The Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous professional
developments (the “Continuous Professional Development”) to develop
and refresh their knowledge and skills to ensure that their contribution to
the Board remains informed and relevant. According to the confirmations
received from the Directors, all Directors have participated in the
Continuous Professional Development for the year ended 31 March 2019 in
the following manner:

FEERRRE

WER - RAAREHREFRHEAEBER K
ROBRMER  TEHMREBEBSREBN LTR
A e Bt i AR TE VB IR - ARERIE
SR EERIFEEE TR

AEEFEBHESSEGEIEERE ([FHERE
BRE])  UBREEFENZ R - R
HEEEAEEZRENARYAMENER THE
EeER AR - REEBIRENERE - 268
EENHE2019F3A31 HILFEE L HEIFE
BEEE BROT

Name a4 Types of Trainings
EIER
(Note)
(BREE)
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Kwong Jimmy Cheung Tim BEALE v
Ms. Lui Yuk Chu EE%LL \
Independent Non-executive Directors BYFHITES
Mr. Kan Ka Hon LR Ptea v
Mr. Lau Sin Ming B|EmMEE \
Mr. Foo Tak Ching Btk s
(Mr. Foo has confirmed that he will not offer himself for (1FSEEE R T ETEAR R AJAINSG R 7T
re-election in the forthcoming annual general meeting of HIRFAFA & L EEEE - FUL - 18485
the Company and shall accordingly retire from office as R2019F 8 A 1 HEM)
of 1 August 2019) vV
Mr. Wu Koon Yin Welly [T KL v

Note:

Continuous Professional Development through attending briefings/seminars/webcast/
conferences/forums/online trainings.

Corporate Governance Functions
The Board is responsible for performing the corporate governance functions
as set out below:

(@)  To develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance, monitoring of the corporate governance
practices and procedures; and maintenance of appropriate and
effective risk management and internal control systems of the Group
to ensure compliance with applicable rules and regulations;

(b)  To review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management;
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() To review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

(d)  To develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and compliance
manual (if any) applicable to employees and Directors; and

(d) To review the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure in the corporate governance report in the Company’s
annual reports.

During the year ended 31 March 2019, the Board had performed
the abovementioned corporate governance functions by reviewing
the Company’s policies and practices on corporate governance and
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements.

Directors’ and Officers’ Liability Insurance and Indemnity

The Company has appropriate insurance cover for the Directors’ and
Officers’ liabilities in respect of any claims against the Directors and officers
of the Group arising out of corporate activities of the Group.

DELEGATION BY THE BOARD

Board Committees

The Board has established four Board Committees, namely, Audit
Committee, Remuneration Committee, Nomination Committee and
Executive Committee, to assist in the execution of the Board’s
responsibilities and to oversee particular aspect of the Group’s affairs. Each
Board Committee is provided with sufficient resources to discharge its
duties properly, and holds meetings in accordance with the Bye-Laws, its
specific written terms of reference and, where applicable, the proceedings
of the Board meeting. The terms of reference of the Board Committees
are reviewed and updated regularly to ensure that they are aligned with
prevailing governance practices. The terms of reference of each of the
Board Committees are available on the Company’s website. The attendance
of each member of the Board Committees are set out as below section
headed “ATTENDANCE RECORD OF DIRECTORS AND COMMITTEE
MEMBERS”

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee currently comprises four independent non-executive
Directors, namely, Mr. Kan Ka Hon (chairman of the Audit Committee), Mr.
Lau Sin Ming, Mr. Foo Tak Ching and Mr. Wu Koon Yin Welly and held three
meetings during the year ended 31 March 2019.

The chairman of the Audit Committee, Mr. Kan Ka Hon, possesses
appropriate professional qualifications in finance and accounting and meets
the requirements of Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules. No member of the Audit
Committee is a former partner of the existing auditing firm of the Company
during two years after he ceases to be partner of the audit firm.
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The principal functions of the Audit Committee included:
- to oversee the relationship with the external auditor;

- to review the interim and annual financial statements before
publication;

- to oversee the Group’s financial reporting system and internal control
procedures; and

- to review of the internal control and risk management framework.

During the year ended 31 March 2019, the Audit Committee has reviewed
(i) the reports from the Company’s auditor, accounting principles and
practices adopted by the Group, management representation letters,
and management’s response in relation to the annual results for the year
ended 31 March 2019 and the interim results for the six months ended 30
September 2018; (i) the financial statements for the year ended 31 March
2019 and the six months ended 30 September 2018 and recommended the
same to the Board for approval; (iii) the effectiveness of risk management
and internal control systems; and (iv) update the dividend policy of the
Company.

The Audit Committee reviewed the 2018/2019 consolidated financial
statements in conjunction with the external auditor of the Company. Based
on this review and discussions with management, the Audit Committee
was satisfied that the consolidated financial statements were prepared in
accordance with applicable accounting standards, and fairly present the
Group’s financial position and results for the year ended 31 March 2019.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee currently comprises four independent
non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Lau Sin Ming (chairman of the
Remuneration Committee), Mr. Kan Ka Hon, Mr. Foo Tak Ching and Mr.
Wu Koon Yin Welly, and one executive Director, namely Mr. Kwong Jimmy
Cheung Tim. The Remuneration Committee held two meetings during the
year ended 31 March 2019.

The principal functions of the Remuneration Committee included:

- to recommend to the Board on the Company’s policies and structure
for the remuneration of the Directors and senior management of the
Group;

- to recommend to the Board on the remuneration package of all
executive Directors and senior management of the Group; and

- to review and approve the management’s remuneration proposals
with reference to corporate goals and objectives by the Board from
time to time.
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The primary objective of the Company’s remuneration policy is to attract,
retain and motivate the personnel by providing fair reward for their
contributions to the Group’s performance. In this context, the remuneration
policy is to set the overall remuneration package at a competitive level
and in a form that permits additional remuneration to be earned for high
performance over a sustained period. The remuneration packages are
determined with reference to the time commitment and responsibilities of
each individual, the Company’s performance and the prevailing market
conditions.

During the year ended 31 March 2019, the Remuneration Committee
reviewed the remuneration policies and structure for the Directors and
senior management of the Group.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee currently comprising four independent non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. Foo Tak Ching (chairman of the Nomination
Committee), Mr. Kan Ka Hon, Mr. Lau Sin Ming and Mr. Wu Koon Yin Welly,
and one executive Director, namely Mr. Kwong Jimmy Cheung Tim. After
the retirement of Mr. Foo Tak Ching in the forthcoming annual general
meeting, Mr. Wu Koon Yin Welly will be appointed as the chairman of the
Nomination Committee.

The Nomination Committee held three meetings for the year ended 31
March 2019.

The principal functions of the Nomination Committee included:

- to review the structure, size and composition (including the skills,
knowledge and experience) of the Board;

- to identify and nominate suitable candidates of directors for the
Board’s consideration; and

- to assess the independence of the independent non-executive
Directors.

During the year ended 31 March 2019, the Nomination Committee (i)
reviewed the structure, size, composition and diversity of the Board; (i)
assessed the independence of independent non-executive Directors; and
(iii) updated the nomination policy and diversity policy of the Company.
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Nomination Policy and Board Diversity Policy

The Board adopted a nomination policy and board diversity policy which
set out the nomination procedures adopted by the Nomination Committee
and the approach to achieving board diversity in the Company in order
to enhance the effectiveness of the Board and its corporate governance
standard. The Company recognizes the importance of having a diverse
team of board members, which is an essential element in maintaining a
competitive advantage. The Nomination Committee has been delegated the
authority to review and assess the diversity of the Board and its skills and
experience by way of consideration of a number of factors, including but not
limited to, gender, age, cultural and educational background, professional
experience, industry experience, skills, knowledge and length of service.
The Nomination Committee will give consideration to the diversity policy
when identifying and selecting suitably qualified candidates. The policy will
be reviewed on a regular basis.

Both the nomination policy and the board diversity policy are available on
the Company’s website.

Executive Committee

The Executive Committee currently comprises all the executive Directors,
namely Mr. Kwong Jimmy Cheung Tim (chairman of the Executive
Committee) and Ms. Lui Yuk Chu.

It meets as and when required between regular Board meetings of the
Company, and operates as a general management committee under the
direct authority of the Board. Within the parameters of authority delegated
by the Board, the Executive Committee is committed to the implementation
of the Group’s strategy set by the Board, monitors the Group’s investment
and trading performance, funding and financing requirements, and reviews
the management performance.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu have been re-appointed as the external
auditor of the Company at the 2018 Annual General Meeting until the
conclusion of the forthcoming 2019 Annual General Meeting.

During the year ended 31 March 2019, the audit and non-audit fees paid
or payable to the Company’s external auditor, Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu,
was made up of an audit fee of approximately HK$2,180,000 and a
non-audit related service fee of approximately HK$1,333,000. The latter
included taxation service and professional service.
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ATTENDANCE RECORD OF DIRECTORS AND COMMITTEE
MEMBERS

Details of the attendance of each individual Director at the Board meetings,
the Board Committee meetings, the AGM and the special general meetings
of the Company (the “SGMs”) held during the year ended 31 March 2019
are as follows:

EENEZEERENHFERLE

HE2019F3 A BILEE @ ARESHEAR
NAMBHACESS SR  EELEETH
BEEFARGRBRRENASGZBERFBEN
—F :

Attended/Eligible to attend

hiE/2ER LR
Audit  Remuneration Nomination
Board Committee Committee Committee
Name Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting AGM SGMs
ENZEE  HWzEe  REZEE RRBF R4
#e EEa-{-f EE EE EE g X&
Executive Directors BES
Mr. Kwong Jimmy Cheung Tim BRAGE 4/4 N/A 2/2 3/3 11 33
Ms. Lui Yuk Chu BEIGuL 4/4 N/A N/A N/A 0/1 0/3
Independent Non-executive Directors  BUFHTES
Mr. Kan Ka Hon BEHLE 4/4 313 212 33 n 1/3
Mr. Lau Sin Ming A=m@rs 4/4 33 212 33 N 3/3
Mr. Foo Tak Ching BERrE 4/4 33 212 33 17 3/3
Mr. Wu Koon Yin Welly REBLA 3/4 2/3 1/2 2/3 11 3/3
COMPANY SECRETARY NEINE

The company secretary of the Company, Mr. Lee Po Wing, assists the
Board by ensuring good information follow within the Board and that the
Board policy and procedures are followed. In accordance with Rule 3.29
of the Listing Rules, Mr. Lee Po Wing confirmed that he has taken no less
than 15 hours of the relevant professional training during the year ended 31
March 2019.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The Board leads and maintains effective controls over the Group’s activities,
with executive responsibility for the running of the Group’s business being
delegated to management. The management provides all members of the
Board with monthly updates in order to give a balanced and understandable
assessment of the Group’s performance, position and prospects to enable
them to discharge their duties.

Risk Management and Internal Control

The Board is responsible for evaluating and determining the nature
and extent of the risks and it is willing to take in achieving the Group’s
strategic objectives and ensuring that the Group establishes and maintains
appropriate and effective risk management and internal control systems and
reviewing their effectiveness. The Board is also responsible for overseeing
the design, implementation and monitoring of the risk management and
internal control systems. The risk management and internal control systems
are designed to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance against
material misstatement or loss and to manage rather than eliminate risks
of failure in operating systems or in achievement of the Group’s business
objectives.

ARBIZ ARIMETEREERPEST  #
REFEREBVAEMRRRY  UWREBRE
BEGHERMIEF o RIEEMRBIE 320K - &
B ENEZE2019F3A31HILFEDER
AR5/ SRR XIS o

GEG)SE2
EEgRONEREASEED 2 AEE
HEEAREEB 2 ATEERBERRER
B EEEAMBEESRBR]EA RN
BB DWHARERRE  AORKATSIER
EEMBHENFE BEFAUETHRSR -

[ PR TR AN B B A

EFgaAMENBEASBEAETRER B R
PR ENRBOEEMNIZE - WA BRRA
RERET I HEREE AR AR EENAE
EEHE  TEEHAYM - EFFTARE
B YRR EIEM A BB B R A RET © B
BIZE o MBI M ARREIRGIE 5 E R A
B BTRBYHORE - ADTEAMERRE
K WEEMIRERBERBHREXERA
SEXBAMRER -

WEERDAT | 2019 1§

it

27



28

Corporate Governance Report
TEEBRRE

The Board, through the Audit Committee, conducts a review of the
effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and internal control systems
annually by requiring all department managers to undergo a detailed self-
risk assessment process using a common risk management framework. It
covers all material controls, including financial, operational and compliance
controls, on an annual basis. It also considers the adequacy of resources,
staff qualifications and experience, training programs and budget of the
Group’s accounting and financial reporting function.

Under the enterprise risk management framework, policies and procedures
are in place to identify, assess, manage, control and report risks. Such
risks include strategic, credit, operational (administrative, system, human
resources, reputation), market, liquidity, legal and regulatory risks. Exposure
to these risks is continuously monitored by the Board through the Audit
Committee. The internal control system includes a defined management
structure with specified limits of authority. The Board has clearly defined
the authorities and key responsibilities of each division to ensure adequate
checks and balances.

The internal control system has been designed to safeguard the Group’s
assets against unauthorized use of disposition, to ensure the maintenance
of proper accounting records for producing reliable financial information,
and to ensure compliance with applicable laws, regulations and industry
standard.

The Group does not have an internal audit function. During the year
under review, the Board has reviewed the effectiveness of the internal
control system of the Group and there was no major issue but areas for
improvement have been identified by the Audit Committee and appropriate
measures taken. The Board is of the view that the enterprise risk
management and internal control systems in place for the year and up to the
date of issuance of the annual report is effective and adequate. In addition,
the Board is currently of the view that there is no immediate need to set up
an internal audit function within the Group in light of the size, nature and
complexity of the Group’s business. The situation will be reviewed from time
to time.

Financial Reporting

The Directors acknowledged their responsibility for the preparation of the
financial statements of the Group which give a true and fair view of the
financial position of the Group and the Group’s financial performance and
cash flows for the relevant accounting periods, and in compliance with all
the relevant statutory requirements, the Listing Rules requirements and
applicable accounting standards. In preparing the financial statements
of the Group, the appropriate accounting policies are selected, applied
consistently and in accordance with the Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards and appropriate and reasonable judgment and estimates
are made. The Directors have prepared the financial statements for the
reporting year on a going concern basis.

The Board is committed to present a clear, balanced and understandable
assessment of the Group’s performance and financial positions in all its
financial reporting and to ensure relevant publications in a timely manner.
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Auditor’s Statement

The statement by the Company’s external auditor about their reporting
responsibilities on the financial statements for the year ended 31 March
2019 is set out in the “Independent Auditor’s Report” on pages 61 to 66 of
this annual report.

COMPLIANCE WITH MODEL CODE OF THE LISTING RULES

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 to
the Listing Rules as its own code of conduct regarding directors’ securities
transactions. Having made specific enquiry by the Company, the Directors
have confirmed that they have complied with the required standard as set
out in the Model Code throughout the year ended 31 March 2019.

Dividend Policy

The Company has adopted a dividend policy (the “Dividend Policy”) which
sets out the guideline for the Board and the Company to determine (i)
whether dividends are to be declared and paid, and (ii) the level of dividend
to be paid to the shareholders of the Company.

The Dividend Policy is to allow its shareholders to participate in the
Company’s profit whilst to retain adequate cash reserves for its working
capital requirements and future growth.

In determining/recommending the frequency, amount and form of any
dividend in any financial year/period, the Board shall, inter alia, consider the
following factors:

(i) the actual and expected financial performance of the Group;

(i) economic conditions and other internal or external factors that may
have an impact on the business or financial performance and position
of the Group;

(i) the Group’s business strategies and operations, including future cash
commitments and investment needs to sustain the long-term growth
aspect of the business;

(iv)  the current and future liquidity position and capital requirements of
the Group;

(v) the interests of shareholders of the Company; and
(vij  any other factors that the Board may consider relevant.

The dividend payout ratio will vary from year to year. There is no assurance
that dividends will be paid in any particular amount for any given period.

Subject to the Company’s Bye-laws and the Companies Ordinance
(Cap. 622 of the laws of Hong Kong), the Company may declare and
pay dividends by way of cash or scrip or by other means that the Board
considers appropriate.

The Board may determine and pay to the Company’s shareholders interim
dividends as it considers appropriate. Any final dividends declared by the
Company must be approved by the shareholders of the Company at general
meetings and must not exceed the amount recommended by the Board.
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SHARESHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Procedure for convening a special general meeting

Shareholders shall have the right to request the Board to convene a SGM
of the Company. Shareholders holding in aggregate of not less than one-
tenth of the paid up capital of the Company as at the date of deposit
carries the right of voting at general meetings of the Company may send a
written request to the Board to request for a SGM. The written requisition
must state the purposes of the meeting, and must be signed by the
Shareholder(s) and deposited at the Company’s principal place of business
in Hong Kong at Block A, 7th Floor, Hong Kong Spinners Building, Phase
6, 481-4883 Castle Peak Road, Cheung Sha Wan, Kowloon, Hong Kong (for
the attention of the Company Secretarial Department).

The Company would take appropriate actions and make necessary
arrangements, and the Shareholders concerned would be responsible
for the expenses incurred in giving effect thereto in accordance with the
requirements under Section 74 of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (the
“Companies Act”) once a valid requisition is received.

Procedures for putting forward proposals at the general meetings
The following Shareholders are entitled to put forward a proposal (which
may properly be put to the meeting) for consideration at a general meeting
of the Company:

(@) any number of members representing not less than one-twentieth of
the total voting rights of the Company on the date of the requisition;
or

(b)  not less than 100 members holding shares in the Company.

The requisition specifying the proposal, duly signed by the Shareholders
concerned, together with a statement of not more than 1,000 words with
respect to the matter referred to in the proposal or the business to be
dealt with at the general meeting must be deposited at the Company’s
principal place of business in Hong Kong at Block A, 7th Floor, Hong Kong
Spinners Building, Phase 6, 481-483 Castle Peak Road, Cheung Sha Wan,
Kowloon, Hong Kong. The Company would take appropriate actions and
make necessary arrangements, and the Shareholders concerned would be
responsible for the expenses incurred in giving effect thereto in accordance
with the requirements under Sections 79 and 80 of the Companies Act once
valid documents are received.

If a Shareholder wishes to propose a person other a retiring director for
election as a director at a general meeting, the Shareholder should follow
the “Rules and Procedures Governing the Election of Director”, which can
be found on the website of the Company.
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Procedures for putting enquiries by the Shareholders to the Board
Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries and concerns to the
Board in writing via the following channel:

Company Secretarial Department
Block A, 7th Floor

Hong Kong Spinners Building

Phase 6, 481-483 Castle Peak Road
Cheung Sha Wan, Kowloon

Hong Kong

E-mail: info@eminencehk.com

Shareholders may also make enquiries with the Board at the general
meetings of the Company.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the year ended 31 March 2019, the Company has not made any
changes to its Bye-Laws. A consolidated version of the Memorandum of
Association and Bye-Laws of the Company are available on the website of
the Company.
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The directors of the Company (the “Directors”) present this annual report
together with the audited financial statements of Eminence Enterprise
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”) for
the year ended 31 March 2019.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activities of the Group are property development and
investment holdings and the principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out
in note 39 to the consolidated financial statements.

FINANCIAL RESULTS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2019 are set out in the
Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
on pages 67 to 68 of this annual report.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Further discussion and review on the business activities of the Group as
required by Schedule 5 to the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622) of Hong
Kong including an analysis of the Group’s performance, material events
that have occurred since the year end date and an indication of likely
future development in the Group’s business are contained in the preceding
Chairman’s Statement and Management Discussion and Analysis set out on
pages 4 to 16 of this annual report.

Details of the Group’s financial risk management are disclosed in note 32 to
the consolidated financial statements.

In addition, relevant details of the Company’s environmental, social and
governance policies and performance are reported in the Environmental,
Social and Governance Report section set out on pages 48 to 60 of this
annual report.

The Directors were not aware of any non-compliance with the relevant laws
and regulations that had a significant impact on the Group during the year.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and the assets and liabilities of the Group for the
last five (5) financial years is set out on page 189 of this annual report.

DIVIDENDS

The Board does not recommend the payment of a final dividend for the year
ended 31 March 2019 (2018: Nil).

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the Company’s share capital during the year are set
out in note 27 to the consolidated financial statements.
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the Group
during the year are set out in note 14 to the consolidated financial
statements.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

The Group’s investment properties were revalued as at 31 March 2019
by independent firms of qualified professional property valuers and the
gain/loss arising from changes in fair value of investment properties was
recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other
Comprehensive Income. Details of these are set out in note 15 to the
consolidated financial statements.

RESERVES

Details of movements in reserves of the Group and the Company during
the year are set out in the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
on pages 71 to 72 of this annual report and note 41 to the consolidated
financial statements respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

The Company’s reserves available for distribution to its shareholders of the
Company (“Shareholders”) as at 31 March 2019 and 2018 are as follow:

Contributed surplus
Accumulated losses

AR
REHEE

Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended), the contributed
surplus shall not be distributed to the shareholders if there are reasonable
grounds for believing that:

(@)  the company is, or would after the payment be, unable to pay its
liabilities as they become due; or

(b)  the realizable value of the company’s assets would thereby be less
than the aggregate of its liabilities and its issued share capital and
share premium account.

DONATIONS

During the year, the Group made charitable and other donations of
approximately HK$290,000.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of this
report are:

Executive Directors
Mr. Kwong Jimmy Cheung Tim (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Ms. Lui Yuk Chu (Deputy Chairman)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Kan Ka Hon

Mr. Lau Sin Ming

Mr. Foo Tak Ching (Mr. Foo has confirmed that he will not offer himself for re-election

in the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company and shall accordingly retire from
office as of 1 August 2019)

Mr. Wu Koon Yin Welly

The biographical details of the Directors as at the date of this Report are set
out on pages 17 to 18 of this annual report.

In accordance with bye-law 99 of the Bye-Laws, Ms. Lui Yuk Chu, an
executive Director, and Mr. Foo Tak Ching, an independent non-executive
Director, will retire from office by rotation. Ms. Lui Yuk Chu, being eligible,
offers herself for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting of
the Company. Mr. Foo has confirmed that he will not offer himself for re-
election in the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company and
shall accordingly retire from office as of 1 August 2019.

CHANGES IN INFORMATION OF DIRECTORS

In accordance with Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules, the changes of
information required to be disclosed by Directors are set out below.

(1)  Pursuant to the Company’s policies and practices and in
consideration of the increasing level of duties and responsibilities
as well as the market conditions, the remuneration package of the
following Directors were reviewed and revised with effect from 1 April
2018, details of the breakdown are in note 8 to the consolidated
financial statements:

a. Mr. Kwong Jimmy Cheung Tim - annual emoluments was
revised from HK$1,983,600 to HK$2,040,000.

b. Ms. Lui Yuk Chu — annual emoluments was revised from
HK$2,060,760 to HK$2,634,420.

c. The annual director’s fees of HK$140,000 per annum for all
independent non-executive Directors remains the same.

(2)  Mr. Foo Tak Ching will retire from office as an independent non-
executive Director, a member of the Remuneration Committee and
the Audit Committee, and the chairman of the Nomination Committee
with effect from 1 August 2019.

(3) Mr. Wu Koon Yin Welly, an independent non-executive Director, will
be the chairman of the Nomination Committee with effect from 1
August 2019.
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Save as disclosed above, there is no other information required to be
disclosed pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules.

INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

The Company has received annual written confirmation pursuant to Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules from each of the independent non-executive
Directors as regards their independence to the Company for the year
ended 31 March 2019. Despite the fact that each of Mr. Kan Ka Hon, Mr.
Lau Sin Ming and Mr. Foo Tak Ching, has served as an independent non-
executive Director on the Board for more than nine years, the Board is of
the view that their duration of service will not interfere with their exercise of
independent judgement in carrying out their duties and responsibilities as
the independent non-executive Directors and believes that their valuable
knowledge and experience in the Group’s business will continually
benefit the Company and the shareholders of the Company as a whole.
Accordingly, the Company considers all the independent non-executive
Directors are independent.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the Directors is subject to retirement by rotation at the AGM for a
term of up to three years under Article 99 of the Bye-laws of the Company.

None of the Directors being proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting has a service contract with the Group which
is not determinable by the Group within one year without payment of
compensation, other than statutory compensation.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACT

No contract for the management and administration of the whole or any
substantial part of any business of the Company was entered into or existed
during the year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Connected Transaction/
Continuing Connected Transaction” below, there was no contract of
significance relating to the business of the Group to which the Company or
any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at
any time during the year.

CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS
OF SIGNIFICANCE

There was no contract of significance between the Company or any of
its subsidiaries and a controlling Shareholder or any of its subsidiaries
subsisting during or at the end of the year, and there was no contract
of significance for the provision of services to the Company or any of its
subsidiaries by a controlling shareholder or any of its subsidiaries.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 March 2019, the interests and short positions of the Directors and
the chief executives of the Company in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”)),
which were required to be notified to the Company and The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant to Divisions 7
and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions which
they were taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO), or
which were recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company
under Section 352 of the SFO, or which were required to be notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”)
as set out in Appendix 10 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”), were as follows:

Long positions in ordinary shares and underlying shares of the
Company
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Notes:

(i)

(iv)

In the 739,330,692 shares, 93,549,498 shares and 645,781,194 shares are
registered in the name of and beneficially owned by Landmark Profits Limited and
Goodco Development Limited respectively, both are the wholly-owned subsidiaries
of Easyknit International Holdings Limited. Sea Rejoice Limited, which is wholly-
owned by Ms. Lui Yuk Chu, a director of the Company, is interested in approximately
19.09% of the issued share capital of Easyknit International Holdings Limited. Magical
Profits Limited is interested in approximately 31.95% of the issued share capital of
Easyknit International Holdings Limited. Magical Profits Limited is wholly-owned by
Accumulate More Profits Limited which in turn is wholly-owned by The Winterbotham
Trust Company Limited as the trustee of The Magical 2000 Trust (the beneficiaries of
which include Ms. Lui Yuk Chu’s family members other than herself and her spouse).
288,000,000 underlying shares comprise of (i) 100,000,000 convertible shares
(subject to adjustment) to be issued upon the full conversion of the 2017 convertible
note 1; and (ii) 188,000,000 convertible shares (subject to adjustment) to be issued
upon the full convertible of the 2017 convertible note 2 (both are held by Goodco
Development Limited).

These underlying shares are share options granted by the Company on 14 October
2016 to Mr. Koon Wing Yee, the spouse of Ms. Lui Yuk Chu, under the share
option scheme of the Company. By virtue of SFO, Ms. Lui Yuk Chu is deemed to be
interested in these 11,300,000 underlying shares held by Mr. Koon Wing Yee.

These underlying shares are share options granted by the Company on 14 October
2016 to Ms. Lui Yuk Chu under the share option scheme of the Company.

These underlying shares are share options granted by the Company on 14 October
2016 to Mr. Kwong Jimmy Cheung Tim under the share option scheme of the
Company.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2019, none of the Directors or
chief executives of the Company had any interests or short positions in the
shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO), which
would have to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short
positions which they were taken or deemed to have under such provisions
of the SFO), or which were recorded in the register required to be kept by
the Company under Section 352 of the SFO, or which were required to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model

Code.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 March 2019, so far as is known to the Directors and the chief
executive of the Company, the interests and short positions of the persons
or corporations other than a Director or chief executive of the Company, in
the shares or underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO were as
follows:

Long positions in ordinary shares and underlying shares of the

FERRRRD RAAERS 2 Em

20195331 A MARRERREZRITH
ABFH RABREFREBTRABRING
ATBOEBRNA R R S ABRI R o A 40
THEmBOA R BN AR FZE S L E &
5 336 FAFE 2 ERMA

RADREERRG RERERD 2F=

Company

Approximate
percentage of
Name of Number of Number of the total issued
substantial ordinary underlying shares of
shareholder Notes  Capacity shares held shares held Total the Company
fERAFE
BHEER BERE BIROHEE
IERRER ME & ik L RH#A & A
Koon Wing Yee Interest of spouse 739,330,692 299,300,000  1,038,630,692
EXkE EEEa
i Beneficial owner - 11,300,000 11,300,000
EZREA
1,049,930,692 35.40%
Goodco Development Limited Beneficial owner 645,781,194 288,000,000 933,781,194 31.48%
ERERERAT ERHEEA
Easyknit International Holdings Limited i &iii Interest of controlled corporation 739,330,692 288,000,000  1,027,330,692 34.64%
XEAREBERAR REHEE 2 BR
Magical Profits Limited i &ii Interest of controlled corporation 739,330,692 288,000,000  1,027,330,692 34.64%
RIEHIEE R
Accumulate More Profits Limited i &iii Interest of controlled corporation 739,330,692 288,000,000  1,027,330,692 34.64%
REHEE R
The Winterbotham Trust Company Limited i &l Trustee 739,330,692 288,000,000  1,027,330,692 34.64%
REERER fBFEA
Winterbotham Holdings Limited i Interest of controlled corporation 739,330,692 288,000,000  1,027,330,692 34.64%
REHIEE s
Markson International Holding Limited i Interest of controlled corporation 739,330,692 288,000,000  1,027,330,692 34.64%
REHEE R
Christopher Geoffrey Douglas Hooper i Interest of controlled corporation 739,330,692 288,000,000  1,027,330,692 34.64%
RiBEEE 2R
Ivan Geoffrey Douglas Hooper i Interest of controlled corporation 739,330,692 288,000,000  1,027,330,692 34.64%
RiEHEE 2R
Sea Rejoice Limited Interest of controlled corporation 739,330,692 288,000,000  1,027,330,692 34.64%
HEARLA REHIEE 2 S
Madian Star Limited % Beneficial owner - 537,500,000 537,500,000 18.12%
ERHAA
Hu Rong Beneficial owner 598,100,000 - 598,100,000 20.17%
i ERARA
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Notes:

(i)

(i)

(iv)

In the 739,330,692 shares, 93,549,498 shares and 645,781,194 shares are
registered in the name of and beneficially owned by Landmark Profits Limited and
Goodco Development Limited respectively, both are the wholly-owned subsidiaries
of Easyknit International Holdings Limited. Sea Rejoice Limited, which is wholly-
owned by Ms. Lui Yuk Chu, a director of the Company, is interested in approximately
19.09% of the issued share capital of Easyknit International Holdings Limited. Magical
Profits Limited is interested in approximately 31.95% of the issued share capital of
Easyknit International Holdings Limited. Magical Profits Limited is wholly-owned by
Accumulate More Profits Limited which in turn is wholly-owned by The Winterbotham
Trust Company Limited as the trustee of The Magical 2000 Trust (the beneficiaries of
which include Ms. Lui Yuk Chu’s family members other than herself and her spouse).
Mr. Koon Wing Yee, being the spouse of Ms. Lui Yuk Chu, is deemed to be interested
in the 739,330,692 shares. For the 299,300,000 underlying shares, 288,000,000
underlying shares comprise of (i) 100,000,000 convertible shares (subject to
adjustment) to be issued upon the full conversion of the 2017 convertible note 1; and
(i) 188,000,000 convertible shares (subject to adjustment) to be issued upon the full
convertible of the 2017 convertible note 2 (both are held by Goodco Development
Limited) and the remaining 11,300,000 underlying shares are the share options
granted to Ms. Lui Yuk Chu on 14 October 2016 under the share option scheme of
the Company. Ms. Lui Yuk Chu is the spouse of Mr. Koon Wing Yee.

These underlying shares are share options granted by the Company on 14 October
2016 to Mr. Koon Wing Yee under the share option scheme of the Company.

The Winterbotham Trust Company Limited is trustee of The Magical 2000 Trust (the
beneficiaries of which included Ms. Lui Yuk Chu’s family members other than herself
and her spouse). The Winterbotham Trust Company Limited is owned as to 75% by
Winterbotham Holdings Limited (“Winterbotham Holdings”) and 25% by Markson
International Holding Limited (“Markson”) respectively. Winterbotham Holdings is
owned as to approximately 99.99% by Mr. Christopher Geoffrey Douglas Hooper.
Approximately 99.99% of Markson is owned by Mr. lvan Geoffrey Douglas Hooper.

Madian Star Limited is the noteholder of a convertible note issued by the Company
on 12 June 2015 in the aggregate principal amount of HK$86,000,000 for a term of 2
years with the conferring rights to convert shares on the basis of the conversion price
of HK$0.85 per share. The conversion price was adjusted to HK$1.81 on 14 October
2015, and then to HK$0.33 with the approval of the shareholders of the Company
on 7 January 2016. With effect from 11 May 2017, the terms of this convertible note
were revised to a term of 7 years at a conversion price of HK$0.16 per share. On 3
May 2019, a circular was published the Company in relation to the amended revision
of terms of this convertible note. If the proposed alterations are approved by the
shareholders of the Company at the special general meeting on 21 May 2019, the
conversion price will be changed to HK$0.06 per share.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

On 29 June 2012, a share option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”)
was adopted and approved by the shareholders of the Company for
a period of 10 years commencing on the adoption date whereby the
Board, may at its discretion, grant share options to any eligible participant
to subscribe for the shares in the Company subject to the terms and
conditions as stipulated in the Share Option Scheme. The Share Option
Scheme will expire on 28 June 2022.
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2017 F AR EE — 1 RS BB TETZ
100,000,000 & AJ 3¢ # ik f (7] F 3% ) ¢ R (i)
2017 F AT HRIR SR — 2 BB L R A T RITZ
188,000,000 f& A 5. #2 ik fn (A] A %E) - M&S
RESZERARARFAE + H# 11,300,000 &8
R 1D BT 2016 F 10 A 14 RARIEA A B fE AL 12
AEETERRLLOBERE  c EEURLLT AT
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(ii) ERERGEARATR2016F10 A 14 BIR
BRERETERTEKRLE -

(i) RAFEFRIZFEAR LA A The Magical 2000 Trust
(ERBSAREEERLLZREKE  BFE
FHERAMER®S) ZE7EA ° Winterbotham
Holdings Limited ([ Winterbotham Holdings])
K Markson International Holdings Limited
([Markson]) B ERETAR AR D BI#
B75% 25% 2 #E % ° Christopher Geoffrey
Douglas Hooper %t 4 # A Winterbotham Holdings
99.99% 7 # % ° lvan Geoffrey Douglas Hooper 7t
H A Markson 99.99% 2 #EzS ©

(iv) Madian Star Limited A4~ 2 77 201546 A 128
172 FF HAZN £ 4858 /5 86,000,000 78 7T AT AR 22
BRBEFAA  RBRETEBRRH 2 HIRER
FH%0.857 7T - H2015F 10 A 14 B KR (EHA%
A1.818 7T - ARER 201651 B 7 AR FIR
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Further details of the Share Option Scheme are set out in note 28 to the
consolidated financial statements.

At the annual general meeting of the Company held on 24 July 2017, the
scheme mandate limit for the Share Option Scheme was refreshed to allow
the Company to issue a maximum of 191,183,205 share options under the
Share Option Scheme, representing 6.45% of the total number of issued
shares of the Company (i.e. 2,965,832,059 shares) as at 31 March 2019.

The movements in the share options granted under the Share Option
Scheme during the year are shown below:

BB B 2 — S HFHA RS MR
F=MiE28 -

R2017F7A24H BT 2 AR AR EEF
AE L BRETEZEERBERECDER
o AHARGREBERERRENEEHTES
191,183,205 7 B AR 4 - (RN A &R 20194 3
A31 BB EE(B12,965,832,059 i% A%
) 2.6.45% °

WA - BRI B AR
T

Number of share options
B
Balance Granted Exercised Cancelled Lapsed Balance Exercise
Category and asat during during during during asat Date of Exercise price per
name of participant 01/042018 the year the year the year theyear  31/03/2019 grant of period share
H2018E #2019
BHRsEE 4A18 3A31A
#4/%8 B ERiRi R EniE FR%H HE b=t k8 SRARE
HKS)
(A1)
Directors EE
Kwong Jimmy Cheung Tm -~ BIER 11,300,000 - - - - 11300000 14402016 14/10/2016- 0.176
18/10/2019
Lui Yuk Chy EEK 11,300,000 - - - - 11300000 14/1022016  14/10/2016- 0.176
18/10/2019
Other participants ik 67,800,000 - - - [226000000 45200000 1411022016 14/10/2016- 0.176
13/1072019
Total At 90,400,000 - - - (226000000 67,800,000

The consideration paid for each grant of share options was HK$1.00. The
exercise period for the share options granted is 36 months from the date of
grant. The closing price of the Company’s shares on the date of grant was
HK$0.126 per share.

During the year, (i) 22,600,000 share options were lapsed; and (i) no share
options were granted and exercised. As at the date of this report, the total
number of shares available for issue under the Share Option Scheme is
78,183,205 which represents approximately 2.64% of the total number of
issued shares of the Company as at 31 March 2019 (i.e. 2,965,832,059
shares).

FNBERRAN ZRER1.00087T - R
FEAR R X H B AR AT 361E A AT T LATTHE ©
RAT A P H A E 2 W B A& 0.126
BT °

RER - () 22,600,000 BERRAED SR X (i)
WER M RITERBRE -  RAREBH - RIE
BE RS AERT BT B I TROAR 1D 4820k 78,183,205
B AERARQTF201943 A31 HE BT
P HaE %) 2.64% (B12,965,832,059 %) °
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DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR DEBENTURES

Other than the Share Option Scheme disclosed above, at no time during the
year was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement
to enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means of acquisition of shares
in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate, and none
of the Directors or any of their spouses or children under the age of 18,
was granted any right to subscribe for the equity or debt securities of the
Company or any other body corporate nor had exercised any such right.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

Interests of Directors of the Company in competing businesses as at 31
March 2019 required to be disclosed pursuant to Rule 8.10 of the Listing
Rules were as follows:

Nature of
Name of director

BEEnE

Name of company

NREHE BREEBME

competing business
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EENRFERES
201943 A31H « RIF_EMARAIZES. 10168
EARANRBEBREENRFEBRSNAT

Nature of interest

EEME

Ms. Lui Yuk Chu Easyknit International
Holdings Limited
(“Easyknit”)

loan financing

EES Yo

As the Board of Directors of the Company is independent of the boards of
Easyknit and maintains four (4) Independent Non-Executive Directors, the
Group operates its businesses independently of, and at arm’s length from,
the businesses of Easyknit.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE COMPANY’S
LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the year.

CONNECTED TRANSACTION/CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTION

(1)  Project Swap

On 19 November 2018, Easyknit Properties Holdings Limited
(“Easyknit Seller”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of Easyknit
International Holdings Limited (“Easyknit”), entered into a conditional
sale and purchase agreement with Sonic Hover Limited (“Eminence
Buyer”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company. Pursuant to
which, Easyknit Seller shall sell and Eminence Buyer shall acquire the
entire equity interest in Wellmake Investments Limited (“Wellmake”),
which the material asset is Easy Tower. The sale consideration was
HK$470,000,000.

Property investment,
property development,
security investment and

KEBBREEERAR([KE]) DERE  PERER -
EHRRENERBE

Director of Easyknit and
substantial shareholder
of Easyknit

KBEERKBETIERR

ARREFEEUMNKREFES  LHR4ID
BMIFITES - AEEBLKEREFIND
BT EEEEEET o

BE - HEREEARQFZ EHES

RARFE - ANA R SE AR E D R
B HERERARREF EHES -

BERS HEEEXS

(1) EiEA

2018411 A19H » Easyknit
Properties Holdings Limited ([ k& &
F 1) RxEEFEEEERAR([X&E])
)% & M8 A 7] £ Sonic Hover Limited
BARARNEENRBAR(SLER])
RINERGEERE B KBEH
HEEMSILE FKERERERR
AE([BEDHE2BRERT  ME
LHBERBERKERES - HERER
470,000,000/ 7T °
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On the same day, Kingbest Capital Holdings Limited (“Eminence
Seller”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into
a conditional sale and purchase agreement with Gold Anchor
Developments Limited (“Easyknit Buyer”), a wholly-owned
subsidiary of Easyknit. Pursuant to which, Eminence Seller shall sell
and Easyknit Buyer shall acquire the entire equity interest in Total
Expect Limited, which the material asset is Inverness Road Property.
The sale consideration was HK$1,035,000,000.

The aforementioned acquisition and disposal took place
simultaneously; it was approved by the independent shareholders
of the Company on 28 February 2019 and was duly completed on 8
March 2019.

Furthermore, on completion, a property management agreement
(“Property Management Agreement”) was entered into between
Wellmake, which was then a subsidiary of the Company after the
completion, and UrbanMode (HK) Limited (“Manager”), a wholly-
owned subsidiary of Easyknit. Pursuant to which, Wellmake
appointed the Manager to manage Easy Tower for an initial period
of three years from completion. Easyknit group has been providing
property management services for Easy Tower and to facilitate the
smooth transition of Easy Tower ownership without disruption to the
management of Easy Tower, the Manager will manage and maintain
Easy Tower after completion.

As Easyknit indirectly owns approximately 24.93% of the issued
share capital of the Company, it is a substantial shareholder and
a connected person of the Company as per the Listing Rules and
thus, the sale and purchase agreements constituted a connected
transaction of the Company.

As for the Property Management Agreement, since all applicable
ratios are less than 5% and the annual consideration is less than
HK$3,000,000, it is an exemption continuing connected transaction
for the Company.

Ms. Lui Yuk Chu (being an executive director of the Company, an
indirect substantial shareholder of the Company, and an executive
director and substantial shareholder of Easyknit) had abstained from
voting on the related Board resolutions and on the relevant special
general meeting of the Company in view of her interests in the sale
and purchase agreements and Property Management Agreement.

For further details of the acquisition and disposal, please refer to the
joint announcement dated 21 November 2018 and the joint circular
dated 12 February 2019.

KRR - AARRIZENBARESE
AERARAR((BWES ] kiR
& H{8B 27 Gold Anchor Developments
Limited ([KBEHF DIV BKGEEE
W& o Bt mUEABEEmMKERE
75 #5428 Total Expect Limited 892 ZBA%
HeREZS © i Total Expect Limited HiE
REERESIETEME - HEREAR
1,035,000,000/8 7T °

At RN E B R TT 0 R 20194F
2 A28 HEARQ BB AR EALE - W
201943 A8 HIEX A °
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XEZEBRBNMNB AR L WEER
et ([MIESEWZ]) Bt - BLT
MEBABEKERS  VRFHAE=
FoxkBER—HERAKEESRRME
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Tenancy Agreement

On 26 August 2015, Eminence Heights Limited (formerly known
as Easyknit Worldwide Company Limited) (“EHL”, an indirectly
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company) as tenant entered into a
tenancy agreement with Wellmake Investments Limited (a wholly-
owned subsidiary of Easyknit which is a substantial shareholder of
the Company) as landlord in relation to the formal renewal of the
tenancy of a premises at Block A, 7th Floor, Hong Kong Spinners
Building, Phase 6, 481-483 Castle Peak Road, Cheung Sha Wan,
Kowloon, Hong Kong, including decoration, electrical appliances,
furniture, air conditioning facilities and a car parking spaces on 4th
floor (the “Premises”) for a term of 2 years from 1 September 2015
to 31 August 2017 at a monthly rental of HK$208,000 (the “2015
Tenancy”). The annual cap is HK$2,496,000, being the aggregate
annual rental for the Premises based on the monthly rental of
HK$208,000.

On 19 October 2016, EHL received a notification from Grandcorp
Development Limited (“GDL”, a wholly-owned subsidiary of Easyknit),
informing that GDL is the new landlord with effect from 18 October
2016 and mentioning that the remaining period of the tenancy shall
continue to follow all the terms and conditions as mentioned in the
2015 Tenancy.

On 24 August 2017, EHL and GDL entered into a new tenancy
agreement (the “2017 Tenancy”) for the Premises for a term of three
years from 1 September 2017 to 31 August 2020 at a monthly rental
of HK$208,000. The annual cap of the rental to be paid by EHL is
HK$2,496,000, being the aggregate annual rental for the Premises
based on the monthly rental of HK$208,000.

Details of the 2015 Tenancy and 2017 Tenancy are set out in the
Company’s announcements dated 26 August 2015 and 28 August
2017 respectively.

During the year ended 31 March 2019, EHL paid the aggregate
rental for the Premises of HK$2,496,000 (2018: HK$2,496,000) to
GDL pursuant to the 2017 Tenancy. The aggregate rental amount
does not exceed the relevant amount capped in accordance with
the Company’s announcement dated 28 August 2017 as mentioned
above.

Pursuant to the Listing Rules, the independent non-executive
Directors have reviewed the above continuing connected transaction
and the report of the auditor and confirmed that the continuing
connected transaction was entered into (i) in the ordinary and usual
course of business of the Group; (i) either on normal commercial
terms or on terms no less favourable to the Group than terms
available to (or from) independent third parties; and (jii) in accordance
with the 2017 Tenancy governing it on terms that are fair and
reasonable and in the interests of the Company and the shareholders
of the Company as a whole.

@
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The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the Group’s
continuing connected transaction with regard to the 2017 Tenancy in
accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements
3000 (Revised) “Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or
Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and with reference
to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected
Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The auditor of
the Company has issued an unqualified letter containing its findings
and conclusions in respect of the continuing connected transaction
disclosed by the Group in accordance with Listing Rule 14A.56. A
copy of the auditor’s letter has been provided by the Company to the
Stock Exchange.

The related party transactions as disclosed in note 30 to the consolidated
financial statements also fell under the definition of “connected transaction”
or “continuing connected transactions” in Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules. The Group has complied with the disclosure requirements, where
applicable, in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The related party transactions which were undertaken in the normal course
of business are set out in note 30 to the consolidated financial statements.
For those related party transactions that constitutes connected transactions
or continuing connected transactions (as the case may be) (other than those
described in the above section headed “Connected Transaction/Continuing
Connected Transaction”) under the Listing Rules, these transactions are
exempt from reporting, annual review, announcement and independent
shareholders’ approval requirement under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Bye-law 178 of the Company’s Bye-laws provides that, among others,
every director and other officers of the Company shall be indemnified and
secured harmless out of the assets and profits of the Company from and
against all actions, costs, charges, losses, damages and expenses which
they or any of them shall or may incur sustain by or by reason of any act
done, concurred in or omitted in or about the execution of their duty, or
supposed duty, in their respective offices and related matters provided
that the indemnity shall not extend to any matter in respect of any fraud
or dishonesty which may attach to any of them. In this connection, the
Company has arranged directors’ and officers’ liability insurance coverage
for the Directors and officers of the Company during the year.

MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

During the year, the five (5) largest suppliers of the Group accounted for
approximately 98.3% of the Group’s purchases and the largest supplier
accounted for approximately 87.0% of the Group’s purchases.

The five (5) largest customers of the Group accounted for approximately
26.7% of the Group’s revenue and the largest customer accounted for
approximately 7.1% of the Group’s revenue.

None of the Directors and their respective close associates or any
shareholders of the Company (which to the knowledge of the Directors
owns more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) have any
interest in the five (5) largest suppliers or customers of the Group.
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PROPERTY VALUATION

Property valuations in respect of the Group’s investment properties in
Hong Kong and the People’s Republic of China have been carried out by
Vigers Appraisal and Consulting Limited, an independent firm of qualified
professional property valuers. For the investment properties in Singapore,
the valuation as at 31 March 2019 was carried out by Edmund Tie &
Company (SEA) Pte Ltd, another independent firm of qualified professional
property valuers. Their valuations were based on residual value approach,
income capitalisation approach and/or direct comparison method as the
valuation methodologies and were used in preparing 2018/19 final results.
The Group’s investment properties were valued at HK$1,663 million (2018:
HK$1,657 million), an increase over 2018 after adjusted for the exchange
adjustments and additions of investment properties. The increase in fair
value of approximately HK$46 million was recognized in the Consolidated
Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income for the
year. Development properties and non-investment properties of the Group
were stated at cost less impairment, if any, in these consolidated financial
statements.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Group is exposed to various risks in its businesses and operations.
Through internal control systems and procedures, the Company has taken
reasonable steps to ensure that significant risks are monitored and do not
adversely affect the Group’s operations and performances. The relevant
risks are managed on an ongoing basis. A non-exhaustive list of principal
risks and uncertainties facing the Group is set out below.

Market Risk

The Group’s revenue is principally derived from Hong Kong. The conditions
of the economy as a whole and the property market may have significant
impact to the Group’s financial results and conditions.

Compliance Risk

The Group’s operations require compliance with local and oversea laws
(including those of PRC, Bermuda, Singapore and British Virgin Islands)
and regulations, including but not limited to property sale, management
and construction as well as companies and securities laws. The Group has
constantly monitored its compliance with relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the Group.

ACCOUNT OF KEY RELATIONSHIP

The Group adheres to the standards of business ethics, this underpins how
we conduct business with our customers, suppliers and contractors.

Employees

The Group value its employees who are the Group’s most important
assets. Staff are rewarded with competitive remuneration packages and
benefits. The Group is committed to fostering a conducive, harmonious and
discrimination-free working environment.

Occupational health and safety is the top priority across the Group’s
operations. Safety guidelines are established to safeguard the employees
from any occupational hazards.
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Customers

The Group strive to provide high quality and reliable services to its
customers. The privacy of the Group’s customers are well protected
through a privacy policy. Any complaints from customers are handled and
investigated in a thorough and efficient manner.

Suppliers

The Group is committed to forging collaborative partnership with its
suppliers and have a database of approved suppliers and vendors who are
assessed on a regular basis.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emoluments policy of employees of the Group is set up by the Executive
Directors on the basis of employee performance, experience and prevailing
industry practice.

The emolument of the Directors is determined by the Board after review and
on the recommendation of the Remuneration Committee, having regard to
factors such as the time commitment and responsibilities of Directors, the
Company’s performance and the prevailing market practice.

The Group has adopted the Share Option Scheme as an incentive to
Directors and eligible participants. Details of the Share Option Scheme are
set out in the section headed “Share Option Scheme” above.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Bye-Laws although
there are no restrictions against such rights under the laws in Bermuda
where the Company is incorporated.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, the Company has maintained
sufficient public float of its shares as required under the Listing Rules for the
year ended 31 March 2019.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has an audit committee in compliance with the requirement
of the Listing Rules and the Corporate Governance Code and Corporate
Governance Report as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules. The
principal responsibilities of the Audit Committee is to review and supervise
the financial reporting process and risk management and internal control
systems of the Group. The Audit Committee comprises four (4) independent
non-executive Directors as at 31 March 2019. The Audit Committee has
reviewed the audited financial statements of the Group for the year ended
31 March 2019.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Details of the Company’s corporate governance practices are set out in the
“Corporate Governance Report” from pages 19 to 31 of this annual report.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

The environmental, social and governance policies and performance
of the Company for the year ended 31 March 2019 are set out in the
“Environmental, Social and Governance Report” from pages 48 to 60 of this
annual report.

EVENTS AFTER THE END OF THE REPORTING PERIOD

@i

(ii)

Tender of Office Units and Car Parks in Capital Centre

On 24 April 2019, the Company, through its appointed solicitors,
issued a tender notice inviting all interested tenderers to submit
tenders to the Company for the acquisition of office units 01, 02,
03, 05, 06, 07, 08 and 09 on the 12th Floor and carparking spaces
numbers 329, 330 and 331 on the 3rd Floor of Capital Centre, No.
151 Gloucester Road, Hong Kong and the Intermediate Subsidiaries
(as defined in the circular dated 20 November 2018 published by the
Company). The tender application remained open for 21 days and
was closed on 15 May 2019.

Amended Revision of Terms of 2015CB

On 8 April, 2019, the Company and Madian Star Limited, the
noteholder of the 3% per annum coupon rate convertible note
issued by the Company on 12 June 2015 (“2015CB”), entered into
a fourth deed of amendment, which provides for alterations to the
2015CB i.e. revises the conversion price from HK$0.16 to HK$0.06
and the imposition of restrictions on conversions that would lead to
an offer being required under Rule 26 of the Takeovers Code and/
or the Company breaching the public float requirement under the
Listing Rules (“Revised Alterations”). The Revised Alterations are
subject to the approval of shareholders of the Company at the special
general meeting on 21 May 2019 and the Listing Committee of the
Stock Exchanging on granting the listing of and permission to deal in
the conversion shares to be allotted and issued under the 2015CB
after the Revised Alteration. Further information can be found in the
announcements dated 27 March 2019 and 9 April 2019, and the
circular dated 3 May 2019.

Details of the significant events occurring after the end of the reporting
period are set out in note 40 to the consolidated financial statements.

AUDITOR

The financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2019 were audited by
Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu.

By order of the Board

KWONG JIMMY CHEUNG TIM
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
Hong Kong, 17 May 2019
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report
REHERERRS

OVERVIEW

At Eminence, our vision is to promote economic and social values for the
community and minimise our impact on the environment to demonstrate our
sustainability performance and meet the expectations of our stakeholders.
We are committed to addressing sustainability issues and managing
Environmental, Social and Governance (“ESG”) risks through prudent
business planning and implementation. The Corporate Social Responsibility
(“CSR”) Committee formulates its CSR policy to align business development
with the Group’s CSR goals and commitments. The Board of Directors,
assisted by the CSR Committee, have the overall responsibility to review
policies, oversee sustainability issues and address ESG-related risks. This
robust governance structure allows the Group to monitor and manage ESG-
related matters effectively.

DISCUSSION ON ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND
PERFORMANCE

We are dedicated to building a cleaner environment to our stakeholders
through the responsible use of resources and optimisation of energy
efficiency at our office and properties. Our internal environmental policies
enable us to implement environmentally friendly practices in our office and
properties and foster behavioural change among employees.

The Group strives to minimise greenhouse gas (“GHG”) emissions and
reduce waste generation and energy consumption in our daily operations.
We address potential environmental impacts by undertaking initiatives
such as paper use reduction, energy conservation and waste and resource
management in offices. These environmental initiatives contribute to
inspiring environmental awareness and promoting a more sustainable
business and operating practice.

ACCOUNT OF KEY RELATIONSHIPS WITH EMPLOYEES,
CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

Employees

Caring and nurturing our employees are Eminence’s priorities in sustainable
development. To provide a fair workplace through promoting non-
discrimination and diversity to employees, we reward our employees with
competitive salaries and benefits which reference local and industrial
standards. To uphold high standards of business ethics, our Employees
Handbook specifies clear expectations for professional conduct.

Eminence places significant emphasis on human capital development and
creation of a supportive and safe work environment. We arrange external
training opportunities including various training courses and seminars to
encourage our employees to pursue continuous learning and development.
Our internal safety guidelines were formulated in accordance with the
requirements set out by the Labour Department to minimise risks. During
the year, we fully comply with all relevant health and safety regulations and
we are pleased to report that there were no work-related fatalities or lost
days due to work injury.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report
REHERERRE

Customers, Suppliers and Subcontractors

The Group believes that incorporating our sustainability values such as
business integrity and customer satisfaction into our value chain would
enhance our overall sustainability performance. We strictly follow regulatory
requirements, industry standards and internal procedures for the quality
assurance process as well as supplier selection. In addition, the Group’s
privacy policy is established in accordance with the local regulations to
ensure that all personal data are handled in strict confidence. In cases
where quality concerns arise, a thorough investigation will be carried out
and corrective actions will be promptly implemented.

Compliance Status with Relevant Laws and Regulations that Have a
Significant Impact on the Business

During the year, there were no reported cases of non-compliance with
relevant laws and regulations that have had a significant impact on business
regarding the environment, health and safety, labour standards, and data
privacy.

The Environmental, Social and Governance (“ESG”) Report details the
sustainability performance, policies and strategies of Eminence Enterprise
Limited (“Eminence” or “we”) and its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”)
between 1 April 2018 and 31 March 2019 (the “Year”).

1. REPORTING STANDARD AND SCOPE
The Group’s ESG Report has been prepared in accordance with the
ESG Reporting Guide (“ESG Guide”) issued by the Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (“HKEX”). A content index is included at the
end of this Report to demonstrate compliance with the ESG Guide.

This ESG Report provides an overview of our sustainability vision,
performance and initiatives in our operations, responding to our
stakeholders’ interests in the environmental, social, and corporate
governance aspects of the Group. The reporting scope of the Year
includes principal operations of the Group, namely, our residential,
commercial and industrial properties in Hong Kong and industrial
properties in mainland China. This report also presents the progress
of key performance indicators (“KPIs”) towards our targets in the past
year with references to the ESG Guide. The Group is committed to
maintaining standards of corporate social responsibility and strictly
complies with relevant laws and regulations.
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Materiality Assessment

In line with the Reporting Principles of the ESG Guide, a materiality
assessment was conducted to identify material sustainability issues
for Eminence’s disclosure in the Year. This process follows three
steps:

Step 1: Identification

° ESG disclosures of five peer companies in the property industry
were reviewed to identify the material issues common in the
industry.

Step 2: Prioritisation

o The material aspects which were identified through peer
benchmarking were consolidated, creating a list of relevant
material ESG issues to be brought forward for validation.

Step 3: Validation

° The independent consultant helped to prioritise the findings
from the first two steps and our senior management then
confirmed a list of material ESG issues and the relevant aspects
and KPIs for disclosure in this report.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

At Eminence, Corporate Social Responsibility (“CSR”) is a pivotal
part of our vision. We work meticulously to maintain good corporate
governance practices, strengthen economic and social values within
the community and minimise adverse impacts on the environment
arising from our operations. Our Group also endeavours to contribute
to community development and the well-being of the environment
via engaging in charitable initiatives, upskilling our employees, and
nurturing environmental awareness.

An effective governance structure is crucial to properly manage
sustainability issues and mitigate ESG-related risks. Our CSR
Committee is established to assist the Board of Directors to review
the Group’s policies and oversee sustainability directions. The
Group also establishes its CSR policies to set out long term goals
and sustainability strategies. A number of CSR issues, including
workplace quality, environmental conservation, operating practices,
and community engagement, were discussed during meetings during
the Year.

Committed to positively influencing our community, we continue to
sponsor numerous external community programmes and support
a charitable foundation which focuses on enhancing the livelihood
of the underserved communities through donations and ongoing
support for charities and other social enterprises. This foundation
also offers scholarships to underprivileged youth with academic
excellence through different educational institutions. Additionally, we
encourage our employees to actively give back to the community via
volunteer works.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

3. OUR ENVIRONMENT

3.1

3.2

3.3

Introduction

We understand the nature of our business operations may
not have significant impacts on the environment. As an
environmentally responsible corporate, we have actively
promoted environmental stewardship at our office and
properties for a more sustainable future. Following our well-
defined internal policies on environmental protection, we
identify and manage sustainability issues associated with our
operations, while focusing on three major areas at our office
premise, including energy saving, reduction of paper use and
water resource management. During the year, there were no
non-compliance cases relating to air and greenhouse gas
emissions, discharges into water and land, and generation of
hazardous and non-hazardous waste.

Energy Consumption and Emissions

Driven to minimise our carbon footprint, we actively seize
opportunities to improve energy efficiency at our office through
adopting various energy-saving initiatives. For instance, we
have installed energy efficient lighting systems at our office
and ensured our equipment is labelled with Grade 1 Energy
Labels. In addition, the fan-coils at our commercial and
industrial buildings are switched off daily after 8 pm. The
indoor air temperature is maintained at 25.5°C to optimise
energy consumption. Moving forward, we will continue to
identify energy-saving opportunities to further augment our
sustainability performance.

Waste and Resource Management

Eminence has introduced a comprehensive approach to waste
and resource management within our daily operations. We
work to build a paperless office where the use of electronic
communication and documents are widely promoted. When
hardcopy documents are necessary, we encourage employees
to adopt double-sided printing and reuse paper whenever
possible. As part of our water-saving initiatives, we conduct
regular inspections on pipes and taps to prevent water leakage.
Additionally, we distribute posters and signs in common areas
and washrooms to remind staff of conserving valuable water
resources. Through instilling an environmentally friendly culture
at the workplace, we are working towards a sustainable model
for business development.
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3.4

Cultivating Environmental Awareness

We believe fostering behavioural changes is conducive to
sustainable development. To build a lasting green culture
within the Group, we have implemented internal environmental
policies for our office and properties, which serve as practical
guidance for staff on energy conservation, waste reduction and
resource management. For instance, the guidelines suggest
purchasing office equipment certified with energy efficient
labels, replacing obsolete lights with energy efficient light
tubes, and avoiding unnecessary printing. To further promote
environmental consciousness and facilitate sustainable
behaviours, we plan to place recycling bins as well as
implement other recycling initiatives at our office premise.

4. OURPEOPLE

4.1

4.2

Introduction

Employees are the greatest asset contributing to the
continued success of the Group. We are steadfast in building
an inclusive, safe and harmonious working environment
for our employees, with a range of on-the-job training and
development opportunities to fulfil their professional and
personal aspirations.

Caring Company

As an equal opportunity employer, we ensure our employees
receive fair treatment throughout the employment processes,
including recruitment, promotion, training and development,
regardless of race, religion, gender, disability, family status, age
or any other basis restricted by law. To safeguard and protect
human rights, child and forced labour is strictly prohibited.

Our remuneration policy is in place to ensure employees are
rewarded with fair and competitive remuneration packages
based on qualifications, working performance and market
trends. The Human Resources Department is responsible
for annual performance appraisals and determine the
arrangement of promotions and salary increment. We also
provide employees with comprehensive fringe benefits such as
maternity leave, paternity leave, hospital insurance, overtime
compensation, and outpatient medical subsidy. Taking staff
emotional and mental well-being into account, we work to
foster positive and harmonious relationships at the workplace.
To this end, regular staff engagements, including mealtime
gatherings three times a week and weekly breakfasts, are
arranged to encourage staff to mingle and communicate with
each other. To celebrate festive seasons together with our staff
families, we organised annual Christmas buffets and Chinese
New Year gatherings that enable our staff to socialise in an
environment outside of work.
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During the year, there were no non-compliance cases relating
to compensation and dismissal, recruitment and promotion,
working hours, rest periods, equal opportunity, diversity, anti-
discrimination, welfare and the relevant legislation including,
but not limited to, the Minimum Wage Ordinance (Cap. 608 of
the Laws of Hong Kong) and the Employment Ordinance (Cap.
57 of the Laws of Hong Kong).

Occupational Health and Safety

The Group places a heavy emphasis on the occupational health
and safety of its employees at the workplace. In compliance
with the Occupational Safety and Health Ordinance (Cap. 509
of the Laws of Hong Kong), safety guidelines and systems
are established to protect employees against potential
occupational hazards at the workplace and minimise the risk
of work injuries. Emergency policies in case of potentially
dangerous situations, such as typhoons and rainstorm
warnings, are also clearly outlined in our employee safety
guidelines. With the high safety awareness of our employees,
there were no work-related fatalities or lost days due to work
injury during the Year.

Training and Development

During the Year, Eminence provided staff with numerous
training and development opportunities to further augment their
working performance and support their career advancement.
Employees are also encouraged to participate in external
training arranged by the Group. Through attending different
training courses and seminars, our staff has gained practical
skills and professional knowledge which enhance their
competitiveness and competence in performing their job
duties.

Business Ethics

Eminence is devoted to upholding high standards of integrity
when conducting business. The Group’s expectations for
professional conduct are clearly outlined in the Employee
Handbook. Staff is also required to strictly comply with the
Prevention of Bribery Ordinance (Cap. 201 of the Laws of Hong
Kong), Money Lenders Ordinance (Cap. 163 of the Laws of
Hong Kong) and Anti-Money Laundering and Counter-Terrorist
Financing Ordinance (Cap. 615 of the Laws of Hong Kong).

Our whistle-blowing policy provides channels for employees at
all levels to report violations and raise concerns of any improper
behaviours including acts of corruption or bribery. The Group’s
gift policy sets our instructions and guidelines for handling
conflict of interest and our standards of conduct. Any cases of
corruption or bribery observed by an employee may be raised
in writing directly to management. To ensure whistle-blowers
to raise grievances without fear of reprisal, all whistle-blowing
disclosures are treated confidentially.
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During the Year, there were no non-compliance with laws and
regulations relevant to bribery, extortion, fraud and money
laundering.

5.  OUR VALUE CHAIN

5.1

5.2

Supply Chain Management

At Eminence, we strive to extend our sustainability
considerations beyond the Group and engage supply chain
partners who share our dedication to sustainable development.
As set out in our internal guidelines, we conduct performance
reviews and evaluations on all approved suppliers and vendors
on a regular basis to ensure quality services are delivered.
Through integrating our sustainability practices into the
process of our supply chain management, we are able to take
a systematic approach to mitigate ESG-related risks that may
affect our business operations.

Responsible Services

In recognition of the importance of maintaining high quality
standards, the Group has developed our quality assurance
processes that detail the monitoring of supplier performance,
quality control, staff training and development, and corrective
and preventive action plans, while adhering to both national
and international standards. Besides, we understand our
customers place a great deal of trust in our organisation to
handle and protect their personal data and privacy. To this end,
we have formulated our privacy policy in line with the Personal
Data (Privacy) Ordinance (Chapter 486 of the Laws of Hong
Kong) ensuring all confidential data is handled in a safe and
secure manner.

A complaint-handling mechanism is in place handling and
investigating complaints from customers in a thorough and
timely manner. During the Year, there were no complaint
cases relating to health and safety, advertising, labelling and
privacy matters relating to products and services provided and
methods of redress.
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OUR COMMUNITY

As a responsible corporate citizen, Eminence is committed to
contributing positively to the community development with special
focuses on education, sports and health care awareness. Through
in-kind donations and partnerships with charitable and non-profit
making organisations, we endeavour to build a more connected and
vibrant society. During the Year, the Group continued to provide
student scholarships at educational institutes and raised funds in
support of tutorial classes organised by Principal Chan Free Tutorial
World for the underprivileged students. To better promote health
care awareness among the local community, we made donations to
the Global Chinese Breast Cancer Organizations Alliance through
their health talks. We believe the influences of sports in breaking
barriers between different segments of society. As such, the Group
made huge contributions to the Hong Kong Paralympic Committee &
Sports Association for the Physically Disabled to help with their Run
for Paralympians 2019. We also sponsored the 2019 Wuxing District
Basketball Competition and the 16th Sports Meeting of Zhejiang
Province to further advocate a healthy lifestyle among the general
public. In total, we have contributed around HKD$290,000 to different
charitable foundations and events. Moving ahead, Eminence will
continue to engage its staff to create more positive impacts on the
community we serve.

HKEX KPI DATA TABLE
x KPI

BRTERENIEE

EAMNHLE

EAASTINGEQAR  BLUERN
RAELRNERIEEBEENEE - LH
BEMEKE BEREEEH - BB
BrERENIERFIMERNIBE LA E -
BB B E EEHE N EE T
G RAFER  NEBBELRHBH#
BRHBARBSUNERIERRE
SEBERABERNSEABNHEER
B ARITRSE Mt REBESE
RSB ERE A I AR BB R
MHEEITIBE - BB E e ITH
HEeERZENREE - Bt - AEER
MMEEREARZSEERALES
e R 2019F [ EEREBE | fEH
EXREE - BMMEB2019F R EH g
ERBLNTIAE T EESHGAE—
HHAREERENEEIN - AME
2 BB TRNEEES LEBIER
#9290,0008 7T ° KK+ mILUEH L
BREEBETAKRMEENHLEEHMES
FEHE -

B R RAA MR R BIER
FY2018/19
2018 (19 B E

Environmental

RIR

A1.2 Greenhouse gas emissions in total and intensity
BERELAENEREE
Scope 1 emission Tonnes of COe 4.38
& E 1 HE W —SEiREE
Scope 2 emission Tonnes of CO,e 254.34
HE2HEME WA tiREE
Scope 3 emission Tonnes of CO,e 3.59
$HEI FHE W SfEiREE
- in total Tonnes of CO,e 262.31
—LAES5 M-S LiREE
- by intensity Tonnes of CO,e/FTE 7.72
—AmER M SAfEIREE
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HKEx KPI FY2018/19
BRTEARENIEE 2018 19 B EFE
Al.4 Total non-hazardous waste produced and by intensity
BEBERYELRERREE
Recycled Paper Waste kg 122.44
SRR kg/FTE 3.60
T
F5,/FTE
Recycled Plastic Waste kg 81.00
Al REEE AR Kg/FTE 2.38
T
F5/FTE
Recycled Aluminium Cans Kg 40.35
7] 0] Y g kg/FTE 1.19
T
F5/FTE
A2.1 Energy consumption by type
REDNE D NRERES
Direct Energy Consumption
BERREE
— in total 000 KWh 14.71
— #BE3 FE F R b
- by intensity '000 kWh/FTE 0.43
— REEF FETEE,£H
FRIES
Indirect Energy Consumption
MERESE
— in total 000 kWh 355.95
— NA#ES FEF R
- by intensity 000 kWh/FTE 10.47
— EmEst FEAFRE, %R
Total Energy Consumption
BEERFEE
— in total 000 kWh 370.66
— NEeEs F1E T L
— by intensity 000 kWh/FTE 10.90
— AEmEE FETEH"ZR
2RIES
A2.2 Water Consumption in total and intensity
BFEKEREE
Water Consumption
kS
— in total m? 8,943
— D= TR
— by intensity m3/FTE 263.03
— AmEET SRS ERERES
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HKEx KPI FY2018/19
BRATERERIEE 2018 19 HREE
A. Social
A HE
B1.1 Total workforce by employment type and gender Male Female
REBEIERMNESNESEE B g
Full-time No. of people 14 20
2R A
Part-time No. of people 0 1
Fe B A
Total workforce by employment type and age group Under 30-50 | Above
REBEERFRANASNESREH 30 50
305 AT | 305 E | 508%
50 5% Mk
Full-time No. of people 2 138 19
] AL
Part-time No. of people 1 0 0
FHEL A
B1.2 Employee turnover rate by gender Male Female
RUERNE D NESRALLE E:LEd zi
% 0 25.00
Employee turnover rate by age group Under 30-50 | Above
RERENE D NEERALLE 30 50
305 LA T | 30BE | 505%
5075% Bt
% 50.00 7.69 15.79
B2.1 Number and rate of work-related fatalities
TAEBRMEE T AR E
— By number No. of people 0
— DAAEGH A
- Byrate % 0
— Mkt
B2.2 Lost days due to work injury
IGBEBATIERH
— Staff Days 0
- BT H#
B6.2 Number of products and service related complaints received
EEBANERRBRBHIRFEE
No. of complaints 0
RFEE
B7.1 Number of concluded cases regarding corrupt practices brought against the company
HAQRRHICEENESHFARMHNEE
No. of cases 0
RFHE
B8.2 Resources contributed
&R R
Donations (HKD) 289,569
B CET)

L% ARAT | 2019 £ 57

it



58

Environmental, Social and Governance Report
REHERERRE

8. HKEX ESG REPORTING GUIDE CONTENT INDEX 8.

A. Environmental

KPI

11

BRAKRE e REBRERE

SDABRS

Description
i

Section/Remarks

BB

products (in tonnes) and, if applicable, with
reference to per unit produced

KR ETABEMNEE (AT E) k(i@
R BEESBMEE

A R
A1 A1 General Disclosure 4
Emissions — R E
Al A1 The types of emissions and respective emissions Due to the business nature
B data. of the Group, this KP! is
PER g £R AR BERR R o considered not material.
ERAREBNEBMLE - RS
REVIESERSBTERK -
A1.2 Greenhouse gas emissions in total and intensity 11
REREBHEENEREE
A1.3 Total hazardous waste produced and intensity Due to the business nature
FEABEREENRERTE of the Group, this KP! is
considered not material.
ERREEMEBRME - LA
REVIESEARBIERK -
Al.4 Total non-hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) 11
and, where appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of
production volume, per facility).
FEAEEFEZYEE (UETE) R (EA) %
E(MASES B - FHERHTHE) °
A1.5 Description of measures to mitigate emissions and 4
results achieved
UK R E B FE b PTG R R
A1.6 Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous 4
wastes are handled, reduction initiatives and
results achieved
HlEREEERBEZEEEDN X  BEEELES
BV e PSR
A2 A2 General Disclosure 4
Use of Resources — MR E
A2 A21 Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type 11
&RFEA in total and intensity
RERESMEER SEEEREEEREE
A2.2 Water consumption in total and intensity 11
BFKERRE
A2.3 Description of energy use efficiency initiatives and 4
results achieved
AR (0 A e st B R PSR R
A2.4 Description of whether there is any issue in 4
sourcing water that is fit for purpose, water
efficiency initiatives and results
i USREGE B AR ERI AR E - U RIEA A
KA & RS RCR
A2.5 Total packaging material used for finished Due to the business nature

of the Group, this KPI is

considered not material.
ERAEENEBIEE - 1L
REBEBIEZERABBTER -
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RREMAERER/RE

Description
fat

Section/Remarks

568, BE

B2
A3 A3 General Disclosure 4-5
The Environment — R E
and Natural Resources A3.1 Description of the significant impacts of activities 4-5
A3 on the environment and natural resources and
RIBERRABR actions taken to manage them
HEBEZDHHRBERAAERNEAZERE
RREREAATENTE
B. Social
B. H&
Employment and Labour Practices
EREREIER
B1 B1 General Disclosure 6
Employment —M R
B1 B1.1 Total workforce by gender, employment type, age 11
&R group and geographical region
RIER - EBEER  FRAJRBRISHES
B
B1.2 Employee turnover rate by gender, age group and 11
geographical region
RIER - FiRMR MitEE D HEERKE
B2 B2 General Disclosure 7
Health and Safety — =
B2 B2.1 Number and rate of work-related fatalities 11
(RS ETEREREMETMARRL R
B2.2 Lost days due to work injury 11
EIGIELATERH
B2.3 Description of occupational health and safety 7
measures adopted, how they are implemented
and monitored
TR B R R R T 25 - LA RMEER
TRERTE
B3 B3 General Disclosure 7
Development and Training —RE
B3
EEYEE]
B4 B4 General Disclosure 6
Labour Standards —MRIEE
B4
BT R
Operating Practices
EIEEN
B5 B5 General Disclosure 9
Supply Chain Management — AR E
B5
HEEER
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BEHAREARE
KPI Description Section/Remarks
AN Mt =43
bt
B6 B6 General Disclosure 9
Product Responsibility — R E
B6 B6.2 Number of products and service related 12
EmAE complaints received and how they are dealt with
BERNE m MRS H IR AR BB AR EE TE
B6.5 Description of consumer data protection and 9
privacy policies, how they are implemented and
monitored
il B EERMRE RALBECR - A RMEBHT
BERTA
B7 Anti-corruption B7 General Disclosure 7-8
B7 — AR R
RES B7.1 Number of concluded legal cases regarding 12
corrupt practices brought against the issuer or
its employees during the reporting period and the
outcomes of the cases
RERAANEZHITAXHEERETERENE
IR ARMME A RFARR
B7.2 Description of preventive measures and whistle- 7-8
blowing procedures, how they are implemented
and monitored
by g iE e B RAR T - A RMEBERNITRER
PapA
Community
e
B8 B8 General Disclosure 10
Community Investment — MR EE
B8 BS.1 Focus areas of contribution 10
HERE L ERBE
B8.2 Resources contributed to the focus area 12

EETHE R ER
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Independent Auditor’s Report

B AR

Deloitte

TO THE MEMBERS OF EMINENCE ENTERPRISE LIMITED
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Eminence
Enterprise Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 67 to 188, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 March 2019, and the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of
cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view
of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 March 2019, and
of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared in compliance
with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSASs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We
are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of
Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that
the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were
of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our
audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these
matters.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key audit matter

BEETTEE

Valuation of investment properties

REYXEZ15E

We identified the valuation of investment properties as
a key audit matter due to the significant judgments and
assumptions made by management of the Group in
determining the fair value.

B BEXEEEEREBETATERSREAZHE EE
& BB EME 2 MER —ERREEE -

At 31 March 2019, the fair value of investment properties was
approximately HK$1,663 million (note 15 to the consolidated
financial statements), with a fair value gain recognised in
profit or loss of approximately HK$46 million (consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income).
M2019F 3 A31H - & & ¥ % A T & %1,663,000,000
T(REMBRERWT15) RERBERZAFTERED
46,000,000 7T (frEBm R EMEERER) ©

The Group’s investment properties are stated at fair value
based on valuations performed by independent firms of
qualified professional property valuers (the “Valuers”).
Details of the valuation techniques and key inputs used in
the valuations are disclosed in note 15 to the consolidated
financial statements.
EEEREMEZLATFEDRBEB LS EREERMGERMT
(TMEER D ERZ HESITR - HEMRAZHEFEZREE
BABBZFBEOREEMEHRERM T 15 AIKE o

iy

BASRET SR (E)

I

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BMEt O EEEREASE

Our procedures in relation to the valuation of investment
properties included:

HPEIREYE 2 AEZRERF 21

o Obtaining an understanding from the Valuers and
management of the Group about the valuation
techniques, performance of the property markets,
significant assumptions adopted, critical judgmental
areas, key inputs and data used in the valuations;
REEMER BESXEERETRMEERE WETS
KRB RAZEERR  XT2HEHEHE - HEMK
Bz E2mAREE

° Assessing the integrity of information provided
by management of the Group to the Valuers by
comparing, on a sample basis, details of rentals to the
respective underlying existing lease agreements;
FERAMBRT L BEBREEN 2B F BT
it BEBEEERERGEMAMREZERNZTEMY

o Evaluating the competence, capabilities and objectivity
of the Valuers; and

AHE[ENER O RTERME &

o Assessing reasonableness of key inputs used by the
Valuers and management of the Group by comparing
with relevant market information with similar properties.
i 8 LE B[R KR AL ) 25 40 A T 95 B KL DA RT (B AT
k EREEBRERAZIZRABEZAEML -
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key audit matter

BREESEE

Impairment assessment of loans receivable
FERES 2 RIEFTE

We identified the impairment assessment of loans receivable
as a key audit matter due to the significance of balances
to the Group’s consolidated financial position and the
involvement of significant management judgment in
evaluating the expected credit losses of loans receivable at
the end of the reporting period.

HRERERE BREEZHFEEUBINREEARTERR
EHAR ERER EREEEBER S RERER I - M
HRIEWER 2 RER R A —TRERETFIE -

As detailed in note 4 to the consolidated financial statements,
in making the assessment, the loans receivable from
borrowers are assessed individually by the management
of the Group, based on the financial background, financial
condition and historical settlement records, including past
due dates and default rates, of each borrower and reasonable
and supportable forward-looking information such as
macroeconomic data that is available without undue cost
or effort. Each borrower is assigned a risk grading under
internal credit ratings to calculate the expected credit loss,
taking into consideration of the estimates of expected cash
shortfalls. At every reporting date, the financial background,
financial condition and historical settlement records are
reassessed and changes in the forward-looking information
are considered.

BANGRA M BRRM T 4R - REHET R - B5E
EREERBEZBRAZUBER BRI LBEENRC
% BEOHEMENE  URGEFEREBZAELER
PIIABAIEBE NV ERAN B NAIBG 2 B BESE - B
SMEHEERAZ BB ER - EERABRBEABEETRES
ERRER - U ERBREEEE  RNLEERMETEDR
SRR NEREEH - EFTRYBER  UBARRKB
EERREHLZ BRI IEEREE) o

At 31 March 2019, the carrying amount of loans receivable
was approximately HK$336 million net of impairment
allowance of approximately HK$9 million (note 16 to the
consolidated financial statements).

20193 A31 R - U E FRERE E#) 336,000,000/ 7T (11
B IR B 5 549 9,000,000 8 7T (476 BT ISR KT 16)) ©

BAs2ERT 1R ()

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BMHE N AEEERESSH

Our procedures in relation to impairment assessment of loans
receivable included:

B RNERZREF G ZBRREF 2

o Understanding the Group’s policy on granting loans to
its borrowers and the Group’s credit and impairment
assessments including the related credit control and
loan monitoring process;

TH BESEREERTERARBENGERBER -
BERANGEEEE R ERETRT

o Evaluating the management’s assessment on
the credit quality of the borrowers by examining
records including financial background, current
creditworthiness, collateral and past collection history
of the borrowers;
HEEEEZREHEEERANBER  BEE
B2 ERRIBEERBRAZCHEUTHEERAZE
EEE

° Checking the past due dates of outstanding loans
receivable against the loan agreements for the terms of
the loans to identify any significant change in credit risk
or default in loans receivable;
RBEERGHR 2 EFIETREREERKRE RN 8L
HE  UREERKEFREERRSIGENBERZ EME
REF)

o Testing the integrity of information used by
management to develop the impairment assessment
of the loans receivable as at year-end by checking the
historical settlement records on a sample basis;
RAMESREERCHE  AAEREMRNFERGIERE
WERRMEREPAER 2 ER 2 TEBM

o Evaluating the expected cash shortfalls estimated by
the management by checking the expected cash flows
from the realisation of collaterals received against
publicly available information; and
BRAARAIGENREERDKIERR 2 BEHREER
BEEREBMEF 2ERRSER X

° Assessing the reasonableness of forward-looking
information used by the Group.

il BEREMEAREEENZAEE
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises the information included in the annual report,
but does not include the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s
report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the
other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion
thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have
performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report
in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE CHARGED
WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal
control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process.

ERFEFHHEAMEEAR - AUEERE
TENEBRANEE - ETBREEAMTERE
KB EEN RS -

BMEEEUBERRNBLT DREEMIE
B BT AR ERME B BEREMT AN
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EHEAMES R - EUBET - EREAME
BT EEAMBMAKRFIERBET M
BRNEFEEREBENEUT FEEAS
MRERLAIER - & - ERERAICHITHIE
BMRAEMEBFEERMERBRL - HMF
BEREZEE - EEHE > BRIVEE AR

==

ESRAEENGRAYBRREAEE
BT

ERRERRABRRET LGRS RMN
ERUBRELREE R AEPINKEZK
BEAEEMATORAMITRE  YHERA
RERE M IFRERANBHE T F RN REFREH
R 1 25 B0 B8 A B8 ER PRI P 75 HO PO BB 6 &

&

ERBEAMBHERE  EFRENE BX
BB EMEE S - WHEERIER TR SRR
BICEBMNEE  URERFELE RSE
At RIEEAEN BEEBERLFILE
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Independent Auditor’s Report

B AR

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance
with Section 90 of the Bermuda Companies Act, and for no other purpose.
We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level
of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material
if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

BB ET RSB RRAENELE
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that
we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore the
key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless
law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing
so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of
such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the independent auditor’s
report is Yen Sau Yin, Emily.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

17 May 2019
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

meBmkHMEEKER

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z 201943 A31 HILFE

2019 2018
NOTES HK$’000 HK$’000
=S FEx FET
Revenue = 5
Rental income GiEe AL N 42,627 33,012
Interest income from RKEERBEZ
loan financing FBUA 19,601 16,593
62,228 49,605
Cost of services rendered AR A (3,271) (2,880)
58,957 46,725
Other income HAb A 7,137 7,677
Other gains and losses E bl e R g8 7 (395) 1,552
Other expenses Hinhx (58) (121)
Distribution and selling expenses [N - (40)
Administrative expenses TR (48,276) (35,525)
Net loss on modification of terms of B TR AR AR SR
convertible note Z 18558 24(b) = (1,023)
Gain on changes in fair value of BEME 2 N TE
investment properties FE s 15 45,988 72,337
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE—RHWB ARz W 34 43,139 -
Impairment loss on financial assets, SREEZRERIE
net of reversal: B -
— Debt instruments at fair value —RAFEFAEAM
through other comprehensive FHREZEEIA
income (181) -
- Loans receivable —EE R 16 (2,808) -
- Available-for-sale investments — A ERE = (3,406)
Loss on changes in fair value of BATEF AR
financial assets at fair value CREECZAFE
through profit or loss FE) e (16,283) (2,195)
Finance costs Bh & B A 9 (36,310) (31,373)
Profit before taxation R T8 AT g A1) 50,910 54,608
Taxation i1 10 (400) (1,069)
Profit for the year attributable to AA R R FEN
owners of the Company REZHF 1 50,510 53,539
SILEEERAT | 2019 F3f

67




Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

meBEm Rk EMEEKER

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z 201943 A31 HILFE

68

Other comprehensive (expense) income Eth 2 HE (B ) K A

Items that may be reclassified
subsequently to profit or loss:

Exchange differences arising on
translation of financial statements
of foreign operations

Change in fair value of debt instruments
at fair value through other
comprehensive income

Impairment loss on debt instruments at
fair value through other comprehensive
income included in profit or loss

Change in fair value of available-for-sale
investments

Reclassification adjustment upon
impairment of available-for-sale
investments

Release upon disposal of
available-for-sale investments

Other comprehensive (expense) income
for the year

Total comprehensive income for the year
attributable to owners of the Company

Earnings per share
— Basic

— Diluted

BE& IIRE BT DI E
B ZHA

BEBINESENTTE
BRERER

B EFAEAM

2E W2 B TE
NFEES
SEABR A TE
sRAEEEEEZE
BT RRBEEE
AHHEREZ

RN EES

A ERERER 2
B D BRHE

HETHEERER
FE R

AEFEMEE (FX)
WA

RABIBREEARFERE
EHWALRE

SREF
—HA

— g

2019 2018

NOTE HK$’000 HK$’000
B T FHT
(26,179) 37,095

577 =

181 -

= 45,029

= 3,406

= (45)

(25,421) 85,485

25,089 139,024

13 HK1.70 84l HK2.31 7811l
13 HK1.67 584l HK2.15 711l
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e PRI R

At 31 March 2019 7020193 431 H

2019 2018
NOTES HK$’000 HK$’000
=S FHExT FET
Non-current assets B EE
Property, plant and equipment ME - WEKREE 14 3,686 3,958
Investment properties REYE 15 1,359,361 1,656,633
Loans receivable ERUE R 16 29,676 46,924
Financial assets at fair value through BATFEFABR
profit or loss EREE 21 13,903 =
Debt instruments at fair value through BAFEFAEMEE
other comprehensive income Wz EBITA 18 11,826 -
Available-for-sale investments A HERE 17 - 207,213
Deposits paid for acquisition of WEEIR EME
investment properties 2&& 37 - 29,500
1,418,452 1,944,228
Current assets MEEE
Properties held for development for sale  #H{EHEXE Y 19 1,730,263 1,634,964
Trade and other receivables B 5 & H R IR 20 8,797 49,876
Loans receivable TEE R 16 306,334 218,373
Financial assets at fair value through BATFEFABRZ
profit or loss ERMEE 21 108,323 39,054
Debt instruments at fair value through BAFEFAEMEZE
other comprehensive income Wz EBITA 18 4,031 -
Bank deposits with original maturity of BE=EAEE
more than three months HITER 22 12,763 =
Bank balances and cash RITEHRNIRES 22 141,582 125,422
2,312,093 2,067,689
Assets classified as held for DAL EZEE—
sale — investment properties "B 15 304,000 -
2,616,093 2,067,689
Current liabilities TENAE
Trade and other payables B 5 ME M ERMRIE 23 120,798 89,718
Tax payable FERFIE 8,705 9,530
Convertible notes ATAAR & 24 62,986 69,656
Secured bank borrowings BEBRITEE 25 354,620 420,410
547,109 589,314
Net current assets RENEEFE 2,068,984 1,478,375
Total assets less current liabilities BERBRTBARG 3,487,436 3,422,603
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At 31 March 2019 70201943 A 31 H

2019 2018
NOTES HK$°000 HK$’000
Liks3 FHET FHT
Non-current liabilities FRBaE
Deferred tax liabilities BEFHEAE 26 32,657 35,065
Secured bank borrowings BEBRITEER 25 720,609 672,250
753,266 707,315
2,734,170 2,715,288
Capital and reserves BER R
Share capital A&7 27 29,658 29,658
Reserves & 2,704,512 2,685,630
2,734,170 2,715,288
The consolidated financial statements on pages 67 to 188 were approved BEEEN2019F5 17T AL EREERRSE
and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 17 May 2019 and are 67 £ 188 B2 ira Mk - WA THESNR
signed on its behalf by: %= F:
Kwong Jimmy Cheung Tim Lui Yuk Chu
BEA BEExK
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
EF E
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
mERDBER

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z 201943 A31 HILFE

Convertible Investment  Property Share
Share Share  note equity Capital Contributed ~ Exchange revaluation revaluation ~options  Accumulated
capital  premium  reseve  reseve  surplus  reseve  reseve  reserve reserve profits Total
T8RS REE(E  UEEH  BEE
Ra  RGEE  REEE  RARE  AARR ENER G e B e 2]
HKSO00  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKSO00  HKS000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKSO00  HKS000  HKS000
Tén  TEn TR TAn  TEr TR TR TR TR TEn  TEn

At 1 April 2017 R017%4A1H 19118 2,019,688 21,181 53,194 261126 3,984 10,908 40,624 2,083 0,47 2,452,153
Exchange diferences arising on e E

translaton of financial statements HEERL

of foreign operations EizR - - - - - 0% - - - - %
Change in far value of avallle-for-sale ~ THHEREY

investments IR ) = = = = = - b - - - b
Reclassfication acjustment upon ML ERERE

impaiment of avaable-for-sale BEZEN0E

investments E - - - - - - 3406 - - - 3406
Release upon disposal of avaleble-for- ~ HETHHE

sale Investments REREH = = = = = = (49) = = - ()
Proft for the year RERE = = ° ° = = = - - B9 535
Total comprehensive income KEERENA

for the year % = = = = - 37,09 48390 - - 53580 13004
Issue of new shares BTk 10 42865 - - - - - - - - 5058
Transaction costs atirbutable toissue ~ 2HRZ%5

0of new shares A - (505) - - - - - - - - (505)
Recognition of equity component of RATEREE,

comvertl notes A - - - - - = - - - N
Deferred tax iabilty on recognition ATEREE L

of equity component of convertblg EaRAkL

notes ERERE = - 619 = = = = = = - ke
Transfer upon modffication of terms FYTERER

of convetbl note Res - - (143 - - s s - TR -
Deferre tax labilty released FUTARZE

upon modifcation o terms FaRER

of convetble note EitiagE = - 465 ° ° = = = - - 465
Recognition upon modifcation of FUTARZE

terms of convertile note aE - - 50 - - - - - - - M
Defered tax bty on recogniton FHTAREE

of equity component upon st

modifcation of terms of ERRH 2R

convertile note HEER = - (B4 - - - - - - - By
Issue of shares on conversion RETARERE

of converte note kb 280 14100 (11,149) - - - - - - - 5775
Defere tax iy reeased RATARZEE

upon conversion of convertble note EhEREAR - - 1838 = - = = = = - 183
Transfer upon cancelation of DEhEnEs

share options - - - - = = = = (431) a1 -
At 31 March 2018 R0BEIANA 29658 2,076,148 63,988 53,194 261126 1,019 59298 40,624 1,652 88521 2,715,268
Adjustments (note 2 A2 - - - - - - [0 - - RO 638y
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z 201943 A31 HILFE

72

Convertible Investment  Property Share
Share Share  note equity Capital Contributed ~ Exchange revaluation revaluation ~ options  Accumulated
capital  premium  reseve  reseve  surplus  reseve  reseve  reserve reserve profits Total
TERZE REEfE  UEER  BRE
R RBEE  BEEE  RAEE  AARR EXRR G G B ZHE 2
HKSO00  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS000  HKSO00  HKS000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKSO00  HKS000  HKS'000
TEn i TR TR TEn T TEn TR T TEr TEn
At 1 Aprl 2018 restated) R018%4A18 (35 29658 2,076,148 63,988 53194 261,126 44,0719 - 40,64 1652 141,435 2,708,904
Exchange diferences arising on BESNEENIRERL
tranglaton of fianciel satements EXZE
of foreign operations - - - - - (%179 - - - - (%179
Change nfair value of cett instuments — RAFESAZfe2ENEL
atfair vaug through other HAEVINT T
comprehensive income - - - - - - 511 - - - 517
Impaiment loss on debtinstuments — SABRRATEIALMAE
atfair vaue through other Wi BRIAAERE
comprehensive income included
in proft or loss - - - - - - 181 - - - 181
Proft for the year RERRA - - - - - - - - - RS0 50510
Total comprehensive expense) KEERA(FR) hALE
income for the year - - - - - (%179 758 - - 50510 25,089
Transfer upon redemption of BOTAREERER
convertible note: - - (7519 - - - - - - 1519 -
Deferred ta ity released upon BOTEREERER
redemption of convertble note BiEfEaE - - 1 - 5 = 5 . . - 1
Transfer upon cancelation of EVESCEE
share options - - - - - - - - (395) 39 -
At 31 March 2019 H019%3A518 29658 2,076,148 56,646 53194 261,126 14900 758 40,624 1,257 199850 2734170

The capital reserve of the Group represents the credit arising from the
reduction of share capital of the Company in March 2004 and September
2005 and can be applied in the future for distribution to the shareholders.

The contributed surplus of the Group represents the credit arising from the
reduction of share capital of the Company in February 2003, October 2009,
December 2012, November 2013, October 2014, March 2015 and October
2015, part of which was applied to set off against accumulated losses of
the Company in October 2009, December 2012, November 2013, October
2014, March 2015 and October 2015. The balance may be utilised by the
directors in accordance with the Company’s Bye-laws and all applicable
laws, including to eliminate the accumulated losses of the Company.

The property revaluation reserve of the Group represents the gain on
revaluation of certain leasehold properties and prepaid lease payments of
the Group when these leasehold properties and prepaid lease payments
were transferred to investment properties.

ARE BABREARAR 200453 AR
2005 9 A EEIRBAFEL 2% - THHS
HAIETFRE -

AEEZHBABBNREALQFNR2003F2A -
2009410 A + 2012412 A ~ 2013F 11 A »
2014410 A ~ 201543 A & 2015410 A #I
AR ANBFFTEE &£ 2 #BR - 389 B 2009 4F 10
A~ 2012412 A - 2013411 A - 2014510
A 201543 B 201510 A A{EEKEAR L
Al 2ETE1E - EFIRBAR A ERMAAI R
Fra @A 2 A5G FAME Az - BIEA K
AR R Z BEHESTE -

REBZMESHRFERRAEBERELEY
ERENHEFRERENERERETHE
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
nv_\éfﬁ;ﬁiﬁ%%

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z 201943 A31 HILFE

2019 2018
HK$°000 HK$'000
T FHT
Operating activities K
Profit before taxation 5t A Al 50,910 54,608
Adjustments for: KRR
Bank interest income SRITH BN (1,548) (2,367)
Interest expense FERZ 36,310 31,373
Depreciation e 1,225 1,067
Net loss on modification of terms FRAHRERERZ
of convertible note EiEFE = 1,023
Loss (gain) on disposal of property, LENE  BE - &
plant and equipment 2 B8 () 2 ()
Gain on changes in fair value of REM*E 2 NTEES
investment properties g (45,988) (72,3837)
Impairment loss on loans receivable, EWER 2 REREE
net of reversal kR #EE 2,808 -
Impairment loss on debt instruments BATEFAEMER
at fair value through other Wz EHTERE
comprehensive income BE 181 -
Impairment loss on available-for- AL ERE ZREES
sale investments B = 3,406
Loss on changes in fair value of BATEFABRZZE
financial assets at fair value MEEATEEHE
through profit or loss B 16,283 2,195
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE— BB A R (43,139) -
Gain on disposal of available-for- HEHEERERE
sale investments = (45)
Gain on fair value change of EEAES: VNS -)
convertible note W = (217)
Dividend income from listed investments ETiREZREMA (3,667) (4,537)
Operating cash flows before movements Rt EEEREBAI
in working capital KERERE 13,377 14,162
Increase in properties held for BEHEEEWEEMN
development for sale (235,720) (575,313)
Decrease (increase) in trade and other B 5 MEMERGIER D
receivables (3&hm) 43,472 (10,276)
Increase in loans receivable JELK E RRE (78,352) (902)
Decrease (increase) in financial assets BATEGFAERZEREAE
at fair value through profit or loss A (1) 137,651 (1,126)
Increase in trade and other payables B 5 R H At SRR AN 7,566 16,394
Cash used in operations BAREEZRS (112,006) (657,061)
Income tax paid B FTEH (1,563) (441)
Dividend received from financial assets RABRATFEFABE 2SR
at fair value through profit or loss BEZBERRE 3,667 41
Net cash used in operating activities AREEXB RS FE (109,902) (657,461)
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n _\éiﬁ,ﬁsﬁ%%

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z 201943 A31 HILFE

74

Investing activities
Net cash outflow on acquisition
of assets and liabilities through
acquisition of a subsidiary
Net cash outflow on acquisition
of investment properties through
acquisition of a subsidiary
Purchase of financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss
Additions of investment properties
Purchase of debt instruments at fair value
through other comprehensive income
Placement of bank deposits with original
maturity of more than three months
Purchase of property, plant and equipment
Net cash inflow on disposal of a subsidiary

Proceeds from disposal of financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss

Interest received

Payment of deposits for acquisition
of investment properties

Purchase of available-for-sale
investments

Withdrawal of bank deposits with original
maturity of more than three months

Proceeds from disposal of available-
for-sale investments

Dividend received from available-for-
sale investments

Proceeds from disposal of property,
plant and equipment

Net cash used in investing activities

Financing activities

Bank borrowings raised

Repayment of bank borrowings

Interest paid

Redemption of convertible note upon
maturity

Proceeds from issue of new shares

Proceeds from issue of convertible notes

Transaction costs attributable to
issue of new shares

Net cash from financing activities

Net increase (decrease) in cash and
cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at
the beginning of the year

Effect of foreign exchange rate changes

Cash and cash equivalents at the end
of the year, represented by
bank balances and cash

BAES
BRWE-FHNBLRE
ANEERBRBZESR
B
BRNE—RHNBR AR
AEEMEZ RS R
FE
BARAFE;AEE
ZEBMEE
NERADE
BARAFEF AR MR
EW%ZF&IE
HMBB=EATH R
1R
BADE BEREE
HE—MHBARZERS
;/ILA)%%E
HERATESFABZZ
SREEZTBRIEAE
EUH B
BAREMERSHR

BARGIEERE

REEB=EAZHz
RITER

HEAHHEREY
RS ERA

KA ERES
BB

HEME - BELREZ
A

BREERS RS FE

BEEE
EERITIEE
BERITEE
BERFE
SR R AR AR iR

BATHIRZ TS FA
BTTRRER Y FrEHE
BITHRZ R BA
REBEERD RSFR
ReRERHREFH
B O D)
FzRehEFRRE
SNEEXREE 2T E

FRZBERERRE -
BRITESRIR S

NOTES
Pt

33(b)

33(a)

34

2019 2018
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTET FHET
(317,954) -
(265,500) =
(196,027) (64,519)
(23,368) (201,710)
(15,657) =
(12,763) =
(1,489) (1,433)
586,040 =
161,717 86,608
3,866 2,951

= (29,500)

= (2,226)

= 103,606

= 1,678

= 1,401

= 65
(81,135) (103,079)
609,605 318,071
(330,399) (5,359)
(51,194) (31,688)
(20,000) =
= 50,585

- 44,200
= (505)
208,012 375,304
16,975 (285,236)
125,422 409,884
(815) 774
141,582 125,422
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 #HZ 201943 A31 B ILFE

GENERAL

Eminence Enterprise Limited (the “Company”; the Company and its
subsidiaries are collectively referred to as the “Group”) is incorporated
in Bermuda as an exempted company with limited liability and its
shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”). The addresses of the registered office and
the principal place of business of the Company are disclosed in the
“Corporate Information” section of the annual report.

The Company is an associate of Easyknit International Holdings
Limited (“Easyknit International”), an exempted company
incorporated in Bermuda with its shares also listed on the Stock
Exchange. At 31 March 2019, Easyknit International had 24.93% of
the issued share capital of the Company.

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are set out in note
39.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars (“HK$” or “HKD”) which is also the functional currency of the
Company.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily effective
for the current year

The Group has applied the following new and amendments to
HKFRSs and an interpretation issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) for the first time in the
current year:

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers and the related
Amendments

HK(IFRIC)-Int 22 Foreign Currency Transactions and
Advance Consideration

Amendments to HKFRS 2 Classification and Measurement of
Share-based Payment Transactions

Amendments to HKFRS 4 Applying HKFRS 9 “Financial
Instruments” with HKFRS 4
“Insurance Contracts”

Amendments to HKAS 28  As part of the Annual Improvements to

HKFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle

Amendments to HKAS 40  Transfers of Investment Property

Except as described below, the application of the new and
amendments to HKFRSs and an interpretation in the current year has
had no material impact on the Group’s financial performance and
positions for the current and prior years and/or on the disclosures set
out in these consolidated financial statements.
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HONG 2. ERHIRLEBIIEBUBREE

76

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily effective
for the current year (Continued)

2.1

HKFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with Customers”

The Group has applied HKFRS 15 for the first time in the
current year. HKFRS 15 superseded HKAS 18 “Revenue”,
HKAS 11 “Construction Contracts” and the related
interpretations.

The Group has applied HKFRS 15 retrospectively with the
cumulative effect of initially applying this Standard recognised
at the date of initial application, 1 April 2018. Any difference
at the date of initial application is recognised in the opening
accumulated profits (or other components of equity, as
appropriate) and comparative information has not been
restated. Furthermore, in accordance with the transition
provisions in HKFRS 15, the Group has elected to apply
the Standard retrospectively only to contracts that are not
completed at 1 April 2018. Accordingly, certain comparative
information may not be comparable as comparative information
was prepared under HKAS 18 and HKAS 11 and the related
interpretations.

The Group recognises revenue from the following major
sources:

o Rental income (HKAS 17 “Leases”);
. Interest income from loan financing (HKFRS 9);
. Investments in securities (HKFRS 9); and

. Other interest income (HKFRS 9).

Summary of effects arising from initial application of HKFRS 15

The adoption of HKFRS 15 has had no material impact on the
Group’s financial performance and positions for the current
year or at 1 April 2018.

Information about the Group’s accounting policies resulting
from application of HKFRS 15 is disclosed in note 3.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily effective
for the current year (Continued)

2.2

HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments”

In the current year, the Group has applied HKFRS 9 “Financial
Instruments” and the related consequential amendments to
other HKFRSs. HKFRS 9 introduces new requirements for (i)
the classification and measurement of financial assets and
financial liabilities and (i) expected credit losses (“ECL”) for
financial assets.

The Group has applied HKFRS 9 in accordance with the
transition provisions set out in HKFRS 9, i.e. applied the
classification and measurement requirements (including
impairment under ECL model) retrospectively to instruments
that have not been derecognised as at 1 April 2018 (date
of initial application) and has not applied the requirements
to instruments that have already been derecognised as at
1 April 2018. The difference between carrying amounts as
at 31 March 2018 and the carrying amounts as at 1 April
2018 are recognised in the opening accumulated profits and
other components of equity, without restating comparative
information.

Accordingly, certain comparative information may not be
comparable as comparative information was prepared
under HKAS 39 “Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement”.

Accounting policies resulting from application of HKFRS 9 are
disclosed in note 3.
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z 201943 A31 HILFE

2.  APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HONG 2. FERFEIRZBIIEBMBREE

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) Bl (48)

(Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily effective RARFEREI 4RI RIBT BB

for the current year (Continued) BSERE 2R (1)

2.2 HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” (Continued) 22 BEBUBHEFINLHMIA]

i
Summary of effects arising from initial application of HKFRS 9 BNEH & B S ERE9
FEATEEAE B 2R

The table below illustrates the classification and measurement THREMESRHEESENTEMN
of financial assets and other items subject to ECL under R EXERBE (201844 A 1
HKFRS 9 and HKAS 39 at the date of initial application, 1 April R) BBMBHRELENFEIRLE
2018. BEFERFE R TXEHEE

ERMRAEMIAE -

Financial assets

Available- at fair value Investment
for-sale  through profit Loans revaluation  Accumulated
investments or loss receivable reserve profits
BOFEHA
Bz

TEHERR  GMAE  BMRR RAEGEE B
Notes HKS000 HK$ 000 HKS000 HK$ 000 HKS 000

ifs3 TEn Thr TEn TEn T
(note i)
(P3Ei)
Closing balance at 31 March ROIBEIA 3N Bz BRES
2018-HKAS 39 -BASHERE S 207,213 39,054 265,297 59,298 88,521
Effect arising from initial application of BRERERNBREEN
HKFRS 9: FORMELZEE:
Reclassification BN E
From available-for-sale investments REAHEERE 1] (207,213) 207,213 - (59,298) 59,298
Remeasurement EffiitE
Impairment under ECL model RBCERERATZRE i) - - (6,384) - (6,384)
Opening balance at 1 April 2018 Ro01854 810 20 &4 - 246,267 258,913 - 141,435
Notes: P&
(i) Available-for-sale investments 0] AT HERE
Reclassification from available-for-sale investments to financial assets BHAREEREETOBEERA
at fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL”) FEABRE(RAFET AR
w2 emEE
At the date of initial application of HKFRS 9, the Group’s equity RYEFER BB SRS XERE
investments of HK$207,213,000 were reclassified from available-for- 9% HHA - ANEH207,213,00078
sale investments to financial assets at FVTPL. The fair value gains T2 ERIRER A HEERESE
of HK$59,298,000 relating to the equity investments previously FOBRERATEFABEZZS
accumulated up to 31 March 2018 were transferred from investment BEE - AR E:TEZE 201843
revaluation reserve to accumulated profits as at 1 April 2018. A3 HEEREEB 2 AFE

122559,298,0007 7 * 720184
AR 1 BEAEREEHFRERER
sHEF
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z 201943 A31 HILFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily effective
for the current year (Continued)

2.2 HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” (Continued)

2.3

Summary of effects arising from initial application of HKFRS 9
(Continued)
Notes: (Continued)

(ii) Financial assets at FVTPL

At the date of initial application, the Group continued to measure the
equity securities listed in Hong Kong amounting to HK$3,436,000 and
principal protected deposits amounting to HK$35,618,000 at FVTPL
as these financial assets are required to be measured at FVTPL under
HKFRS 9.

(iif) Impairment under ECL model

In relation to the impairment of financial assets, HKFRS 9 requires an
ECL model, as opposed to an incurred credit loss model under HKAS
39. The ECL model requires an entity to account for ECL and changes
in those ECL at each reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk
since initial recognition. In other words, it is no longer necessary for a
credit event to have occurred before credit losses are recognised.

Loss allowances for financial assets at amortised cost mainly
comprise other receivables, loans receivable and bank balances,
which are measured on 12-month ECL (“12m ECL”") basis as there
had been no significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition.

As at 1 April 2018, additional credit loss allowance of HK$6,384,000
for loans receivable has been recognised against accumulated profits.
The additional loss allowance is charged against the loans receivable.

No credit loss allowance for other financial assets has been
recognised as the directors of the Company consider that the amount
is immaterial.

Amendments to HKAS 40 “Transfers of Investment
Property”

The amendments clarify that a transfer to, or from, investment
property necessitates an assessment of whether a property
meets, or has ceased to meet, the definition of investment
property, supported by evidence that a change in use has
occurred. The amendments further clarify that situations other
than the ones listed in HKAS 40 may evidence a change in
use, and that a change in use is possible for properties under
construction (i.e. a change in use is not limited to completed
properties).

At the date of initial application, the Group assessed the
classification of certain properties based on conditions existing at
that date. There is no impact to the classification at 1 April 2018.
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z 201943 A31 HILFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and amendments
to HKFRSs and an interpretation that have been issued but are not
yet effective:

HKFRS 16 Leases!

HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts?

HK(IFRIC)-Int 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax
Treatments'

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Definition of a Business*

Amendments to HKFRS 9 Prepayment Features with Negative
Compensation’

Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets
and HKAS 28 between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture®

Amendments to HKAS 1 Definition of Material®

and HKAS 8
Amendments to HKAS 19 Plan Amendment, Curtailment or
Settlement!
Amendments to HKAS 28 Long-term Interests in Associates

and Joint Ventures'
Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2015-2017 Cycle!

Amendments to HKFRSs

0 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021.
g Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be determined.
9 Effective for business combinations and asset acquisitions for which the

acquisition date is on or after the beginning of the first annual period beginning
on or after 1 January 2020.
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2020.

Except as described below, the directors of the Company anticipate
that the application of other new and amendments to HKFRSs and
an interpretation will have no material impact on the consolidated
financial statements in the foreseeable future.

HKFRS 16 “Leases”

HKFRS 16 introduces a comprehensive model for the identification
of lease arrangements and accounting treatments for both lessors
and lessees. HKFRS 16 will supersede HKAS 17 and the related
interpretations when it becomes effective.

HKFRS 16 distinguishes lease and service contracts on the basis of
whether an identified asset is controlled by a customer. In addition,
HKFRS 16 requires sales and leaseback transactions to be determined
based on the requirements of HKFRS 15 as to whether the transfer of
the relevant asset should be accounted for as a sale. HKFRS 16 also
includes requirements relating to subleases and lease modifications.
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 &Z 201943 A 31 HIEFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective
(Continued)

HKFRS 16 “Leases” (Continued)

Distinctions of operating leases and finance leases are removed for
lessee accounting, and is replaced by a model where a right-of-use
asset and a corresponding liability have to be recognised for all leases
by lessees, except for short-term leases and leases of low value assets.

The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost and subsequently
measured at cost (subject to certain exceptions) less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses, adjusted for any remeasurement
of the lease liability. The lease liability is initially measured at the
present value of the lease payments that are not paid at that date.
Subsequently, the lease liability is adjusted for interest and lease
payments, as well as the impact of lease modifications, amongst
others. For the classification of cash flows, operating lease payments
are currently presented as operating cash flows. Upon application of
HKFRS 16, lease payments in relation to lease liability will be allocated
into a principal and an interest portion which will be presented as
financing cash flows by the Group, upfront prepaid lease payments
will be presented as investing or operating cash flows in accordance
to the nature, as appropriate.

Other than certain requirements which are also applicable to lessor,
HKFRS 16 substantially carries forward the lessor accounting
requirements in HKAS 17, and continues to require a lessor to classify
a lease either as an operating lease or a finance lease.

Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required by HKFRS 16.

As at 31 March 2019, the Group has non-cancellable operating lease
commitments of HK$3,536,000 as disclosed in note 36. A preliminary
assessment indicates that these arrangements will meet the definition
of a lease. Upon application of HKFRS 16, the Group will recognise a
right-of-use asset and a corresponding liability in respect of all these
leases unless they qualify for low value or short-term leases.

In addition, the Group currently considers refundable rental deposits
paid of HK$425,000 and refundable rental deposits received of
HK$24,551,000 as rights and obligations under leases to which
HKAS 17 applies. Based on the definition of lease payments under
HKFRS 16, such deposits are not payments relating to the right
to use the underlying assets, accordingly, the carrying amounts of
such deposits may be adjusted to amortised cost. Adjustments to
refundable rental deposits paid would be considered as additional
lease payments and included in the carrying amount of right-of-use
assets. Adjustments to refundable rental deposits received would be
considered as advance lease payments.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective
(Continued)

HKFRS 16 “Leases” (Continued)
The directors of the Company are assessing the impact of lease and
non-lease components for leasing arrangements as a lessor.

Furthermore, the application of new requirements may result in
changes in measurement, presentation and disclosure as indicated
above. The Group intends to elect the practical expedient to apply
HKFRS 16 to contracts that were previously identified as leases
applying HKAS 17 and HK(IFRIC)-Int 4 “Determining Whether an
Arrangement Contains a Lease” and not apply this standard to
contracts that were not previously identified as containing a lease
applying HKAS 17 and HK(IFRIC)-Int 4. Therefore, the Group will
not reassess whether the contracts are, or contain a lease which
already existed prior to the date of initial application. Furthermore, the
Group intends to elect the modified retrospective approach for the
application of HKFRS 16 as lessee and will recognise the cumulative
effect of initial application to opening accumulated profits without
restating comparative information.

Amendments to HKFRS 3 “Definition of a Business”

The amendments clarify the definition of a business and provide
additional guidance with the objective of assisting entities to
determine whether a transaction should be accounted for as a
business combination or an asset acquisition. Furthermore, an
optional concentration test is introduced to permit a simplified
assessment of whether an acquired set of activities and assets is
not a business. The amendments will be mandatorily effective to the
Group prospectively for acquisition transactions completed on or
after 1 April 2020.

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS 8 “Definition of Material”

The amendments provide refinements to the definition of material by
including additional guidance and explanations in making materiality
judgments. The amendments also align the definition across all
HKFRSs and will be mandatorily effective for the Group’s annual
period beginning on 1 April 2020. The application of the amendments
is not expected to have significant impact on the financial position
and performance of the Group but may affect the presentation and
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In addition, the
consolidated financial statements include applicable disclosures
required by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) and by the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the
historical cost basis except for investment properties and certain
financial instruments, which are measured at fair values, at the end of
the reporting period, as explained in the accounting policies set out
below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration
given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or
paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that
price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation
technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the
Group takes into account the characteristics of the asset or liability
if market participants would take those characteristics into account
when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value
for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these consolidated
financial statements is determined on such a basis, except for share-
based payment transactions that are within the scope of HKFRS
2 “Share-based Payment”, leasing transactions that are within the
scope of HKAS 17, and measurements that have some similarities to
fair value but are not fair value, such as net realisable value in HKAS
2 “Inventories” or value in use in HKAS 36 “Impairment of Assets”.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account
a market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using
the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market
participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

For financial instruments and investment properties which are
transacted at fair value and a valuation technique that unobservable
inputs is to be used to measure fair value in subsequent periods, the
valuation technique is calibrated so that the results of the valuation
technique equals the transaction price.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Basis of preparation (Continued)

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements
are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the degree to which
the inputs to the fair value measurements are observable and the
significance of the inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety,
which are described as follows:

o Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can access at the
measurement date;

o Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included
within Level 1, that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly or indirectly; and

o Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

The significant accounting policies are set out below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the Company
and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the Company:

o has power over the investee;

° is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

o has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts
and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of
the three elements of control listed above.

When the Group has less than a majority of the voting rights of an
investee, it has power over the investee when the voting rights are
sufficient to give it the practical ability to direct the relevant activities
of the investee unilaterally. The Group considers all relevant facts and
circumstances in assessing whether or not the Group’s voting rights
in an investee are sufficient to give it power, including:

. the size of the Group’s holding of voting rights relative to the
size and dispersion of holdings of the other vote holders;

o potential voting rights held by the Group or other vote holders;
. rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and
o any additional facts and circumstances that indicate that the

Group has, or does not have, the current ability to direct the
relevant activities at the time that decisions need to be made,
including voting patterns at previous shareholders’ meetings.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses of a
subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are included in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income from the date the Group gains control until the date when the
Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements
of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into line with the
Group’s accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and
cash flows relating to transactions between members of the Group
are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Changes in the Group’s interests in existing subsidiaries

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the assets and
liabilities of that subsidiary and non-controlling interests (if any) are
derecognised. A gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss and is
calculated as the difference between (i) the aggregate of the fair
value of the consideration received and the fair value of any retained
interest and (ii) the carrying amount of the assets (including goodwill),
and liabilities of the subsidiary attributable to the owners of the
Company. All amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive
income in relation to that subsidiary are accounted for as if the
Group had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities of the
subsidiary (i.e. reclassified to profit or loss or transferred to another
category of equity as specified/permitted by applicable HKFRSSs).
The fair value of any investment retained in the former subsidiary at
the date when control is lost is regarded as the fair value on initial
recognition for subsequent accounting under HKFRS 9/HKAS 39 or,
when applicable, the cost on initial recognition of an investment in an
associate or a joint venture.

Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses other than business combinations under
common control are accounted for using the acquisition method.
The consideration transferred in a business combination is measured
at fair value, which is calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date
fair values of the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred
by the Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the equity
interests issued by the Group in exchange for control of the acquiree.
Acquisition-related costs are generally recognised in profit or loss as
incurred.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Business combinations (Continued)
At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and the
liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair value, except that:

o deferred tax assets or liabilities, and assets or liabilities
related to employee benefit arrangements are recognised and
measured in accordance with HKAS 12 “Income Taxes” and
HKAS 19 “Employee Benefits” respectively;

o liabilities or equity instruments related to share-based payment
arrangements of the acquiree or share-based payment
arrangements of the Group entered into to replace share-
based payment arrangements of the acquiree are measured
in accordance with HKFRS 2 at the acquisition date (see the
accounting policy below); and

o assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held for sale in
accordance with HKFRS 5 “Non-current Assets Held for Sale
and Discontinued Operations” are measured in accordance
with that standard.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interests in the
acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer’s previously held equity
interest in the acquiree (if any) over the net amount of the identifiable
assets acquired and the liabilities assumed as at acquisition-
date. If, after re-assessment, the net amount of the identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interests
in the acquiree and the fair value of the acquirer’s previously held
interest in the acquiree (if any), the excess is recognised immediately
in profit or loss as a bargain purchase gain.

Acquisition of subsidiaries not constituting a business

When the Group acquires a group of assets and liabilities that do
not constitute a business, the Group identifies and recognises the
individual identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed by
allocating the purchase price first to the investment properties which
are subsequently measured under fair value model and financial
assets and financial liabilities at the respective fair values, the
remaining balance of the purchase price is then allocated to the other
individual identifiable assets and liabilities on the basis of their relative
fair values at the date of purchase. Such a transaction does not give
rise to goodwill or bargain purchase gain.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Non-current assets held for sale

Non-current assets and disposal groups are classified as held for
sale if their carrying amount will be recovered principally through a
sale transaction rather than through continuing use. This condition
is regarded as met only when the assets (or disposal group) are
available for immediate sale in its present condition subject only
to terms that are usual and customary for sales of such asset (or
disposal group) and its sale is highly probable. Management must
be committed to the sale, which should be expected to qualify for
recognition as a completed sale within one year from the date of
classification.

When the Group is committed to a sale plan involving loss of control
of a subsidiary, all of the assets and liabilities of that subsidiary are
classified as held for sale when the criteria described above are met,
regardless of whether the Group will retain a non-controlling interest
in the relevant subsidiary after the sale.

Non-current assets (and disposal groups) classified as held for sale
are measured at the lower of their previous carrying amount and
fair value less costs to sell, except for investment properties which
continue to be measured in accordance with the accounting policies
as set out in respective sections.

Revenue from contracts with customers (upon application of
HKFRS 15 in accordance with transitions in note 2)

Under HKFRS 15, the Group recognises revenue when (or as) a
performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of the goods
or services underlying the particular performance obligation is
transferred to the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or service (or a bundle
of goods or services) that is distinct or a series of distinct goods or
services that are substantially the same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised over time
by reference to the progress towards complete satisfaction of the
relevant performance obligation if one of the following criteria is met:

o the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the
benefits provided by the Group’s performance as the Group
performs;

° the Group’s performance creates or enhances an asset that
the customer controls as the Group performs; or

o the Group’s performance does not create an asset with an
alternative use to the Group and the Group has an enforceable
right to payment for performance completed to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when the
customer obtains control of the distinct good or service.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Revenue recognition (prior to 1 April 2018)

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received
or receivable and represents amounts receivable for goods sold and
services provided in the normal course of business, net of discounts
and sales related taxes.

Revenue is recognised when the amount of revenue can be reliably
measured; when it is probable that future economic benefits will flow
to the Group and when specific criteria have been met for each of the
Group’s activities, as described below.

Dividend and interest income

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the
shareholders’ rights to receive payment have been established
(provided that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Group and the amount of revenue can be measured reliably).

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is
probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the
amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest income is
accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and
at the effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash receipts through the expected
life of the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying amount on initial
recognition.

Rental income
The Group’s policy for recognition of revenue from operating leases
is described in the accounting policy for leasing below.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the
lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to
the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised on a straight-line
basis over the term of the relevant lease. Initial direct costs incurred
in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the
carrying amount of the leased asset.

The Group as lessee
Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term.

In the event that lease incentives are received to enter into operating
leases, such incentives are recognised as a liability. The aggregate
benefit of incentives is recognised as a reduction of rental expense on
a straight-line basis.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group entity,
transactions in currencies other than the functional currency of that
entity (foreign currencies) are recorded in the respective functional
currency (i.e. the currency of the primary economic environment in
which the entity operates) at the rates of exchange prevailing on
the dates of the transactions. At the end of the reporting period,
monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items carried at fair
value that are denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing on the date when the fair value was determined.
Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a
foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items,
and on the retranslation of monetary items, are recognised in profit
or loss in the period in which they arise. Exchange differences arising
on the retranslation of non-monetary items carried at fair value are
included in profit or loss for the period.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial statements,
the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign operations are
translated into the presentation currency of the Group (i.e. Hong Kong
dollars) at the rate of exchange prevailing at the end of each reporting
period. Income and expenses are translated at the average exchange
rates for the period, unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly
during the period, in which case, the exchange rates prevailing at the
dates of transactions are used. Exchange differences arising, if any,
are recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in
equity under the heading of exchange reserve.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction
or production of qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily
take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use
or sale, are added to the cost of those assets, until such time as the
assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific
borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is
deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period
in which they are incurred.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable
and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from “profit before taxation” as reported in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income because of items of income or expense that are taxable
or deductible in other years and items that are never taxable or
deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax is calculated using tax
rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated financial
statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation
of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for
all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are generally
recognised for all deductible temporary differences to the extent
that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which
those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such assets
and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises
from goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than in a business
combination) of other assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects
neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries except where
the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary difference
and it is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in
the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising from deductible
temporary differences associated with such investments are only
recognised to the extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient
taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits of the temporary
differences and they are expected to reverse in the foreseeable
future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of
each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or
part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that
are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is settled or
the asset is realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax
consequences that would follow from the manner in which the Group
expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the
carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for investment properties
that are measured using the fair value model, the carrying amounts
of such properties are presumed to be recovered entirely through
sale, unless the presumption is rebutted. The presumption is rebutted
when the investment property is depreciable and is held within a
business model whose objective is to consume substantially all of the
economic benefits embodied in the investment property over time,
rather than through sale.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax
liabilities and when they relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority and the Group intends to settle its current tax
assets and liabilities on a net basis.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss, except
when they relate to items that are recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, in which case, the current and deferred
tax are also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity respectively. When current or deferred tax arises from the initial
accounting for a business combination, the tax effect is included in
the accounting for the business combination.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position at cost less subsequent accumulated
depreciation and subsequent accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of items of
property, plant and equipment less their residual values over their
estimated useful lives, using the straight-line method. The estimated
useful lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at
the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in
estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise
from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the
disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment
is determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals and/or for
capital appreciation (including properties under development for such
purposes).

Investment properties are initially measured at cost, including any
directly attributable expenditure. Subsequent to initial recognition,
investment properties are measured at their fair values. All of the
Group’s property interests held under operating leases to earn rentals
or for capital appreciation purposes are classified and account for as
investment properties and are measured using the fair value model.
Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of investment
properties are included in profit or loss in the period in which they
arise.

Construction costs incurred for investment properties under
development are capitalised as part of the carrying amount of the
investment properties under development. Investment properties
under development are measured at fair value at the end of each
reporting period. Any difference between the fair value of the
investment properties under development and their carrying amounts
is recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

If an item of property, plant and equipment becomes an investment
property because its use has changed as evidenced by end of owner-
occupation, any difference between the carrying amount and the fair
value of that item is recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in property revaluation reserve. On the subsequent sale
or retirement of the asset, the relevant revaluation reserve will be
transferred directly to accumulated profits.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when the
investment property is permanently withdrawn from use and no future
economic benefits are expected from its disposals. Any gain or loss
arising on derecognition of the property (calculated as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset) is included in profit or loss in the period in which the property
is derecognised.

Properties held for development for sale
Properties held for development for sale are classified as current
assets and stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Costs relating to the development of properties, including purchase
costs of the properties for development, development costs
and borrowing costs capitalised, are capitalised and included as
properties held for development until such time when they are
completed.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a
group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument. All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets
are recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular
way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets
that require delivery of assets within the time frame established by
regulation or convention in the market place.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at
fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other
than financial assets or financial liabilities at FVTPL) are added to
or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial
liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs
directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial
liabilities at FVTPL are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised
cost of a financial asset or financial liability and of allocating interest
income and interest expense over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
receipts and payments (including all fees and points paid or received
that form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction
costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of
the financial asset or financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter
period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest income which is derived from the Group’s ordinary course of
business is presented as revenue.

Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets (upon
application of HKFRS 9 in accordance with transitions in note 2)
Financial assets that meet the following conditions are subsequently
measured at amortised cost:

o the financial asset is held within a business model whose
objective is to collect contractual cash flows; and

o the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets (upon
application of HKFRS 9 in accordance with transitions in note 2)
(Continued)
Financial assets that meet the following conditions are subsequently
measured at fair value through other comprehensive income
(“FVTOCI”):

° the financial asset is held within a business model whose
objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows
and selling; and

. the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding.

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at FVTPL,
except that at the date of initial application or initial recognition of a
financial asset the Group may irrevocably elect to present subsequent
changes in fair value of an equity investment in other comprehensive
income (“OCI”) if that equity investment is neither held for trading nor
contingent consideration recognised by an acquirer in a business
combination to which HKFRS 3 “Business Combinations” applies.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

o it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling in the
near term; or

° on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of identified
financial instruments that the Group manages together and has
a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

o it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a
hedging instrument.

In addition, the Group may irrevocably designate a financial asset that
is required to be measured at amortised cost or FVTOCI as measured
at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting
mismatch.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets (upon
application of HKFRS 9 in accordance with transitions in note 2)
(Continued)

(i)

(i

Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest
method for financial assets measured subsequently at
amortised cost and debt instruments subsequently measured
at FVTOCI. Interest income is calculated by applying the
effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount of a financial
asset, except for financial assets that have subsequently
become credit-impaired. For financial assets that have
subsequently become credit-impaired, interest income is
recognised by applying the effective interest rate to the
amortised cost of the financial asset from the next reporting
period. If the credit risk on the credit-impaired financial
instrument improves so that the financial asset is no longer
credit-impaired, interest income is recognised by applying
the effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount of
the financial asset from the beginning of the reporting period
following the determination that the asset is no longer credit-
impaired.

Debt instruments classified as at FVTOCI

Subsequent changes in the carrying amounts for debt
instruments classified as at FVTOCI as a result of interest
income calculated using the effective interest method are
recognised in profit or loss. All other changes in the carrying
amount of these debt instruments are recognised in OCI and
accumulated under the heading of investment revaluation
reserve. Impairment allowances are recognised in profit or loss
with corresponding adjustment to OCI without reducing the
carrying amounts of these debt instruments. The amounts that
are recognised in profit or loss are the same as the amounts
that would have been recognised in profit or loss if these debt
instruments had been measured at amortised cost. When
these debt instruments are derecognised, the cumulative gains
or losses previously recognised in OCI are reclassified to profit
or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets (upon
application of HKFRS 9 in accordance with transitions in note 2)
(Continued)

(i) Financial assets at FVTPL
Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for being
measured at amortised cost or FVTOCI or designated as
FVTOCI are measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at the end
of each reporting period, with any fair value gains or losses
recognised in profit or loss. The net gain or loss recognised in
profit or loss includes any dividend or interest earned on the
financial asset and is included in the “net gain/loss on changes
in fair value of financial assets at FVTPL” line item.

Impairment of financial assets (upon application of HKFRS 9 with
transitions in accordance with note 2)

The Group recognises a loss allowance for ECL on financial assets
which are subject to impairment under HKFRS 9 (including trade
and other receivables, loans receivable, debt instruments at FVTOCI,
bank deposits with original maturity of more than three months and
bank balances). The amount of ECL is updated at each reporting date
to reflect changes in credit risk since initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all possible
default events over the expected life of the relevant instrument. In
contrast, 12m ECL represents the portion of lifetime ECL that is
expected to result from default events that are possible within 12
months after the reporting date. Assessment is done based on the
Group’s historical credit loss experience, adjusted for factors that
are specific to the debtors, general economic conditions and an
assessment of both the current conditions at the reporting date as
well as the forecast of future conditions.

For these assets, the Group measures the loss allowance equal to
12m ECL, unless when there has been a significant increase in credit
risk since initial recognition, the Group recognises lifetime ECL. The
assessment of whether lifetime ECL should be recognised is based
on significant increases in the likelihood or risk of a default occurring
since initial recognition.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application of HKFRS 9 with
transitions in accordance with note 2) (Continued)

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased significantly
since initial recognition, the Group compares the risk of a
default occurring on the financial instrument as at the reporting
date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the date of initial recognition. In making
this assessment, the Group considers both quantitative and
qualitative information that is reasonable and supportable,
including historical experience and forward-looking information
that is available without undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into account
when assessing whether credit risk has increased significantly:

o an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
financial instrument’s external (if available) or internal
credit rating;

. significant deterioration in external market indicators of
credit risk, e.g. a significant increase in the credit spread,
the credit default swap prices for the borrower or debtor;

o existing or forecast adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions that are expected
to cause a significant decrease in the borrower’s or
debtor’s ability to meet its debt obligations;

o an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
operating results of the borrower or debtor;

o an actual or expected significant adverse change in
the regulatory, economic, or technological environment
of the borrower or debtor that results in a significant
decrease in the borrower’s or debtor’s ability to meet its
debt obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment, the
Group presumes that the credit risk has increased significantly
since initial recognition when contractual payments are more
than 30 days past due, unless the Group has reasonable and
supportable information that demonstrates otherwise.
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3.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 3. TESHEEGE)

Financial instruments (Continued) ST E (&)

Financial assets (Continued) THEE (8)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application of HKFRS 9 with TR ER SR EEE AT E (IRFEHT

transitions in accordance with note 2) (Continued) iF2 BB fE & B AR 2R

E9%) (&)

(i)  Significant increase in credit risk (Continued) () 1EERBREZEME)
Despite the aforegoing, the Group assumes that the credit BEML  WEKIAEEAR
risk on a debt instrument has not increased significantly since HwERBANEERRERR - AR
initial recognition if the debt instrument is determined to SEREAEEILEANEERRA
have low credit risk at the reporting date. A debt instrument VA RER ARG M E 12 10 o 14
is determined to have low credit risk if () it has a low risk of HIRLATIEN BB T ARE
default, (i) the borrower has a strong capacity to meet its EAREERBRFEE : ()ABEE
contractual cash flow obligations in the near term and (i) KR ()VERABEEHEE S
adverse changes in economic and business conditions in the REBHABTESNRERER
longer term may, but will not necessarily, reduce the ability of £ 5 R (iii) &8 R EBARH K E
the borrower to fulfil its contractual cash flow obligations. The TR EB) ] LB R M HIF51E K
Group considers the credit risk of the debt instrument mainly ABTTEAHRESREETHRE
with reference to external credit rating of ‘investment grade’ as N AEBEELEIPBEERF
per globally understood definitions. BAMRERR | (RREIRIER 2

Bx)ZREBIAZEERR -

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of the criteria AEBEFHEE A HEREER
used to identify whether there has been a significant increase [ & ARG ANAIZEAE 7 %025 -
in credit risk and revises them as appropriate to ensure that the BETIZEE(NEE ) REEREAE
criteria are capable of identifying significant increase in credit BRI EERBR A
risk before the amount becomes past due. TEIZhN o

(i)  Definition of default (i) EBHER
For internal credit risk management, the Group considers an RAREERREEMS @ A%
event of default occurs when information developed internally BIREENEHERNILHEIHE
or obtained from external sources indicates that the debtor is BIAINRHBERE R BREEAT
unlikely to pay its creditors, including the Group, in full (without KA BB MEEA(RIEAE
taking into account any collaterals held by the Group). ) B CRET RAEBFT i (A

ARG ) BB A o

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers that default has Tim LB AEBREBEYD
occurred when a financial asset is more than 90 days past due HHBELERZEREERIBG
unless the Group has reasonable and supportable information 90H ' EAEEEREAERER
to demonstrate that a more lagging default criterion is more MER BT ERAENIZEE
appropriate. HEEBRIN ©
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application of HKFRS 9 with
transitions in accordance with note 2) (Continued)

(ii)

(iv)

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events
that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash
flows of that financial asset have occurred. Evidence that a
financial asset is credit-impaired includes observable data
about the following events:

o significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the
borrower;

o a breach of contract, such as a default or past due
event;

o the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or

contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s financial
difficulty, having granted to the borrower a concession(s)
that the lender(s) would not otherwise consider;

° it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; or

o the disappearance of an active market for that financial
asset because of financial difficulties.

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is information
indicating that the counterparty is in severe financial difficulty
and there is no realistic prospect of recovery, for example,
when the counterparty has been placed under liquidation or
has entered into bankruptcy proceedings, or in the case of
trade receivables, when the amounts are over two years past
due, whichever occurs sooner. Financial assets written off may
still be subject to enforcement activities under the Group’s
recovery procedures, taking into account legal advice where
appropriate. A write-off constitutes a derecognition event. Any
subsequent recoveries are recognised in profit or loss.
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3.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application of HKFRS 9 with
transitions in accordance with note 2) (Continued)

v)

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability of
default, loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the loss if
there is a default) and the exposure at default. The assessment
of the probability of default and loss given default is based
on historical data adjusted by forward-looking information.
Estimation of ECL reflects an unbiased and probability-
weighted amount that is determined with the respective risks of
default occurring as the weights.

Generally, the ECL is estimated as the difference between all
contractual cash flows that are due to the Group in accordance
with the contract and all the cash flows that the Group expects
to receive, discounted at the effective interest rate determined
at initial recognition.

Where ECL is measured on a collective basis, the financial

instruments are grouped on the basis below:

o nature of financial instruments (i.e. the Group’s other
receivables are assessed as a separate group);

o past-due status;
o nature, size and industry of debtors; and
. external credit ratings where available.

The grouping is regularly reviewed by management to ensure
the constituents of each group continue to share similar credit
risk characteristics.

Interest income is calculated based on the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset unless the financial asset is credit-
impaired, in which case interest income is calculated based on
amortised cost of the financial asset.

Except for investments in debt instruments that are measured
at FVTOCI, the Group recognises an impairment gain or loss
in profit or loss for all financial instruments by adjusting their
carrying amount, with the exception of loans receivable where
the corresponding adjustment is recognised through a loss
allowance account. For investments in debt instruments that
are measured at FVTOCI, the loss allowance is recognised
in OCI and accumulated in the investment revaluation
reserve without reducing the carrying amount of these debt
instruments.
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 &Z 201943 A 31 HIEFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets
(before application of HKFRS 9 on 1 April 2018)

The Group’s financial assets are classified into three categories
including financial assets at FVTPL, available-for-sale financial assets
and loans and receivables. The classification depends on the nature
and purpose of the financial assets and is determined at the time of
initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt
instruments other than those financial assets classified as at FVTPL,
of which interest income is excluded in net gains or losses.

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets are classified as at FVTPL when the financial assets
s (i) held for trading or (i) it is designated as at FVTPL on initial
recognition.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

o it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling in the
near future; or

° on initial recognition it is a part of an identified portfolio of
financial instruments that the Group manages together and has
a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

o it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a
hedging instrument.

A financial asset other than a financial asset held for trading may be
designated as at FVTPL upon initial recognition if:

o such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a
measurement or recognition inconsistency that would
otherwise arise; or

o the financial asset forms part of a group of financial assets
or financial liabilities or both, which is managed and its
performance is evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance
with the Group’s documented risk management or investment
strategy, and information about the grouping is provided
internally on that basis; or

. it forms part of a contract containing one or more embedded
derivatives, and HKAS 39 permits the entire combined contract
(asset or liability) to be designated as at FVTPL.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets
(before application of HKFRS 9 on 1 April 2018) (Continued)

Financial assets at FVTPL (Continued)
Financial assets at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with any gains or
losses arising on remeasurement recognised in profit or loss. The
net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss excludes any dividend or
interest earned on the financial assets.

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that are either
designated as available-for-sale or are not classified as (a) loans and
receivables, (b) held-to-maturity investments, or (c) financial assets at
FVTPL.

Available-for-sale financial assets are measured at fair value at the
end of each reporting period except for unquoted equity investments
whose fair value cannot be reliably measured. Dividends on available-
for-sale equity instruments are recognised in profit or loss when
the Group’s right to receive the dividends is established. Changes
in fair value are recognised in OCI and accumulated in investment
revaluation reserve, until the financial asset is disposed of or is
determined to be impaired, at which time, the cumulative gain or
loss previously accumulated in the investment revaluation reserve is
reclassified to profit or loss.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed
or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market.
Loans and receivables (including trade and other receivables, loans
receivable and bank balances and cash) are measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method, less any impairment.

Impairment of financial assets (before application of HKFRS 9 on 1
April 2018)

Financial assets, other than financial assets at FVTPL, are assessed
for indicators of impairment at the end of each reporting period.
Financial assets are considered to be impaired when there is objective
evidence that, as a result of one or more events that occurred after
the initial recognition of the financial asset, the estimated future cash
flows of the financial assets have been affected.

For available-for-sale equity investments, a significant or prolonged
decline in the fair value of the security below its cost is considered to
be objective evidence of impairment.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (before application of HKFRS 9 on 1
April 2018) (Continued)

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of impairment could
include:

o significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty; or

o breach of contract, such as default or delinquency in interest or
principal payments; or

o it becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or
financial re-organisation; or

o the disappearance of an active market for that financial asset
because of financial difficulties.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of the
impairment loss is recognised as the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of the estimated future cash
flows discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the
impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the exception
of trade and other receivables and loans receivable, where the
carrying amount is reduced through the use of an allowance
account. Changes in the carrying amount of the allowance account
are recognised in profit or loss. When an item of trade and other
receivables or loans receivable is considered uncollectible, it is written
off against the allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off are credited to profit or loss.

When an available-for-sale financial asset is considered to be
impaired, cumulative gains or losses previously recognised in OCl are
reclassified to profit or loss in the period.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a subsequent
period, the amount of impairment loss decreases and the decrease
can be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment
loss was recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss is
reversed through profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount
of the asset at the date the impairment is reversed does not exceed
what the amortised cost would have been had the impairment not
been recognised.

Impairment losses on available-for-sale equity investments previously
recognised in profit or loss are not reversed through profit or loss. Any
increase in fair value subsequent to an impairment loss is recognised
in OCl and accumulated in investment revaluation reserve.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Modification of financial assets

For modifications that do not result in derecognition, the gross
carrying amount of the asset is recalculated by discounting the
modified contractual cash flows using the effective interest rate before
modification. Any difference between this recalculated amount and
the existing gross carrying amount is recognised in profit or loss
as a modification gain or loss. Any costs or fees incurred as part of
the modification adjust the carrying amount of the modified financial
asset, and are amortised over the remaining term of the modified
financial asset.

Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual
rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or when it transfers the
financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
of the asset to another entity. If the Group neither transfers nor retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and continues
to control the transferred asset, the Group recognises its retained
interest in the asset and an associated liability for amounts it may
have to pay. If the Group retains substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Group continues
to recognise the financial asset and also recognises a collateralised
borrowing for the proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortised cost, the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the
consideration received and receivable is recognised in profit or loss.

On derecognition of an investment in a debt instrument classified
as at FVTOCI upon application of HKFRS 9, the cumulative gain or
loss previously accumulated in the investment revaluation reserve is
reclassified to profit or loss.

On derecognition of an available-for-sale financial asset, the
cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated in the investment
revaluation reserve is reclassified to profit or loss.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity are classified as
either financial liabilities or as equity instruments in accordance with
the substance of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of
a financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest
in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity
instruments issued by the Group are recognised at the proceeds
received, net of direct issue costs.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities (including trade and other payables and secured
bank borrowings) are subsequently measured at amortised cost,
using the effective interest method.

Convertible notes containing liability and equity components

The component parts of compounds instruments (convertible notes)
issued by the Company are classified separately as financial liabilities
and equity in accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity
instrument. A conversion option that will be settled by the exchange
of a fixed amount of cash or another financial asset for a fixed number
of the Company’s own equity instruments is an equity instrument.

At the date of issue, the fair value of the liability component is
estimated using the prevailing market interest rate for similar non-
convertible instruments. This amount is recorded as a liability on
an amortised cost basis using the effective interest method until
extinguished upon conversion or at the instrument’s maturity date.

The conversion option classified as equity is determined by
deducting the amount of the liability component from the fair value
of the compound instrument as a whole. This is recognised and
included in equity, net of income tax effects, and is not subsequently
remeasured. In addition, the conversion option classified as equity
will remain in equity until the conversion option is exercised, in which
case, the balance recognised in equity will be transferred to share
premium. Where the conversion option remains unexercised at the
maturity date of the convertible notes, the balance recognised in
equity will be transferred to accumulated profits. No gain or loss
is recognised in profit or loss upon conversion or expiration of the
conversion option.

Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the convertible notes are
allocated to the liability and equity components in proportion to the
allocation of the gross proceeds. Transaction costs relating to the
equity component are charged directly to equity. Transaction costs
relating to the liability component are included in the carrying amount
of the liability portion and amortised over the lives of the convertible
notes using the effective interest method.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Continued)

Convertible notes containing liability and equity components
(Continued)

When the Group modifies the terms of convertible note, the equity
portion of the original convertible note is transferred to accumulated
profits in equity. When such modification results in the discounted
present value of the cash flows under the new terms including any
fees paid net of any fees received is at least 10% different from the
discounted present values of the remaining cash flows of the original
financial liability, it is accounted for as an extinguishment of the
original financial liability and a recognition of a new financial liability or
equity instrument or compound instrument with the difference, being
the carrying amount of the financial liability extinguished and the fair
value of the financial liability, equity instrument, compound instrument
issued and/or hybrid instrument, recognised in profit or loss.

Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the date when
derivative contracts are entered into and are subsequently
remeasured to their fair value at the end of each reporting period. The
resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss.

Generally, multiple embedded derivatives in a single instrument
that are separated from the host contracts are treated as a single
compound embedded derivative unless those derivatives relate to
different risk exposures and are readily separable and independent of
each other.

Embedded derivatives (under HKFRS 9 since 1 April 2018)

Derivatives embedded in hybrid contracts that contain financial asset
hosts within the scope of HKFRS 9 are not separated. The entire
hybrid contract is classified and subsequently measured in its entirety
as either amortised cost or fair value as appropriate.

Derivatives embedded in non-derivative host contracts that are not
financial assets within the scope of HKFRS 9 are treated as separate
derivatives when they meet the definition of a derivative, their risks
and characteristics are not closely related to those of the host
contracts and the host contracts are not measured at FVTPL.

Embedded derivatives (before application of HKFRS 9 on 1 April
2018)

Derivatives embedded in non-derivative host contracts are treated
as separate derivatives when they meet the definition of a derivative,
their risks and characteristics are not closely related to those of the
host contracts and the host contracts are not measured at FVTPL.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when,
the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or have expired.
The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is recognised
in profit or loss.

Impairment of non-financial assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying
amounts of its assets to determine whether there is any indication that
those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication
exists, the recoverable amount of the relevant asset is estimated in
order to determine the extent of the impairment loss, if any.

The recoverable amount of assets are estimated individually. When
it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an asset
individually, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit to which the asset belongs. When a reasonable and
consistent basis of allocation can be identified, corporate assets are
also allocated to individual cash-generating units, or otherwise they
are allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating units for which
a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal
and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash
flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset (or a cash-generating unit)
for which the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating unit) is
estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount
of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable
amount. An impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or
loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is increased to the
revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased
carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would
have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for
the asset (or a cash-generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an
impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Retirement benefits costs

Payments to the state-sponsored pension scheme operated by the
People’s Republic of China (“PRC”) government or the Hong Kong
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme are recognised as an expense
when employees have rendered services entitling them to the
contributions.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the undiscounted
amount of the benefits expected to be paid as and when employees
rendered the services. All short-term employee benefits are
recognised as an expense unless another HKFRS requires or permits
the inclusion of the benefit in the cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees (such as
wages and salaries) after deducting any amount already paid.

Share-based payment transactions
Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

Share options granted to employees

Equity-settled share-based payments to employees and others
providing similar services are measured at the fair value of the equity
instruments at the grant date.

The fair value of the equity-settled share-based payments determined
at the grant date without taking into consideration all non-market
vesting conditions is expensed on a straight-line basis over the
vesting period, based on the Group’s estimate of equity instruments
that will eventually vest, with a corresponding increase in equity (share
options reserve). At the end of each reporting period, the Group
revises its estimate of the number of equity instruments expected
to vest based on assessment of all relevant non-market vesting
conditions. The impact of the revision of the original estimates, if
any, is recognised in profit or loss such that the cumulative expense
reflects the revised estimate, with a corresponding adjustment to the
share options reserve. For share options that vest immediately at the
date of grant, the fair value of the share options granted is expensed
immediately to profit or loss.

When share options are exercised, the amount previously recognised
in share options reserve will be transferred to share capital and
share premium, as appropriate. When the share options are forfeited
after the vesting date or are still not exercised at the expiry date,
the amount previously recognised in share options reserve will be
transferred to accumulated profits.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND KEY SOURCES
OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are
described in note 3, the directors of the Company are required to
make judgments, estimates and assumptions about the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from
other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are based
on historical experience and other factors that are considered to be
relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in
the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only
that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the
revision affects both current and future periods.

Critical judgments in applying accounting policies

The following are the critical judgments, apart from those involving
estimations (see below), that the directors of the Company have
made in the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies and
that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the
consolidated financial statements.

Deferred taxation on investment properties

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities or deferred tax
assets arising from investment properties that are measured using
the fair value model, the management has reviewed the Group’s
investment properties portfolios and concluded that while the
Group’s investment properties located in Hong Kong and Singapore
are depreciable, they are not held under a business model whose
objective is to consume substantially all of the economic benefits
embodied in the investment properties over time. Therefore, in
determining the Group’s deferred taxation arising from investment
properties located in Hong Kong and Singapore, the management
determined that presumption that investment properties measured
using the fair value model are recovered through sale is not rebutted.

For the Group’s investment properties located in the PRC, the
management concluded that they are depreciable and are being held
under a business model whose objective is to consume substantially
all of the economic benefits embodied in the investment properties
over time, rather than through sale. Therefore, in determining the
Group’s deferred taxation arising from investment properties located
in the PRC, management determined that the presumption that
investment properties measured using the fair value model are
recovered through sale is rebutted.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND KEY SOURCES
OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future, and
other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to
the carrying amounts of assets within the next financial year.

Investment properties

Some of the Group’s assets are measured at fair value for financial
reporting purposes. The Group has a designated team to determine
the appropriate valuation techniques and key inputs for fair value
measurements.

In estimating the fair value of the Group’s investment properties,
the Group uses market-observable data to the extent they are
available. Where Level 1 inputs are not available, the Group engages
independent firms of qualified professional property valuers to
perform valuation of the Group’s investment properties. At the
end of the reporting period, the management works closely with
the independent firms of qualified professional property valuers to
establish and determine the appropriate valuation techniques and key
inputs for fair value measurements. Where there is a material change
in the fair value of the assets, the causes of the fluctuations will be
reported to the directors of the Company. Information about the
valuation techniques and key inputs used in determining the fair value
of the Group’s investment properties is disclosed in note 15.

Impairment assessment of loans receivable (upon application of
HKFRS 9 with transitions in accordance with note 2)
Management regularly reviews the impairment assessment
and evaluates the ECL of loans receivable, which amounted to
HK$336,010,000 at 31 March 2019. Appropriate impairment
allowance of HK$2,808,000 was recognised in profit or loss during
the year ended 31 March 2019.

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased significantly since
initial recognition, the Group compares the risk of a default occurring
on the financial instrument as at the reporting date with the one
as at the date of initial recognition. In making this assessment, the
loans receivable from borrowers are assessed individually by the
management of the Group, based on the financial background,
financial condition and historical settlement records, including past
due dates and default rates, of each borrower and reasonable and
supportable forward-looking information such as macroeconomic
data that is available without undue cost or effort.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND KEY SOURCES
OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Impairment assessment of loans receivable (upon application of
HKFRS 9 with transitions in accordance with note 2) (Continued)
Each borrower is assigned a risk grading under internal credit ratings
to calculate the ECL, taking into consideration of the estimates of
expected cash shortfalls which are driven by estimates of possibility
of default and the amount and timing of cash flows that are expected
from foreclosure on the collaterals (if any) less the costs of obtaining
and selling the collaterals. At every reporting date, the financial
background, financial condition and historical settlement records
are reassessed and changes in the forward-looking information are
considered.

The provision of ECL is sensitive to changes in estimates. The
information about the ECL and the Group’s loans receivable are
disclosed in notes 32 and 16 respectively.

Impairment assessment of loans receivable (before application
of HKFRS 9 on 1 April 2018)

Management regularly reviewed the recoverability of loans receivable,
which amounted to HK$265,297,000 at 31 March 2018. Appropriate
impairment loss for estimated irrecoverable amount was recognised
in profit or loss when there was objective evidence that the amount
was not recoverable.

The amount of the impairment of loans receivable was estimated
based on credit reviews of the outstanding balances from
loans receivable and an evaluation of the amounts expected to
be recovered with reference to financial background, current
creditworthiness, collateral and past collection history of the
borrowers. Where the actual future cash flows are less than
expected or being revised downward due to changes in facts and
circumstances, a material impairment loss or further impairment loss
may arise. No impairment allowance on loans receivable was made
during the year ended 31 March 2018.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND KEY SOURCES
OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Determination of net realisable value of properties held for
development for sale

Management regularly reviews the recoverability of the Group’s
properties held for development for sale, which are situated
in Hong Kong and amounted to HK$1,730,263,000 (2018:
HK$1,634,964,000) at 31 March 2019, with reference to current
market environment whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount of the assets may exceed its net
realisable value. Appropriate write-down for estimated irrecoverable
amount is recognised in profit or loss when the net realisable value
is below cost. The estimates of net realisable value are determined
based on best available information and with reference to valuations
made, less the anticipated costs to completion. Actual realised
amount may differ from estimates, resulting in a decrease or
an increase in the net realisable value of the properties held for
development for sale and additional write-down or reversal of write-
down previously recognised may be required.

REVENUE

Revenue represents the aggregate of rental income from property
leasing and interest income from loan financing during the year. An
analysis of the Group’s revenue is as follows:
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2019 2018

HK$°000 HK$’000

FHET FHT

Rental income HEWA 42,627 33,012
Interest income from loan financing KB EXREE 22U A 19,601 16,593
62,228 49,605

Rental income and interest income from loan financing fall outside the
scope of HKFRS 15.

This is consistent with the revenue information disclosed for each
reportable segment.
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SEGMENT INFORMATION 6. EER
Information reported to the Group’s chief executive officer, being MEBBPRESERRTEMS © 2/
the chief operating decision maker (“CODM”), for the purposes of WBREF 7 TBREREE([TERE
resource allocation and assessment of segment performance focuses RIRE D) BEREITRAREZER - &S
on types of goods delivered or services provided. This is also the RERRMHRBEIREZTELSE - KA
basis of organisation, whereby the management has chosen to MR B - BIREEE DL RAARAR
organise the Group around differences in products and services. EEEMEREZEZE -
The Group’s operating and reportable segments under HKFRS 8 RIBEBBMBREERESR [KLED
“Operating segments” are: (a) property investment, (b) property ¥ AEBZEERERDES ()
development, (c) investment in securities and (d) loan financing. MERE - O)MEZE - (c )m%&ﬁ)&
( ) as)\lﬂﬁ
Segment revenue and results pak i} “%%E&%ii
The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and results by BICERERDBEOMAEB 2 EXETE
operating and reportable segment: KRBT -
For the year ended 31 March 2019 ELZ2019F 3 31 HIFFE
Property Property Investment Loan
investment  development i securities financing ~ Consolidated
NERE NERR E5RE EXRE &4
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TiEn TiEn TiEn TiEx TiEx
(note) (note)
(3E) (M)
Segment revenue PEEEE
External IR 42,627 - - 19,601 62,228
Segment profit (0ss) NERFI(BR) 70,228 32,782 (16,500) 5,726 92,23
Other gains and losses sk ER (395)
Other expenses EfhE% (58)
Finance costs BEKK (36,310)
Unallocated corporate income LI/ ON 7,131
Unallocated corporate expenses ENRAARY (11,700)
Profit before taxation BRANEH 50,910
SIWEEFRAT | 2019 F;
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6. DEER ()
Segment revenue and results (Continued) DIEHEEBEREE ()
For the year ended 31 March 2018 HZ 201843 H31 HIFFE
Property Property Investment Loan
investment  development in securities financing  Consolidated
mERE NELR BHERE BHpE e
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Tin Titn Titn Titn Tin
(note) (note)
(W) (W)
Segment revenue PEELE
External AR 33,012 - - 16,593 49,605
Segment profit (loss) HEEF (E8) 91,258 (4,880) (1,316) 9,208 94,270
Other gains and losses Bl REE 1,852
Other expenses EthF% (121)
Finance costs BERA (31,373)
Unallocated corporate income NN ON 7677
Unallocated corporate expenses BARAARL (17,397)
Profit before taxation BB AT R R 54,608

Note: Rental income generated from properties held for development for sale was
included in the property investment segment.

Segment profit (loss) represents the result of each segment without
allocation of other gains and losses, other expenses, finance
costs, and unallocated corporate income and expenses. There are
asymmetrical allocations to operating segments because the Group
allocates fair value changes of financial assets at FVTPL to segment
of investment in securities without allocating the relevant financial
instruments to those segment assets. This is the measure reported
to the Group’s CODM for the purposes of resource allocation and
performance assessment.
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Segment assets and liabilities
The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets and liabilities by
operating and reportable segment:

Segment assets PEEE

Property investment PERE

Property development LIE3

Investment in securities BERE

Loan financing BEXmE

Total segment assets DIREEETE

Unallocated financial assets at ESRIRAFEF AR
FVTPL ZEeREE

Bank deposits with original maturity #38 =18 A 2| Hi 2 R1T1F K
of more than three months

Bank balances and cash IRITHEBRES
Others Hith
Consolidated assets RAEBE
Segment liabilities PEEE
Property investment PERE
Property development VIR
Investment in securities HEKE

Loan financing BEFwE

Total segment liabilities A EETE
Secured bank borrowings BRFRITEE
Convertible notes A AR E R
Unallocated EmoR
Consolidated liabilities FEBE

For the purposes of monitoring segment performances and allocating
resources between segments:

. all assets are allocated to operating and reportable segments
other than unallocated financial assets at FVTPL, bank
deposits with original maturity of more than three months, bank
balances and cash and other assets used jointly by operating
and reportable segments.

° all liabilities are allocated to operating and reportable segments
other than secured bank borrowings, liability portion of
convertible notes and other liabilities for which operating and
reportable segments are jointly liable.

2HEER (&)
TREERAE
BISERERDEOI A EBZBER
BEMAT
2019 2018
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTHET TAT
1,666,969 1,687,359
1,734,960 1,654,046
102,103 210,658
336,972 266,015
3,841,004 3,818,078
36,045 35,618
12,763 -
141,582 125,422
3,151 32,799
4,034,545 4,011,917
86,424 46,614
21,306 29,897
105 90
10,120 10,127
117,955 86,728
1,075,229 1,092,660
62,986 69,656
44,205 47,585
1,300,375 1,296,629
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6. DEERGE)
Other segment information HitpEER
For the year ended 31 March 2019 220193431 HILFZ
Amounts included in the measure of segment profit or loss or ERSETESHERIPEEEZS
segment assets: CEl
Property Property Investment Loan
investment  development i securities financing  Unallocated Total
NERE NERR BERE ENRE EAR ELE

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FiEgn T T T T T

Capital additions BEARE 819,828 802 - - 522 821,152
Depreciation nE 219 205 - - 801 1,225
Loss on disposal of property,  HENE  BERRE
plant and equipment BB 2 - - - - 2
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary &~ B A A2 iz - 43,139 - - - 43,139
Gain on changes in fair value of & &% 7 A TEL I
investment properties 45,988 - - - - 45,988
Impairment loss on loans JERER 2 RERE -
receivable, net of reversal MNkER - - - 2,808 - 2,808
Impairment loss on debt BRATEG AR ERE
instruments at FVTOCI ZEXIEZREESR - - 181 - - 181
Loss on changes in fair value of KA (E;t ABHZ 2R
financial assets at FVTPL BEZATEEYER - - 16,283 = = 16,283
For the year ended 31 March 2018 B Z 201843531 HIFFE
Amounts included in the measure of segment profit or loss or EESETESERRANEEEZS
segment assets: ECR
Property Property Investment Loan
investment  development in securities financing Unallocated Total
NERE NEER BARE EXpE BAR et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET THET THET T T T
Capital additions EARE 229,780 958 - - 122 230,860
Depreciation bl 215 144 - - 708 1,067
Net loss on modification of PRABRRERETZ
terms of convertible note BEFE - - - - 1,023 1,023
Gain on disposal of property, ~ HEYE  BERE
plant and equipment pdl - - - - 7 7
Gain on changes in fair value of REWE 7 ATEZENE
investment properties 72,337 = = = = 72,337
Impairment loss on available- A HERE 2 FIEEE
for-sale investments - - 3,406 - - 3,406
Gain on disposal of available- ~ HEFEHERE 2 Izs
for-sale investments - - 45 - - 45
Loss on changes in fair value of BATEABRZ &R
financial assets at FVTPL EEATERDER = - 2,195 - - 2,195
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Geographical information
The Group’s operations are located in Hong Kong (place of domicile),
the PRC and Singapore.

The Group’s revenue from external customers based on location of
its customers for segments and information about its non-current
assets (excluding financial instruments) by geographical location of
the assets are detailed below:

7EER (&)

i
AEBZEBUREE(EBHLZEH
K) ~ FE RN o

REEKBIREF 2 EEBERATF
FE D BRIREEZ REMISEID 2
FERPBEE(NEEEMIA)EHDN
T

Revenue from

external customers Non-current assets
REIREF ZE ¥ EREEE
2019 2018 2019 2018
HK$’000 HK$’'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FEx FAET FHET FHT
Hong Kong (place of domicile) &/ (FEH 2 B=R) 42,940 33,109 828,719 1,188,941
PRC =2 16,448 13,777 374,497 338,694
Singapore N 2,840 2,719 159,831 162,456
62,228 49,605 1,363,047 1,690,091

Information about major customers
No revenue from customers contributed over 10% of the total
revenue of the Group for any of the two years ended 31 March 2019.

OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES

Net exchange (loss) gain FE 3 (E18) W F58
Gain on fair value change of AR EE 2 A FEZE WS

convertible note

FERF2ER
HZE201943 A31 HIEREAFEARER
WREBBLEETEI0% A LTS ©

HihE K EE
2019 2018
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHBxT FHET
(395) 1,335
- 217
(395) 1,552
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8. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS 8. EERESECHE
(@ Information regarding directors’ emoluments (a) FHESMezER
Details of emoluments to the directors of the Company for the HZE2019F3 A31 HILFEAR
year ended 31 March 2019 are as follows: AIEEMEEIINT ¢
Executive directors Independent non-executive directors
yirEs BUFHTES
Kwong Wu
Jimmy Lui Kan Lau Foo Koon Yin
Cheung Tim Yuk Chu KaHon  SinMing  Tak Ching Welly Total

BRF EIK B EE B RER b
HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK§'000
TER TR TER TR TER TR TER

Fees EZHE - - 140 140 140 140 560
Other emoluments HitEe
- Salaries and -FE REMER
other benefits 2,040 2,616 - - - - 4,656
- Contributions to —RREHE B
retirement benefits
schemes - 18 - - - - 18
Total directors’ emoluments  E£Z#2 125 2,040 2,634 140 140 140 140 5,34
Details of emoluments to the directors of the Company for the HZE2018FE3 A31 HIFFEEAR
year ended 31 March 2018 are as follows: RESMEHFYET -
Executive directors Non-executive directors Independent non-executive directors
i H Faingz BUFHfES
Kwong Koon Tse Wu
Jimmy Lui HoYan  Wing Chiu Lai Kan L Foo  KoonVin

CheungTm~ Yuk Chu Candy* Ricky  lawka'  KaHon ~ SnMing Tk Ching Wely Totd
BRE ERF EWR AkE  BER 38 388 BRE R g
HKS000  HKS000  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKSO00  HKS000  HKS00
Tan  TEn TR TR TEr TR TEn TEn TEn TEn

Fees EEE - - - 7 7 140 140 140 140 574
Other emoluments Hfefie
- Searies and other beneffs -~ 54 R HER| 1,084 203 % - - - - - - 4,051
- Contrbuons toretirement  —E{VEHFEEZ
benefits schemes - 18 1 - - - - - - 19
Totaldiectors emoluments ~ EEH4£E 1,984 2,061 % 7 7 140 140 140 140 4644
* Resigned on 18 April 2017 * 2017 4 418 BEHE
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8. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS 8. EEREESZHME (E&)

(Continued)

(@) Information regarding directors’ emoluments (Continued) @ FHESMSZEN (@) ~
Mr. Kwong Jimmy Cheung Tim is also the Chief Executive of EBE%%%EW;%ZSQEZEF&ETT
the Company and his emoluments disclosed above include EM@%&E%LHE@ZMQE%
those for services rendered by him as the Chief Executive. RIERERITIRABE AR 2 R

7% o
The executive directors’ and non-executive directors’ im?ﬁj—\Zﬁﬁ%%&#*ﬂﬁi
emoluments shown above were for their services in connection FHEARERBADRIRASR
with the management of the affairs of the Company and the EEREH R -
Group.
The independent non-executive directors’ emoluments shown LB BN FRATEEME
above were for their services as directors of the Company. REFERADRES 2R

(b)  Information regarding employees’ emoluments (b) ﬁ%ﬁﬁé@ﬂ%}%%ﬁl
The five highest paid individuals of the Group included two AREREEEME AT ERERE
(2018: two) directors whose emoluments were included above (2018%F : MB)EF  HERW
for both years. The emoluments of the remaining three (2018: 1%{%2%@5@%&L3{\?/ﬂ o A
three) highest paid individuals, not being directors, are as ﬁﬁ:%ﬁzmsﬁ : ;%)  WIE
follows: = Ree ALHEIET

2019 2018
HK$°000 HK$’000
FExT FET
Salaries and other benefits e REMER 5,772 3,744
Contributions to retirement RRE R EIE R

benefits schemes 54 66
5,826 3,810

Their emoluments were within the following bands: HEZMEN T I5EE -
2019 2018
Number of Number of
individuals individuals
EE A" BEAH
Nil to HK$1,000,000 Z % 1,000,000 #7T 2 2
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 #JTZE 2,500,000 7% 7T = 1
HK$3,500,001 to HK$4,000,000 3,500,001 87T 4,000,000 7% 7T 1 -
3 3

During both years, no emoluments were paid by the Group to the REEFE  AEBEREZNMETE

directors and the other three (2018: three) highest paid individuals as EREM=F(2018F : =R )H=ME

an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation ZAL  AEABMASEMALAEERZ

for loss of office. In addition, during both years, no director waived BN R AR 2 F1E o AN A

any emoluments. HE - RBEENEEEHE
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9. FINANCE COSTS

Interest on bank borrowings
Effective interest expense
on convertible notes

MHRRREZ BRAERX

B REEBREEZRAR
ERfbz &

Less: Amount capitalised in the
cost of qualifying assets

Borrowing costs capitalised during the year arose on the general
borrowing pool and were calculated by applying a capitalisation rate
of 3.09% (2018: 2.52%) per annum to expenditure on qualifying
assets.

10. TAXATION

The tax charge (credit) comprises: FiIERS (5t A) B21F :

Current tax: WRATHIA -
Hong Kong BB
Other jurisdiction HihADA

(Over)underprovision in prior years: B FE (HB%8) T2 EME -
Hong Kong aBH
Other jurisdiction EMbalE

Deferred tax (note 26) EIERTE (MizE26)

9. MEMRAK

2019 2018

HK$’000 HK$’000

T FHT

47,752 25,313

17,123 17,128

64,875 42,441

(28,565) (11,068)

36,310 31,373

FARERBEEREAEBEEREAR
R A& Xt F F| E£3.09% (2018 F :
252%)TEIEREEREBEZFAY °

10. #i\E
2019 2018
HK$’000 HK$’000
FEx FHT
= 1
1,079 112
1,079 113
= 529
(50) (115)
(50) 414
(629) 542
400 1,069
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10.

TAXATION (Continued)

On 21 March 2018, the Hong Kong Legislative Council passed the
Inland Revenue (Amendment) (No. 7) Bill 2017 (the “Bill”) which
introduces the two-tiered profits tax rates regime. The Bill was
signed into law on 28 March 2018 and was gazetted on the following
day. The two-tiered profits tax rate applies to years of assessment
commencing on or after 1 April 2018.

Under the two-tiered profits tax rates regime, the first HK$2 million of
assessable profits of the qualifying corporation will be taxed at 8.25%,
and assessable profits above HK$2 million will be taxed at 16.5%.
The profits of other corporations in the Group which are not qualified
for the two-tiered profits tax rates regime will continue to be taxed at
a flat rate of 16.5%.

The directors of the Company consider the amount involved
upon implementation of the two-tiered profits tax rates regime as
insignificant to the consolidated financial statements. Hong Kong
profits tax is calculated at 16.5% of the estimated assessable profit
for both years.

Under the Law of the People’s Republic of China on Enterprise
Income Tax (the “EIT Law”) and Implementation Regulation of the EIT
Law, the tax rate of the subsidiaries in the PRC is 25%.

No provision for PRC Enterprise Income Tax has been made in the
year ended 31 March 2018 as the assessable profit was wholly
absorbed by tax losses brought forward for that year.

Taxation arising in other jurisdiction is calculated at the rates
prevailing in the relevant jurisdiction.

10.

BiIE ()

R2018F3A21H ' HEAENELERIB

2017 /T (B3] (B 7 5) RHIER)
(MBI EZR ) mE S| AT ST WK
Hll o BZIEHIE RN 201843 A28 HAE %

EEY > WNBAEBRTIE - FIBH
AR FIEAR2018F 4 A1 Hek 225
IR FERRIFE o

BEFMSHEMAH  AEKEERE
7 1 2,000,000 7T H) & 2R 7 i A8 3%
8.25% 2 TR BMTIIE - WHLEB BB
ummmﬁmﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁws%
ZIRERBMTIE - AEBAFEFE
Wﬁﬂﬁ%%ﬁﬁ&@mmﬂh&m
16.5% 2 T REMFIE -

ARBZEZRRNSTHRARSI TR
ZHEREBENGAVBERRLES
TE - MEFEZEBNERIR

FEFTERTOEN 2 16.5% 518 -

REBEHEARKMBERMHEEMRSBE
(TEEMBHE]D REEMRFREZ
BialEd RPBEZMBRARZHELS
25% °

EERBUR N B ZE20184F3 431 H 1L
FENBARRABEZEUEHE - @
At B SBEE -

Eoth BIAS| R 2 BUR AR ALA 2 B
TRESH -
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10. TAXATION (Continued) 10. FHIE ()
Tax charge for the year can be reconciled to the results per the NEEREBERYHESESLEMEE
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive WS REZ ZHERNOT ¢
income as follows:
2019 2018
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHT
Profit before taxation Rk 5 B4 1) 50,910 54,608
Tax charge at the applicable rate of %@ X 16.5% (2018 4 :
16.5% (2018: 16.5%) 16.5%) 518 2 BiEMA X 8,400 9,010
Tax effect of income not taxable EERTIBMAZHRIBTE
for tax purposes (27,936) (23,550)
Tax effect of expenses not TENBRZ 2 HETE
deductible for tax purposes 15,030 7,737
Tax effect of tax losses not RERRIBFE 2 HERE
recognised 5,684 6,911
Tax effect of utilisation of tax losses & B K FERTIBEE 2
previously not recognised HEypeE (2,342) (1,077)
Effect of different tax rates of LEREMEDEZIBRARZ
subsidiaries operating in other MERERZZE
jurisdictions 1,835 1,740
(Over)underprovision in prior years B{EFEE (HB58) N 2R E (50) 414
Others =) (221) (116)
Tax charge for the year AEERIBEFAL 400 1,069
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11.

12.

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

1. RNEEEF

2019 2018
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
Profit for the year has been arrived ARG EF 2Bk (5FA) -
at after charging (crediting):
Directors’ emoluments (note 8(a)) & =M% (Mi3E8(a)) 5,234 4,644
Other staff costs, including HiBTER -
retirement benefits costs BIRRIKEF KA 15,988 12,421
Total staff costs B Tk A 4258
(including directors’ emoluments) (B#EZEEME) 21,222 17,065
Auditor’s remuneration =BT BN & 2,200 2,089
Depreciation of property, plant Y BERZBZITE
and equipment 1,225 1,067
Loss (gain) on disposal on property, HE&EM% - MEL&EEZ
plant and equipment 518 (Yeas) 2 (7)
and after crediting to other income: RN E AU AETA :
Bank and other interest income SR1T R E A0 F BUA 1,686 2,367
Dividend income from LETREZREWA
listed investments 3,667 4,537
Gain on disposal of HE ] S8 E s
available-for-sale investments - 45

DIVIDENDS

12. RE

BE20194 % 201843 531 HILEE
BREXNIEZRRE » BREHREER
BEREMABRE -

No dividends were paid or proposed for the years ended 31 March
2019 and 2018, nor has any dividend been proposed since the end
of the reporting periods.
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13. BASIC AND DILUTED EARNINGS PER SHARE 13. BREAREERAR

The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share ARABIEREL 2 BAREAR R ESE R T

attributable to owners of the Company is based on the following data: TR AT ERIE -
2019 2018
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FAET
Earnings piny |
Earnings for the purpose of REREAREERANS 2 & F
basic earnings per share 50,510 53,539
Effect of dilutive potential Ho#EEE T BRRDZTE
ordinary shares:
Interest on convertible notes AR TR 2 BB (FRRFIEHL)
(net of income tax) 2,244 2,675
Earnings for the purpose of REREERFME 25 F
diluted earnings per share 52,754 56,214
2019 2018
’000 000
F T
Number of shares B EE
Weighted average number of M ARER K 8 & A
ordinary shares for the purpose mE 2N L@ D E B
of basic earnings per share 2,965,832 2,315,018
Effect of dilutive potential A DS B LRI
ordinary shares: e
Convertible notes Al AR R 188,000 304,997
Weighted average number of RERBERFmE 2
ordinary shares for the purpose i BRI S B
of diluted earnings per share 3,153,832 2,620,015

The computation of diluted earnings per share for the year ended
31 March 2019 does not assume the exercise of the Company’s
outstanding share options and the conversion of 2014 Convertible
Note (as defined in note 24(a)), 2015 Convertible Note (as defined in
note 24(b)) and First 2017 Convertible Note (as defined in note 24(c))
as their assumed exercise would result in an increase in earnings per
share.

The computation of diluted earnings per share for the year ended
31 March 2018 does not assume the exercise of the Company’s
outstanding share options and the conversion of 2014 Convertible
Note and 2015 Convertible Note as their assumed exercise would
result in an increase in earnings per share.

FTEHZE2019F3 A31 B ILFEBRE
SEEFIN R B BRRITHE R IR2014 F A
AR 4% (A0Ft sE24(@)FTESE ) » 20154E 1]
AL (NPT 5 24(0) FTE S ) & 2017
FE—17 Al AR & (WHI 3 24(c) FTiE
) AEBRITESENEREF -

FTEHZE2018F3A31HLEFEFR
BEARNITE B REITERAR] AT
15 2 BEPSAE 2 5 ¥ 201 4 SE AT IR AR 24 7
2015 F Al IR E R A H BRI TE SN
FREF -
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14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14. Y% - BERZE
Furniture,
fixtures and Motor
equipment vehicles Total
R
HERRE RE g
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET FE T
COST A
At 1 April 2017 R2017F4 A1 H 3,598 1,559 5,157
Exchange adjustments Rk 13 112 125
Additions NE 475 958 1,433
Disposals HE (76) (576) (652)
At 31 March 2018 R20184F 3 A31H 4,010 2,053 6,063
Exchange adjustments [ 5 S (22) (55) (77)
Additions = 282 1,207 1,489
Acquired on acquisition of g — M B A R REA
a subsidiary (see note 33(b)) (RHIFE33(b)) 167 - 167
Disposals & (4) (677) (581)
Disposal of a subsidiary HE—REHE AR (31) (958) (989)
At 31 March 2019 MH20194F 3 A31H 4,402 1,670 6,072
DEPRECIATION AND MERRE
IMPAIRMENT
At 1 April 2017 R2017F4 A1 8 687 854 1,541
Exchange adjustments PE 5 11 80 91
Provided for the year REFE B 715 352 1,067
Eliminated on disposals A & B 6 (18) (576) (594)
At 31 March 2018 R20184F3 A31H 1,395 710 2,105
Exchange adjustments [EE 5, A% (10) (83) (43)
Provided for the year EE R 775 450 1,225
Eliminated on disposals A & B 6 2) (577) (579)
Disposal of a subsidiary HE— R E A E () (319) (322)
At 31 March 2019 R20194F 3 A31H 2,155 231 2,386
CARRYING VALUES IRTEE
At 31 March 2019 A 20193831 H 2,247 1,439 3,686
At 31 March 2018 R2018 F3 A 31 H 2,615 1,343 3,958

EEIRME - BB RREHAERE
RBAT Z AL REHIFERE

The above items of property, plant and equipment are depreciated on
a straight-line basis over the following useful lives:

Furniture, fixtures and equipment 3to 10 years BRI - B R 3E106F
Motor vehicles 5 years RE 54
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15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 15. REWE
Investment
Completed properties
investment under
properties development Total
EXRBRENE BRIPREYHE #azE
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
FHExT FHET FET
FAIR VALUE NEE
At 1 April 2017 R2017F4 A1 H 1,292,354 28,015 1,320,369
Exchange adjustments [E 5 A 33,265 1,235 34,500
Additions INE 203,356 26,071 229,427
Increase in fair value recognised R IEzMERZ AFE
in profit or loss 10 70,407 1,930 72,337
Reclassification BN 57,251 (57,251) =
At 31 March 2018 ®20184F 3 A31H 1,656,633 - 1,656,633
Exchange adjustments [ 5 A2 (26,604) 248 (26,356)
Additions NE 1,957 51,053 53,010
Acquired on acquisition AU BRI B~ BB Uk BE
of subsidiaries (see note 33) (RM3E33) 766,486 - 766,486
Transfer to properties held HEEERIEHERREYE
for development for sale (832,400) - (832,400)
Increase in fair value recognised I8 HER 2 A F{EIE NN
in profit or loss 44,934 1,054 45,988
At 31 March 2019 R20194F 3 A31H 1,611,006 528355 1,663,361
Analysed as: DR
At 31 March 2019 MA2019%3831H
Assets classified as held for sale DfEAFIEHEEE 304,000 - 304,000
Non-current assets ERBEE 1,307,006 52,355 1,359,361
1,611,006 52,355 1,663,361
At 31 March 2018 A 20183 H31H
Non-current assets IERBEE 1,656,633 = 1,656,633

REERBEREERHETRINEER 2
TR TIANFEERE RS
BREREMFEIK -

All of the Group’s leasehold interests in land held under operating
leases to earn rentals are measured using the fair value model and are
classified and accounted for as investment properties.
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15.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

The fair values of the Group’s investment properties at the end of
the reporting periods were arrived at on the basis of valuation carried
out as at these dates by the following independent firms of qualified
professional property valuers not connected with the Group:

Location of
investment
Name of valuer properties
At 31 March 2019 and 2018
Vigers Appraisal and Consulting Limited Hong Kong

Vigers Appraisal and Consulting Limited PRC
Edmund Tie & Company (SEA) Pte Ltd Singapore

During the year ended 31 March 2019, the Group transferred
investment properties with an aggregate carrying amount of
HK$832,400,000 to properties held for development for sale upon
commencement of redevelopment with a view to sale.

During the year ended 31 March 2018, the Group completed the
construction of certain investment properties under development
in the PRC and these properties were leased out immediately for
rental income. Hence the relevant properties amounting to Renminbi
(“RMB”) 47,227,000 (equivalent to HK$57,251,000) were reclassified
from investment properties under development to completed
investment properties.

The gain arising on changes in fair value of investment properties
of HK$45,988,000 was recognised in profit or loss during the year
ended 31 March 2019 (2018: HK$72,337,000).

All investment properties of the Group are under the Level 3 fair
value hierarchy. The total amount of the change in unrealised gains
or losses relating to these assets was the same amount as the gain
arising on changes in fair value of investment properties in both years.
The amount of investment properties transferred out in the current
year was the carrying amount (i.e. fair value) as 31 March 2018. There
was no realised gain on investment properties in both years.

At a special general meeting of the Company held on 6 December
2018, an ordinary resolution was passed by the shareholders granting
mandates to the directors of the Company for completing a possible
disposal by way of tender of certain investment properties of the
Group at a minimum price of HK$310,000,000 (see note 33(a)). These
investment properties meet the criteria to be classified as held for sale
in accordance with HKFRS 5 “Non-current Assets Held For Sale and
Discontinued Operations” and are therefore presented separately in
the consolidated statement of financial position. At 31 March 2019,
the carrying amount of these investment properties classified as
held for sale was HK$304,000,000. Details of the proposed possible
disposal are set out in the Company’s announcement dated 4
October 2018 and circular dated 20 November 2018. At the date of
issuance of the consolidated financial statements, the tender process
for seeking potential buyers is in progress.

REW = (&)

REREZEMFERNRE PR 2 A FE
THRAT RSB EREZ B A
REXYEGEMITRZS B EETH
BZEEET

REMHEZ
fHERMIT B Fife ity

R20195F &
2018F3 A31H

FRUAR HT & E AT BRI B PR A A B
UG HT & E AT BRI A PR A H
Edmund Tie & Company

(SEA) Pte Ltd #hns

HE201963A31HILERN  REREE
BHERRMAIAER - NEEERES KR
T {E 832,400,000 T 2 A W EE
EHEREYE -

HE2018FE3A3IBILFR AEH
TEREREETURAREZERERREY
¥ W EEANEAZEYEURIAES K
A Ei EFHBEESBEARE (A
R # 1) 47,227,000 7t ( % {8 57,251,000
B 2R EREETREMES
BRI EYE -

HE2019F3A31HILFEZREY
¥ 2 AP {E# 5 Uk 25 45,988,000 JT
(20184F : 72,337,000 7T ) E A 1B 25

2l
s ©

AEEMBREMERE=-GAFESE
BT - BZEEERBRHARESIE KK
EEEB)AEE MEFERENEY
ANFEZBAELENRSHER - AFE
EERIEEYH¥ R A201853 A31
AIEARAE(BAFE) - WEMEFE
HE BIRULES

RARATIN20184 12 A6 A ERITHIRE
BAAEtL REBE BEBERER
BEAQREEZEABUALEESTRE
MEFIZTRATREHE ST - KIKE
% /310,000,000 7% 7T ( R H5E33(a)) °
ZEREMERBEEBYBRELRS
55 [HHEHE R EENRD RILEL
¥ oBEABELEEE Bt
AR ANEB RS - R20194F
3A31A ZESFAFHELEREY
2 BRI {E % 304,000,000 7T . 2 AT A4
HEFBEZHBHRAAT AL A 2018
F10H4B 2 AER2018%11 208 2
BEA - RTBGATEHRREE B
BREEFS R EEEREAETH -
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15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

15. REWE(E)

The following table gives information about how the fair values of
the investment properties are determined (in particular, the valuation
techniques and key inputs used), as well as the fair value hierarchy
into which the fair value measurements are categorised (Levels

TRITEHEEREMENRFEZ
AR CFRIRMAER ZEEDERBA
BE) - URBREHABEBZAIERE
BEDNAFESER(B1ZHEIRIZA

1 to 3) based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value FEETE -
measurements is observable.
Investment
properties Fair value at Fair value  Valuation techniques Significant
held by the Group 31 March hierarchy  and key inputs unobservable inputs Sensitivity
AEEREZ R3B31H
REME ZATE AFESR HEFERFERAEE BRTUBEHAZE HRE
2019 2018
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER FET
Classified as
non-current assets
PERAERBER
Commercial units in 174,500 187,500 Level 3 Direct comparison method ~ Price per square foot, The higher the price per
Hong Kong - based on market using market direct square foot, the higher
observable transactions comparables and taking the fair value
of similar properties and into account of location
adjusted to reflect the and other individual factors
locations and conditions of ~ such as road frontage, size
the subject property of property, etc., which is
ranged from HK$84,309
to HK$340,092 (2018:
HK$89,400 to HK$289,352)
per square foot
REBZEEEN £33 EEEBE-ERREY BYIFREE KAWSE STHREERR A
$UTBABRRHUE HEEALBRARZEL TERS

HEURBRBBENE 26
ERAMR

ENREMERNREZRD
BHER WERNE
FEHRAN 84,3095 T
340,092 7 7T (2018 F
89,4008 7L 5289,352/8 1)
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15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

15. REW=E (&)

Investment
properties Fair value at Fair value  Valuation techniques Significant
held by the Group 31 March hierarchy ~ and key inputs unobservable inputs Sensitivity
AEEREZ R3A31A
REMFE ZATE AVEER HEFERIZEHAEE EXTUBEAAZE HRE
2019 2018
HK$'000 HK$'000
FER TET
Commercial units - 832,400 Level 3 Residual value approach 2018: Price per net The higher the price per
in Hong Kong - price per net saleable saleable area per square net saleable area, the
(Continued) area foot, using market direct higher the fair value
comparables and taking
into account of location
and other individual factors
such as road frontage,
size of property, etc.,
which was HK$32,281 per
square foot
NE#EZ £38R BELE-THEFHREE 2018F: BFARTHE BIFRALEAREE
HEEEN (8) & FHEEE KATRE A5 AVERS

Industrial units in
Hong Kong

REEZ IXEN

86,900

83,700 Level 3

- estimated construction
and professional costs to
complete

~BHERKZRERE
EJJE

Direct comparison method
-based on market
observable transactions
of similar properties and
adjusted to reflect the
locations and conditions of
the subject property

BERLEBEA-ERAEY
EFLMEABERSH AL
HENURBRABNE 2
ERiAR

BALBOREELE N
REMENAZ NGB
BNERNDE 8]
R 32,281 87T

2018: Estimated
construction and
professional costs to
complete per square foot,
which was HK$4,681

20185 : | ERKZE
FHREERBEMA -
HAE4,681787T

Price per square foot,
using market direct
comparables and taking
into account of location
and other individual factors
such as size of property
etc., which is ranged from
HK$4,696 to HK$5,322
(2018: HK$4,500 to
HK$5,163) per square foot
STHREME RATS
BEEULBMRERMLE
UREMERRZNYE
ANE BEARNTF
4,696 T £532% 1T
(2018F : 4500% T &
5,163/7T)

The higher the
estimated construction
and professional costs
to complete per square
foot, the lower the fair
value
HEZRZETFHR
BEREEKADR
ATERE

The higher the price per
square foot, the higher
the fair value

BYHIREERR A
FEAS

BILEEBRDR | 2019 F
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15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

Investment
properties

held by the Group
FEEREZ
REME

Fair value at
31 March

W3H31H
20VE

2019
HK$'000
TR

2018
HK$'000
THET

Fair value
hierarchy

DNYFESH

Valuation techniques
and key inputs

HEFEREERAYE

15. REW=E(E)

Significant
unobservable inputs

EXATURZGABE

Sensitivity

HRE

Industrial-office units
in Hong Kong

NV
THM

o

i}

=

512,800

Level 3

Income approach - term
yield

WNE-FHlEE

—reversionary yield

-EBYE

|
e

Term yield, taking into
account of yield generated
by market average selling
price and the market
average rental from
comparable properties and
adjustment to reflect the
conditions of the building,
which is 2.7%

FHREER27% 8%
BRIELENEZT5T
BHEBRTHTHESE
27 W g R R 8 B A
RBEFAR

Reversionary yield, taking
into account of yield
generated by market
average selling price
and the market average
rental from comparable
properties and adjustment
to reflect the risk
associated with the future
rental, which is 2.7%
EHEKEER27% &E
BRI &L BME 2 THT
HEBRMETHESE
B 7 R R i R R
RERRAS 2 HRRR

The higher the term
yield and reversionary
yield, the lower the fair
value

FHREERER RS
¥ AHEEE

A R AN
2% AFEHE
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15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

Investment
properties

held by the Group
FEEREZ
REME

Fair value at
31 March

Fair value
hierarchy

R3A31A

208

2019
HK$'000
T

AFESR
2018
HK$'000
7

Valuation techniques
and key inputs

HEFERTEAABE

15. REW=E (&)

Significant
unobservable inputs

EATUREZGABE

Sensitivity

YRE

Industrial-office units
in Hong Kong
(Continued)

REBZ
T &

o

B (%)

>

Residential units
in Hong Kong

o

REBZE

i}

o)

51,200

52,400 Level 3

-monthly term rental

—reversionary market unit
rate

—ERTRENER

Direct comparison method
-based on market
observable transactions
of similar properties and
adjusted to reflect the
locations and conditions of
the subject property

BRUBE-ERFEY
FLMEABERSHLL
HEARBRBENE MU
BRAR

Monthly term rental for
each unit is derived from
the average of the rental
as stated in the existing
rental agreements, which
is ranged from HK$13.71
to HK$19 per square foot
REBNZBRABEREE
HOmIIZBENTEA
BERFRISTIBTE195
T

Reversionary market
unit rate for each unit
is compared with direct
market comparables
and taking into account
of location and other
individual factor, which is
HK$6,850 per square foot
BEUZERMSEMLE
% BEETSALRY
BUHBRZRMNERHM
BRREZ 8¥YARA
6,850 /7T

Price per square foot,
using market direct
comparables and
taking into account of
location, age and other
individual factors, which
is ranged from HK$7,692
to HK$16,741 (2018:
HK$7,326 to HK$18,741)
per square foot

BIHREE KATS
BEREULRORZEM
E BRRHEMBENRA
2 GFARNF7692%
TLE16,74187T(2018% ¢
7,326 B TE18,741787)

The higher the monthly
term rental rate, the
higher the fair value

ERMeHS AVE
)

The higher the
reversionary market unit
rate, the higher the fair
value

The higher the price per
square foot, the higher
the fair value

STHREMER 2
FaAE

BILEEERAA

| 2019 %
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15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

15. REWE(E)

Investment
properties Fair value at Fair value  Valuation techniques Significant
held by the Group 31 March hierarchy  and key inputs unobservable inputs Sensitivity
FEEREZ R3A31A
REMF ZATE AFEER FEFERIZEWAEE EXTUBEGHAZE HRE
2019 2018
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TET
Residential units 159,831 162,456 Level 3 Direct comparison method ~ Price per square foot, The higher the price per
in Singapore -based on market using market direct square foot, the higher
observable transactions comparables and taking the fair value
of similar properties and into account of location
adjusted to reflect the and other individual factors
locations and conditions of  such as road frontage, size
the subject property of property, etc., which is
ranged from HK$19,466
to HK$19,909 (2018:
HK$19,221 to HK$21,081)
per square foot
RTINS 2 E T B £33 BEEEBE-ERREY BTHREER FATSE BTHREERAR A
(THABRRSULE HALBNREELEAR TEES
BEARMEEME L EMERERNEGER -
B QAR WERNE BEARN
F19,4667% 7T & 19,9098
T(2018%F < 19,221 B E
21,081/87T)
Industrial units in 321,775 338,177 Level 3 Income capitalisation of ~Capitalisation rate, which The higher the
the PRC net income with provisions is 7.5% (2018: 7.5%) per capitalisation rate, the
for reversionary income annum lower the fair value
potential
IAE 2 TE B £38 WAFBHAEZWAEER BEARLE BFER BAERR ATHE
EEEREBHBMAEN  7.5%(20184F : 8.5%) AR
AR E

Monthly rental rate,
taking into account of
market comparables,
which is RMB9.84 (2018:
RMB9.86) per square
metre

m5EAME RS
ALERN - BEHKRBA
R #9847 (20185 : A
Ri9.867T)

The higher the monthly
rental rate, the higher
the fair value

THEARERE 2
FENE
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15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

15. REW=E (&)

Investment
properties Fair value at Fairvalue  Valuation techniques Significant
held by the Group 31 March hierarchy ~ and key inputs unobservable inputs Sensitivity
rEEREZ R3A31A
REMFE ZATE AVEER HEFERIZEHAEE EXTUBEAAZE HRE
2019 2018
HK$'000 HK$'000
THT TR
Investment properties 52,355 = Level 3 Income capitalisation of ~Capitalisation rate, which The higher the
under development net income with provisions  is 7.5% per annum capitalisation rate, the
in the PRC for reversionary income lower the fair value
potential
Bz BRET £33/ WAFEAEZWABR BRLE BFRT7H%  BAALEAS ATE
RENZE LA 5 R 8 WA E D AR
AR
Monthly rental rate, taking  The higher the monthly
into account of direct rental rate, the higher
market comparables, the fair value
which is RMB4 per square
metre
TEBARE ZEEE THEARERS 2
mEALERE §EHK TERR
BARE4T
1,359,361 1,656,633

it

AR AR

| 2019 4R
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15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

15. REWE(E)

Investment
properties Fair value at Fair value  Valuation techniques Significant
held by the Group 31 March hierarchy  and key inputs unobservable inputs Sensitivity
FEEREZ R3A31A
REMF ZATE AVEER FEFERIZRAEE EXTUBEGHAZE HRE
2019 2018
HK$'000 HK$'000
FER TET
Classified as held
for sale
PEABEHE
Commercial units 304,000 - Level 3 Direct comparison method  Price per square foot, The higher the price per
in Hong Kong - based on market using market direct square foot and price
observable transactions comparables and taking per car park, the higher
of similar properties and into account of location  the fair value
adjusted to reflect the and other individual factors
locations and conditions of  such as road frontage,
the subject property size of property, etc.,
which is ranged from
HK$21,075 to HK$39,150
per square foot, and car
park which is ranged
from HK$2,000,000 to
HK$2,560,000
WEEZBEEN EXCE EEEBE-ERREY BYAREE KATHS BYAREERERE
(CTHABRRHUE HETUBRHKZENE HEEAR ATER
AEURMBENEZN UREMENRZNGES =
ERAR BR -NEANE B

In estimating the fair value of the investment properties, except for
those investment properties held for future development, the highest

and best use of the properties is their current use.

EHRANF21075% T
31508 T REE

15 1 2,000,000 T &
2,560,000 7T
WEEREMEZ N FER - BRIEED

FEFHERRERIN

MEZEBRNER

BECEADHEREZERT -
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LOANS RECEIVABLE 16.FEIRE R
2019 2018
HK$’000 HK$’000
FH&xT FHET
Fixed-rate loans receivable EEEWER 345,202 265,297
Less: Impairment allowance o AR (9,192) -
336,010 265,297
Analysed as: DR
Current portion REhEf Y 306,334 218,373
Non-current portion IEREN IS 29,676 46,924
336,010 265,297
No ageing analysis is disclosed, as in the opinion of the directors of THREREON - BARRIEERR -
the Company, the ageing analysis does not give additional value in RERMEXBMEEMS @ Rk
view of the nature of business of loan financing. REREIMEE -
The movement of impairment allowance for loans receivable is as FEWEFORERE 2 ZEIT ¢
follows:
Impairment
allowance for
loans receivable
(12m ECL)
FEWERRE
BE (128 A
FEHEERE)
HK$°000
FET
At 31 March 2018 7®2018 £3 A31 H =
Impairment allowance recognised (note 2) B ERFEEME (FE2) 6,384
At 1 April 2018 (restated) 2018 4 A1 B (& F7) 6,384
Changes due to loans receivable recognised #2018 4 A1 HENEHER
as at 1 April 2018 JEM SRR E)
— Repayments —B% (660)
— Net remeasurement of ECL —TEEEEEBIB SN EFRE (73)
New loans granted BB ER 3,541
At 31 March 2019 #2019 3 A31 H 9,192
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16.

LOANS RECEIVABLE (Continued)

Details of ECL assessment are set out in note 32 and below.

At 31 March 2019, the range of interest rate on the Group’s loans
receivable is 4% to 8.32% (2018: 4% to 8.32%) per annum.

Before granting loans to outsiders, the Group assesses the potential
borrower’s credit quality and defines credit limits granted to each
borrower. The credit limits attributed to the borrowers are reviewed
by the management regularly.

Impairment assessment (upon application of HKFRS 9 with
transition in accordance with note 2)

The management closely monitors the credit quality of loans
receivable amounting to HK$336,010,000 at 31 March 2019. During
the year ended 31 March 2019, allowance for loans receivable of
HK$2,808,000 was recognised in profit or loss. At 31 March 2019,
allowance for loans receivable amounted to HK$9,192,000. There are
no loans receivable which are past due at the end of the reporting
period.

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased significantly since
initial recognition, the Group compares the risk of a default occurring
on the financial instrument as at the reporting date with the one
as at the date of initial recognition. In making this assessment, the
loans receivable from borrowers are assessed individually by the
management of the Group, based on the financial background,
financial condition and historical settlement records, including past
due dates and default rates, of each borrower and reasonable and
supportable forward-looking information such as macroeconomic
data that is available without undue cost or effort. Each borrower
is assigned a risk grading under internal credit ratings to calculate
the ECL, taking into consideration of the estimates of expected
cash shortfalls which are driven by estimates of possibility of default
and the amount and timing of cash flows that are expected from
foreclosure on the collaterals (if any) less the costs of obtaining
and selling the collaterals. At every reporting date, the financial
background, financial condition and historical settlement records
are reassessed and changes in the forward-looking information are
considered.

The Group is not permitted to sell or repledge the collaterals in
the absence of default by the borrower. There have not been any
significant changes in the quality of the collateral held for the loans
receivable.

16.

W ER (&)

TS R R R A 32
T -

R2019F3A31H AEBZEKRE
REFEFRN T 4% E8.32% (2018 4F :
4% % 8.32%) °

EREERTINRER  AEEFEE
EERAZEEEZREEX T EAE
RAZEER - BEETE PR ERA
ZIEE® -

BB E (RIEHTEE 2 A FERE BB R
HAERE QSR IFIBIE )

BIREE RN 0193 A31 A fE
I & 336,010,000/ T2 2 EH X -
HE2019F3A31HILEE » BRER
2 B {# 2,808,000 T E RIBmIER o
R2019F3A31H * BKERZBES
9,192,000 7T - RIMEHAKR  WEE

A EERR B IRERIARE D RE
LR AKELEBRERTARRER
HEABONRR RSB T ANYnE
RERBEEENNRR - FHFEE -
REEEEEESERAZBEER
TRBEEVBE S - UBEARRBEE
Rk AR RENX - ARE
SHEIBEBRZAEIEEN  IMBAESE
KALBNARZ ZBRBERIR - &8
RARBABEETRED KRR SR
GHETEREEER - WEEBEHR
SRR A DRIBMAFHRD 2 IR
MRERERRIIEZRESRNSER
B (40 ) M EES & B 3R 2 B
Ko REMEAH - MBS - K
ARBEERCEEERNE - LER
RIS E R EE) -

ERERALEENZERT - AEED
BHERBERZSERR - HEEE
RARAE CBERmZERS BEMEX
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16.

17.

LOANS RECEIVABLE (Continued)

Impairment assessment (before application of HKFRS 9 on 1
April 2018)

The management closely monitored the credit quality of loans
receivable and considered loans receivable amounting to
HK$265,297,000 at 31 March 2018 that were neither past due nor
impaired to be of good credit quality and the impairment loss was
negligible. At 31 March 2018, no loans receivable were past due at
the end of the reporting period for which the Group has not provided
for impairment loss.

The Group had a policy for assessing the impairment on loans
receivable on an individual basis. The assessment also included
evaluation of collectability of accounts and management’s judgment,
including the financial background, current creditworthiness,
collateral and past collection history of each borrower.

In determining the recoverability of loans receivable, the Group
considered any change in the credit quality of the loans receivable
from the date credit was initially granted up to the reporting date.
This included assessing the credit history of the borrowers, such
as financial difficulties or default in payments, and current market
conditions.

AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS

Equity securities listed in REB LM ZRAES - EhE

Hong Kong, at market value

At 31 March 2018, available-for-sale investments were stated at fair
values. The fair values of the listed equity securities were determined
based on the quoted market closing prices available on the Stock
Exchange.

Upon initial application of HKFRS 9 during the current year, available-
for-sale investments were reclassified to financial assets at FVTPL
which are detailed in note 2.2.

16.

17.

W ER (&)

BERE (R20185F 4 B1 HEERE B
FEIREERIE QIR 2 AT)
EREERELRKERZEEER
RAEMN20184E3 A31 BR B BHI M
B 2 FE U & 7 265,297,000 TT A8 R
FEEEERREBEAMTRE - R®
20184 3 A 31 H » AREERIRE IR
ERWEFRE - WEMHERERSE -

788 B I B 2 TSR T (R B
IR - HEETEIEE P AIREHR
ZEERRBEEERAZHHEE -
REEE  EMRBEREES Y SR
B 48 -

REETE M E R 2 AT m AR - N E
EZEREERERVNELEERYES
BERMZEEERZEMNRE - EF
BEMMEERAZEEESL - W HKR
B EAER - RIRESTISAR -

AHEERE
2019 2018

HK$’000 HK$'000
TET THT

- 207,213

MR20184E3A31H @ Al HEREUR
FEYER o EMBRAESZ A FETIR
BER AT MBI EET -

RAFEREARSYBRERELFEQ
SREF AR EREEFAOBEAFE
STABRZEREAE  AHFBECHY
RHE2.2 ©
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18. DEBT INSTRUMENTS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH OTHER 18.

COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Listed investments, at fair value: LiRE - BATE:

Debt securities listed in Hong Kong or
overseas with fixed interests ranging from
4.600% to 7.875% per annum and maturity
dates ranging from 25 June 2019 to 214

21 November 2022

Analysed as: DA
Current portion MENER S
Non-current portion BB

As at 31 March 2019, debt instruments at FVTOCI are stated at fair
values which were determined based on the quoted market closing
prices available on the Stock Exchange or an overseas recognised
stock exchange.

Debt instruments at FVTOCI are listed bonds with the credit loss
allowance measured on 12m ECL basis as the credit risk on financial
instrument has not increased significantly since initial recognition.
The Group assesses the ECL for debt instruments at FVTOCI by
reference to credit rating of the bond investment by rating agencies,
macroeconomic factors affecting the respective industry for each
issuer, corporate historical default and loss rate and exposure of
default of each bond investment.

Expected credit loss of HK$181,000 was recognised in profit or loss
in the current year.

Details of impairment assessment are set out in note 32.
All debt instruments at FVTOCI are denominated in United States

dollars (“USD”), currency other than the functional currencies of the
relevant group entities, at the end of the reporting period.

BAVEFTARBREKE 2 B
TH

2019
HK$’000
TR

REBREIN ETZEBEES - BTEF
LA T 4.600% £ 7.875% K& E|HEH
NF20194F6 A25 HE2022F 11 A

15,857

4,031
11,826

15,857

R2019F3 31 H » IMAFEFAEAM
PHENEZERETAEUARFEESER - I
RIREE R AT H A B INRAT B AR B AT
PRz MiBRMEEE -

BAVEFAREBEERGE BB TA
REREARBEEBRREEGERE
EERBEZ ETES - RRBE S
BRREBMTAZEERRIY EEEE
e REESEFERBEHERREL
SEE  REESBRTABBITEZER
BEERR  CEEREHRRBALRE
RRBEFREEORR - FHERAF
BFf ARG B TAZRY
EEEE -

AFETBEEEEE 181,000 TR 1B
EI:FI EEE,’D ©
BTS2 BRI FES2 -

R|REHR - IERAFERARME
EW a2 BB T AR EE TR
e EEETAHE (=T ©
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19.

20.

PROPERTIES HELD FOR DEVELOPMENT FOR SALE

The Group’s properties held for development for sale are situated in
Hong Kong.

At 31 March 2019, the whole amount of properties held for
development for sale is expected to be completed more than twelve
months after the end of the reporting period.

At 31 March 2018, the amount of properties held for development
for sale which were expected to be completed within twelve months
after the end of the reporting period was HK$774,478,000, and
the remaining amount which were expected to be completed
more than twelve months after the end of the reporting period was
HK$860,486,000.

At 31 March 2019 and 2018, the Group performed assessment of net
realisable value on its properties held for development for sale with
reference to valuations made by independent qualified professional
property valuers not connected with the Group. The valuations were
arriving at by using the residual method. At 31 March 2019 and 2018,
no further write-down is considered necessary.

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

Trade receivables B 5 W IE

Prepayments (note (a)) FERFRIE (5E (@)

Interest receivable FEUCR B

Refundable stamp duty (note (b))  FEREDTERE (M3t (b))

Other receivables o e R IE

Notes:

(a) At 31 March 2018, the amount included consultant fee of a property

redevelopment project, amounting to HK$13,466,000, which was reclassified
to “properties held for development for sale” in the current year when the
property redevelopment commences.

(b) In accordance with the provisions of the Hong Kong Stamp Duty Ordinance,
the Group applied for refund of the stamp duty paid in the current year when
the property redevelopment project commences. The sum was refunded in
the current year.

(c) Information about the property redevelopment project referred to in (a) and
(b) above is set out in the Company’s circular dated 12 September 2017 and
announcement dated 29 September 2017. The project commences in the
current year.

19.

20.

FEHERRYE

AEBEZFHIEHEERRMEDUNE
e

20193 31 B + FHEH ERENE
2 R EESNEE AR A A A
SR -

R2018F3A31H ' H F I & &
BMEEHNFEHRE T =_M@EA
N 5T 2 & %8 & 774,478,000 7T
MIBHIRIRE BB BB 12E AR 2
#4378 /5 860,486,000 8 7T °

R2019F 201843 A31H ' AEEE

B2 ERREESEREYBIYE]
REEYEGEM 2 HE - ZSHED
RESEEREFE - R20194F KX 201843
A31H RBHEEFELE—TRE -

B2 R HAMAEYRFR
2019 2018

HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT TET

1,623 1,789
3,868 16,008
1,158 814

- 28,463
2,148 2,802

8,797 49,876

(@) M2018F3A31H  ZeBEE &
MFEERIAE 2 BB & 13,466,000
T BMFEERZBEBRBEZSERE
FRENHPE [HIEHEBRRME] -

() RIEEBEIIEBOADIZ G - EMHEE
BIEERGKE  ARERAFERFR
BIE S AEIFER © It SN AFERE o

(© BB Ll (a) K (o) AL Y ERER
EHNARRBEA2017F9/12A2
B BEIA2017F9 A20 A 2 Aff ©
ZIA B RAFERLA

BILEERRAT | 2019 FH

139




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR R

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z 201943 A31 HILFE

20. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued)

The Group did not grant any credit period to its tenants in property
investment segment. The aged analysis of trade receivables, based
on the invoice date, at the end of the reporting period is as follows:

0 - 60 days 0-60H
61 — 90 days 61-90 H
91 — 120 days 91 -120 H

The management closely monitors the credit quality of trade and
other receivables and considers trade and other receivables that are
neither past due nor impaired to be of good credit quality.

At 31 March 2018, included in the Group’s trade receivable balances
were debtors with aggregate carrying amount of HK$258,000 which
were past due at the reporting date for which the Group has not
provided for allowance. The Group did not hold any collateral over
these balances.

The following is aged analysis of trade receivables which were past
due at 31 March 2018 but not impaired:

Overdue by 1 to 60 days DB 1E60H
Overdue by 61 to 90 days 28861 & 90 H

Details of impairment assessment of trade and other receivables at 31
March 2019 are set out in note 32.

No credit loss allowance has been recognised on the trade and other
receivables (note 32) as the directors of the Company consider that
the amount is immaterial.

20.

B2 Rk HARWER (&)

RNEEIEE R TRYERENE A
PRERE - REERAH - BHEUGK
ERRERRZREDITAT

2019 2018
HK$’000 HK$'000
TET TET
1,596 1,757
19 32

8 —

1,623 1,789

EREEEREIZE SN HEMBUIRZ
EREZENRARRABENREZES
REMEEFEAERIFEEER

R201843A31H » KEEZE SR
SRIB# ST - BRE{ES 258,000 T
AEREEZBTRER - ASEIL
AR SR A TR -

M20184F3 A31 HEBHERBECZE
SREWFEZ BRI DT

2018
HK$’000
THET

226
32

258

BRAE S R HEMERFRMN 20194 3 A 31
H 2 s EFIRMIEES2

MRARREERRZHRBEMTRE
I S 5 e EoAd UL R (P7E 32) #ERR
EEERERRE -
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z 201943 A31 HILFE

21.

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR

21. BAVEFABRZEHEE

LOSS
2019 2018
HK$°000 HK$’000
FE T FET
Listed investments, at fair value: EHEE - mRAFE
— Equity securities listed in —REE L TRAEE (@)
Hong Kong (note (a)) 56,338 3,436
— Perpetual bond (note (b)) — K AfES (KI5 (b)) 4,012 -
- Contingent convertible notes — SRR AR =R (T (o)
(note (c)) 15,940 —
Unlisted investments, at fair value: sk %4 + IAF(E :
- Principal protected deposits —RAFH (FIRE (@)
(note (d)) 25,800 35,618
- Convertible note (note (e)) — AR R (I 5E (e)) 9,891 =
— Investment fund (note (f)) —EES (I ®) 10,245 =
122,226 39,054
Analysed as: DR
Current portion —mEE D 108,323 39,054
Non-current portion —ERBBY 13,903 -
122,226 39,054

The directors of the Company have no intention to redeem the
perpetual bond or the convertible note within twelve months from
the end of the reporting period. These investments are therefore
classified as non-current assets in the consolidated statement of
financial position.

ARAREFAUEENREHR+—EA
MEEKA BRI BRERE - 25K
BRMREE M BEARRRADBRIER
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21. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR 21.
LOSS (Continued)

The Group’s financial assets at FVTPL that are denominated in
currency other than the functional currencies of the relevant group
entities are set out below:

BAVESABRZERMEE (4

S

)

ANEERAFEFABRENEREEIN
HEER BRI EE I B E
HIAT -

2019 2018
HK$°000 HK$’000
FHET FET
USD ET 19,952 =
Notes: B
(a) The fair values of the listed equity securities are determined based on the (@ ETRAEF 2 R T ER R TR

quoted market closing prices available on the Stock Exchange.

(b) The fair value of the perpetual bond as at 31 March 2019, which amounted
to HK$4,012,000, is determined based on the quoted market closing prices
available on an overseas recognised stock exchange, with fixed interest at
6.375% per annum.

The perpetual bond is recognised as follows:

At 1 April 2018 H2018F 481 H
Additions NE
Interest received BHFIR
Unrealised fair value gain recognised in profit or loss REERTERENBEER
Exchange realignment & i 8
At 31 March 2019 H2019%F3A31H
(c) The fair values of the contingent convertible bonds as at 31 March 2019,

which amounted to HK$15,940,000, are determined based on the quoted
market closing prices available on an overseas recognised stock exchange,
with fixed interests ranging from 6% to 6.625% per annum.

The contingent convertible bonds are recognised as follows:

At 1 April 2018 201844 A1 H

Additions NE

Interest received BUFE

Unrealised fair value gain recognised in profit or loss FER N FEKZNBRER
Exchange realignment FEH AR

At 31 March 2019 R2019F3A31H

2SR EETE

(b) KAEER2019E38318 2 A FE
4,012,000 B TR B IMNERNBH R 5
FifTsRz s EEE - EEFF=E
£6.375% °©

KAEFFHERI T -

HK$°000
FET

4,028
(125)
87
22

4,012

© AR EHFR2019F3 A31 BIER
18 15,940,000 74 TR 158 M R 6 7
FR SRz mIZRTEEE - Bx
FFENT 6% E6.625% °

KRR ESRERT

HK$’000
FBx

16,318
(728)

261
89

15,940
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z 201943 A31 HILFE

21.

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR
LOSS (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

@

The principal protected deposits are denominated in RMB and issued by
banks in the PRC. They contain embedded derivative, the interest rate of
which is determined with reference to the exchange rate of USD against HKD
and ranges from 1.40% to 3.20% (2018: 1.40% to 4.05%) per annum with
original maturity of three months.

On 1 February 2019, the Group subscribed for convertible note issued by
a company listed on GEM of the Stock Exchange, with principal amount of
HK$10,000,000 which carries interest at 8% per annum payable monthly
in arrears with maturity on 1 February 2021 at redemption amount of 100%
of the principal amount. The convertible note can be converted at any time
from the date of issue to the maturity date with conversion price of HK$0.9
per conversion share. In addition, each of the Group and the issuer has the
option to early redeem the convertible note at any time from the date of issue
to the maturity date at 100% of the principal amount outstanding under the
convertible note together with all accrued interest.

On 19 March 2019, the issuer and the Group entered into a deed of
amendment to revise the terms of the convertible note. According to the
deed of amendment, the option for each of the Group and the issuer to early
redeem the convertible note at any time was cancelled from the date of
signing of the deed of amendment.

The fair value of the convertible note at 31 march 2019, which amounted
to HK$9,891,000, is determined based on the valuation provided by APAC
Appraisal and Consulting Limited, an independent firm of professional
qualified valuers not connected with the Group.

The convertible note is recognised as follows:

At 1 April 2018 ®2018F 4 A1H
Addition NE

Interest received BUFIE
Unrealised fair value loss recognised in profit or loss

At 31 March 2019

RER N FERENERER

2019463 A31H

BAVEFAERCSREE (B)

Bt - (&)

@

RATFFHIAA REEFIE I B 7 A B R
11817 - HBEREINEER  BEXZ
BENSEETHBTZ BB EREF
EfF1.40%%3.2% (20184 : 1.40% %
4.05%) R =1{E A SN -

20192 A1 H - N& B RS BB AT
BIZER ETH—RABZ T RRER -
7N & #8 /410,000,000 7T © FF R B
8% ' N A ARITRH2021F2 A1
B 2| EABFRE R 100% 2 A& 78 o Al 3R
BEETAREREA I ERFFREBA
FRROOBTZ HIRE R - 1hoh - A&
BRETAHERTEEZIHA L
ZEMKEBAREEREERTRRKRERE
PR RigR 2 100% A& KT FHEFIS

MN20194F3 198 » BEITARKEEE
FIERT R KA B AT AR SRR 2 1R 3K o
RIBIERTRA - NEE K EIT ARER
B RERED A RRES 2 N E#
FHERTRRHBEUHE °

AR RER 20193 A31 BZAFE
9,891,00078 7T Ty IR & y — i) SR AN SR (B
M E L XA ERMGEMTERM
BERERBRARREMH

AR IR RER AT

HK$°000
FiEx

10,000
(76)
(33)

9,891
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z 201943 A31 HILFE

21. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR 21. BAVEFABRZEREE (&)
LOSS (Continued)
Notes: (Continued) BfE - (48)
(e) (Continued) ©) (€ ))
The methods and assumptions applied for the valuation of the convertible FEE R R I 2 7 A R BRRR T
note are as follows:
Valuation of convertible note AR R REGE
The convertible note is measured at fair value using the Binomial Option MHEREZENERERARNRSHE B RE
Pricing Model, at initial recognition and at the end of each subsequent HiRER A EEEELAE - R
reporting period. The inputs into the model as at date of subscription and the REBH N REHR - ZER 28 AH
end of the reporting period are as follows: BT
Date of
subscription
At 31 March 1 February
2019 2019
R20194F 2019%2H 18
3H31H REAH
Stock price BEHEE HK$0.59 HK$0.86
Conversion price HIR(E HK$0.90 HK0.90
Volatility GEIES 70.13% 65.79%
Dividend yield iR B & 0% 0%
Time to maturity 2| BRI 1.84 years 2 years
Risk-free rate R R 1.38% 1.48%
® The investment fund is denominated in RMB and issued by an unlisted entity 0] KREZESUARKIELHRPEK E
in the PRC. The fair value of the investment fund as at 31 March 2019, which MEBET  REESK2019F3A
amounted to HK$10,245,000, is measured at fair value using the discounted 31 B2 AF1{E 10,245,000 % T AL R IR
cash flow method. The expected interest rate is 9.5% per annum with maturity EREBEE AT EFE  c BHERNXA
of one year. 9.5% * —4FHIH] -
The investment fund is recognised as follows: REESHANT :
HK$’000
FExT
At 1 April 2018 M201844 A1 H =
Additions NE 10,391
Interest received BHFE (257)
Unrealised fair value gain recognised in profit or loss REBQATFERSNBERER 61
Exchange realignment IE H A% 50
At 31 March 2019 M201943A31H 10,245

144 EMINENCE ENTERPRISE LIMITED | Annual Report 2019




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR EE

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z 201943 A31 HILFE

BANK DEPOSITS WITH ORIGINAL MATURITY OF MORE 22. BB=@EATEZRITERRIT
THAN THREE MONTHS/BANK BALANCES AND CASH HEHRRIRE
Bank deposits with original maturity of more than three months BB =18 A 2H 2 R1TFK
At 31 March 2019, the Group placed time deposits amounting to M201943 831 H » AEEE R
Singapore dollars (“SGD”) 2,200,000 (equivalent to HK$12,763,300) AN 9 B Bh A 1 A% 1 2,200,000 7 103
with a financial institution in Singapore with original maturity of more Je (TN T 1) (AR 4912,763,300
than three months. They carry interest at a fixed rate of 1.7% per BL) 2 BB =EAREZ TR -
annum. HEEEFEEEB1.7% -
Bank balances and cash IRITERRES
The bank balances and cash held by the Group comprise short-term RNEFEHF ZRITESR RIS BRI
bank deposits with an original maturity of three months or less, at FITIBHE N T 0.001% = 1.85% (2018
prevailing market interest rates ranging from 0.001% to 1.85% (2018: F :0.001% £ 1.28%) 2 =8 A 3k 2 Al
0.001% to 1.28%) per annum. BIHA 2 S HRERI TR »
TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 23. B RHEMENFIE
2019 2018
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHBxT FHET
Trade payables (note (a)): B S RENRIE (M @) -
0 - 60 days 0-60H 2,021 3,770
Over 90 days 3B 90 H 420 -
2,441 3,770
Retention payable (note (b)) EHRIES (KIFE (b)) 6,968 16,075
Rental deposits received and BEEES KFEKES
rental received in advance 29,792 15,508
Guarantee money received (note (c)) 2 UgiR7E S %8 (i 5E () 10,000 10,000
Accruals TR EH 65,008 37,721
Other taxes payable H M pERRiIE 5,028 4,846
Other payables H b e 308 1,561 1,798
120,798 89,718
Notes: Fi5E
(a) The aged analysis of trade payables is determined based on the invoice date, (a) B ENFRENRERRZEEDTTY
at the end of the reporting period. The average credit period on purchases of BEFERHET BEZTFHREKRH
goods is 30 days. A30H
(b) Retention payable is withheld from subcontractors and will be released by the (o) FERHRIES R FTERER R AEBGR
Group within twelve months upon completion of their works. IRTER+—@EARZ -
(© The amount represents money received from a borrower of the loan financing © SHEARRKREERBEEBZ —ER
business as security for loan granted. ARBEHERIEAEHRZEREEE -
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 #ZE 201943 A31 B ILFE

24. CONVERTIBLE NOTES CONTAINING LIABILITY AND 24, BRREEESAERERKD

146

EQUITY COMPONENTS

(a)

On 27 March 2014, the Company issued 2% convertible
note due 2019 at an aggregate principal amount of
HK$100,000,000 to Easyknit International (the “2014
Convertible Note”).

The 2014 Convertible Note is denominated in HKD and entitles
the holder to convert it into ordinary shares of the Company
at any time between the date of issue of the 2014 Convertible
Note on 27 March 2014 and its settlement date on 27 March
2019 at a conversion price of HK$0.68 per conversion share
(subject to anti-dilutive adjustments). On 3 April 2014 and
29 August 2014, the conversion rights attaching to the 2014
Convertible Note were partially exercised for HK$20,000,000
and HK$60,000,000, respectively, and a total of 122,869,707
conversion shares were issued upon conversion. Pursuant to
the adjustment provisions in the terms and conditions of the
2014 Convertible Note, adjustments have since been made to
the conversion price of the 2014 Convertible Note in a number
of instances. The last adjusted conversion price is HK$22.72
per conversion share with effect from 9 October 2015.

Conversion shares will be allotted and issued upon exercise
of the conversion rights. If the 2014 Convertible Note is not
converted during the conversion period up to the maturity date,
it will be redeemed on the maturity date at par with outstanding
accrued interest. Interest of 2% per annum will be paid semi-
annually in arrears up until the settlement date.

The 2014 Convertible Note contains two components, liability
and equity elements. The equity component is presented in
equity heading “convertible note equity reserve”. The effective
interest rate of the liability component of the 2014 Convertible
Note is 16.98% per annum at the date of initial recognition.

On 27 March 2019, the 2014 Convertible Note matured
which was redeemed by the Group at the principal amount of
HK$20,000,000 with outstanding accrued interest.

(@)

MN20145E3 8278 &N A
7N 4 428 100,000,000 7 JT 2% 17
2019 F B 8 7 2% Al 2 AR = 15
Fok BB ([2014F A #a p =
&1 o

2014 F AR E R ABTTYIE KR
BEAZHBUSR KRR 0.68
BTz ABRE(FERREGEAE
M) MN20145E3827H 2
2014 FAI MR EHFHITH RER
20193 AT 2 £ E B HI M
MR RBRERABARAR]
ZEBRID - R20145 4 A3
A X%20148H29R - » 5l A
20,000,000 % 7t & 60,000,000 /%
TTH AR 2014 F o] R EiE 2
BRIEEERDITE - REIRE
BT 48 80122,869,707 f& X, 4 i%
19 o BAE 2014 F AR ZRE 7 48
BIER{EMHI A 2 FEEEER - 2014 F
ARREE RREERE TS
MTFAAE - RELHBEZ LR
BEREREBRMH 272 TH
201510 A9 BARL ©

RITE R R S S il 8 R 31T
SRR o iK1 2014 F AR E NS
REBEEEEI MBI RE R
B AR A N EEEER
A2 BEHRF &R o F
BE2% 2 F| B RIFF FHR I
e HEEHEEABIL -

2014F A MR EE BT MEMK
o BERESKD - BmK D
BB E = ek
o 2014 F A BB R B ER S
RYEHER B HR 2 BEMR A
FEEE16.98% °

R2019F3 8278 B FIH M
2014 FA MR EIRE R B AR
% 20,000,000 7 T K2 5 K (& 38 7]
BHEE -
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 #(Z 201943 A31 HILFE

24. CONVERTIBLE NOTES CONTAINING LIABILITY AND 24, AEARZEESEGEREZKD
EQUITY COMPONENTS (Continued) (#8)

(o)

On 12 June 2015, the Company issued 2% convertible note
due 2018 at an aggregate principal amount of HK$86,000,000
to Madian Star Limited (“Madian”), an independent third party
(the “2015 Convertible Note”).

The 2015 Convertible Note is denominated in HKD and entitles
the holder to convert it into ordinary shares of the Company
at any time between the date of issue of the 2015 Convertible
Note on 12 June 2015 and its settlement date on 12 June 2017
at a conversion price of HK$0.85 per conversion share (subject
to anti-dilutive adjustments). The holder may redeem the 2015
Convertible Note, at any time three months after the grant
date, at 100% of the principal amount outstanding together
with all interest accrued thereon up to and including the date of
redemption. The Company may redeem the 2015 Convertible
Note at its own discretion on any business day prior to the
maturity date at 100% of the principal amount outstanding
together with all interest accrued thereon up to and including
the date of redemption. Pursuant to the adjustment provisions
in the terms and conditions of the 2015 Convertible Note,
adjustments have been made to the conversion price of the
2015 Convertible Note from HK$0.85 per share to HK$1.81 per
share with effect from 9 October 2015 as a result of a capital
reorganisation and the completion of the issue of rights share,
and further to HK$0.33 per share with effect from 7 January
2016 as a result of the entering into a deed of amendment
to revise the conversion price which was approved by the
shareholders at a special general meeting of the Company held
on 7 January 2016.

On 1 March 2017, the Company entered into the second
deed of amendment with Madian to further revise the terms
of the 2015 Convertible Note. According to the second deed
of amendment, (i) the exercise period of the 2015 Convertible
Note is revised from 2 years to 7 years (i.e. the settlement date
is extended to 12 June 2022); (i) the conversion price is revised
from HK$0.33 per conversion share to HK$0.16 per conversion
share; and (jii) the annual interest rate is revised from 2% to 3%
and the interest will be payable semi-annually in arrears instead
of in one lump sum on the settlement date. The second deed
of amendment was approved by the shareholders at a special
general meeting of the Company held on 26 April 2017. The
modification of the terms was determined to be substantial
and hence resulted in the extinguishment of the original liability
component of the 2015 Convertible Note and the recognition
of new liability and equity components (the “New 2015
Convertible Note”), resulting in a net loss on modification of
terms of convertible note amounting to HK$1,023,000 being
recognised in profit or loss.

)

R2015FE6 8128 » A2 &N
N4 485 86,000,000 TLE TR
2017 BBz 2% Al IR EE T
Madian Star Limited ([Madian]) -
—HB =7 ([2015 F AT A
=R -

2015 F AR E R AB TSI E K&
BEAZBUTRERR7D0.85
BT RARME (RIRRMEEEL
) )R 201546 A12 822015
FARREEETE RER 2017
FeR12AZHEE A M Z M
i HIBERAARARZ LA
BERE (5 o F5 B ARITER T A Hitk
=@ A 2 E AR - 2A100% &
EEASSBERNEENPEE
B B #3 2 AT FE R A5 FIL B T A
B0 2015 F AT AR K ° ANA A
JRA] 3R H B FAAE B HA B AT &
¥BHRA - LA100% R EBRES
SHEREENRBEBEOBHZ
Fi /8 FEf AR A FIL 2 F LARE [B1 2015
FAI AR EE - RIE2015F 7]
BRI 2 A5 BI BRI A 2 F
165% - IR E 4B K FERk A E
2015 F A MR EIR 2 A E A
201510 A9 BB &AL 0.855
TLRABEF1.818T * K 2016
F1 A7 BARARETZRELES
ARG FEREI AR R R
B2 ZABHHIRER 2016 F 1
R7HBE—SHEEFTM0.33%E

I ©

MR2017E3/818 A2 7@ &k
Madianz] 37 8 — D18 5] 2245 A
HE— HBET2015F Al AR E 48
1§38 o IRIKE M ERTRIE - (i)
2015 F Al IR EIEITEBRFR 2 FF
WETFE(AEEBHERE2022
FeH228) (i) LA EBEHHER
R 0.33 B TIEr] AERAE
HRE1D 0.16 77T ¢ I (iil) B 8 F F
K2 BB AIEMEIREEE
ARSI —AmTRELEER—
PRSI o B PETREER
20174 4 A26 BERZ AR EIRR
BERIAS FEREIE - 25
BRZIEFTEREAERL AL
B 2015 F A BREIERZRKE
EIPRB LRI BERES
D (TH1 2015 AT AR IR ) - &
WA R R GEREBFEES
%6 1,023,000 BT A 1825 TER ©
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24. CONVERTIBLE NOTES CONTAINING LIABILITY AND 24. TRREEESEEBREZHSD
EQUITY COMPONENTS (Continued) (&)
(b)  (Continued) ) (&)
On 31 March 2019, the New 2015 Convertible Note with R2019F3 A31H * ¥2015F ]
principal amount of HK$86,000,000 remained outstanding. BREBDMARERERASER
Assuming full conversion of the New 2015 Convertible Note 86,000,000/ 7T ° & &% A & &
at a revised conversion price of HK$0.16 at 31 March 2019, 016 L 2B RIBE B
the New 2015 Convertible Note will be convertible into 20194 3 A31 B2 M K 2015
537,500,000 new ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each in the FA R - #2015 F Ak
share capital of the Company. EREBRARARETREARME
0.01787T,2537,500,000% 37 & 8
ARARAR ©
Conversion shares will be allotted and issued upon exercise RITE R B S S R 3 R EBTT
of the conversion rights. If the New 2015 Convertible Note SR o HET 2015 F NG
is not converted during the revised conversion period up to ERHGEME 2 &ERTRIHE
the revised maturity date, it will be redeemed on the revised IR R BIEREHBEIAR
maturity date at par with outstanding accrued interest. Interest HEERMAZMNZEEFE
of 3% per annum as revised under the second deed of fEE - RIFF —MEFTRNKE
amendment will be paid semi-annually in arrears up until the FIFRE3% 2 F B ETFFH
revised settlement date. REN—REZLBIIH#ERR
IF .
Each of the 2015 Convertible Note and New 2015 Convertible 2015 F AT MR E R R #T20154F
Note contains liability component, equity component, and AHREEEAEREKD «
holder and issuer early redemption options. As the early B BEEARBITAREE
redemption options are closely related to the host contract, B - ARNIEREREREEE
they are not treated as separate derivatives. The equity MBEHAE  WMMEBITET
component is presented in equity heading “convertible note BRI o mKn IR [ AR
equity reserve”. The effective interest rate of the liability Bk 2% - #2015
component of the New 2015 Convertible Note is 23.66% per FOBRRER 2 8ERSRY%E
annum at the date of initial recognition. BRBHZERMERFEER
23.66% °
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24. CONVERTIBLE NOTES CONTAINING LIABILITY AND 24, TRREEEESEBREZRD
EQUITY COMPONENTS (Continued) (48)
(c)  On 11 May 2017, the Company issued 3% convertible note due © R2017F5A11H AR A

2022 at an aggregate principal amount of HK$16,000,000 to
Easyknit International (the “First 2017 Convertible Note”).

The First 2017 Convertible Note is denominated in HKD and
entitles the holder to convert it into ordinary shares of the
Company at any time between the date of issue of the First
2017 Convertible Note on 11 May 2017 and its settlement
date on 11 May 2022 at a conversion price of HK$0.16 per
conversion share (subject to anti-dilutive adjustments). The
holder may redeem the First 2017 Convertible Note, at any
time three months after the grant date, at 100% of the principal
amount outstanding together with all interest accrued thereon
up to and including the date of redemption. The Company
may redeem the First 2017 Convertible Note on any business
day prior to the maturity date at 100% of the principal amount
outstanding together with all interest accrued thereon up
to and including the date of redemption. On 31 March
2019, the First 2017 Convertible Note with principal amount
of HK$16,000,000 remained outstanding. Assuming full
conversion of the First 2017 Convertible Note at a conversion
price of HK$0.16 at 31 March 2019, the First 2017 Convertible
Note will be convertible into 100,000,000 new ordinary shares
of HK$0.01 each in the share capital of the Company.

Conversion shares will be allotted and issued upon exercise of
the conversion rights. If the First 2017 Convertible Note is not
converted during the conversion period up to the maturity date,
it will be redeemed on the maturity date at par with outstanding
accrued interest. Interest of 3% per annum will be paid semi-
annually in arrears up until the settlement date.

The First 2017 Convertible Note contains liability component,
equity component, and holder and issuer early redemption
options. As the early redemption options are closely related to
the host contract, they are not treated as separate derivatives.
The equity component is presented in equity heading
“convertible note equity reserve”. The effective interest rate of
the liability component of the First 2017 Convertible Note is
24.57% per annum at the date of initial recognition.

N4 48%8 16,000,000 7 TTE 1T
2022 F F| i 2 3% Al AR =i T
KE BB ([ —15 2017 F A%
e

F—15 2017 F AR EHR BT
HENFEAZHE AR IRE
01678 T 2 RIBE(FiRRHE
PR E) - B2017F5A11HZ
B 2017 Frl R ZIEZEITH
RER2022F5 11 BZ&EEH
B 2 A ESR  RREEAAE
NAEZEBEEG - FHHAKE
BT BB =@A 2 ERER -
LA100% K EE A & S FE R FT
EEELBEERE B EMAER
{F) 8 F LARE R 8 —15 2017 F /]
IR ZERE o AN E) A £ R HA B AT
EREEBAHA - LA100% K E
BACCHERMAEERBIE
FE[ B 2 R R F B F LA
@E—15 2017 EA[ B EE -
201943 A31 8 » & — 152017
FAIRRERDNAEELASEA
16,000,000/ 7T > BRE& A T K
0.16 87T,z HHRE - R20194 3
A31B2MEAIRE—1520174 0]
HREENE - 15 2017 TRl
ZRAIHBBANRZBRARNT
A Z=E{E0.01757T,2 100,000,000
BT E RARRR D o

TTTIE 5 HR A By 6 & AC 3% e 31T
S o W 2017 AT
BREEXRABAREEZHAY
RAERE  RAIBREINEAREE
BEER MR 2 EFHRANEE
Bl - F 8 E3% 2 H SR FH
AXNME - BEHEERRIE -

F—Hoo7T FREREEBEE
B « R D EIEH AR
TARFBELDE - ARIERED
BRFEENBEZTEE - BTME
BUSTETERTE - XK DT
(MR EEEREE] 28
2o B—D2017 FO R EE 2
BEK D R IIIAERE: 2 BERF
ERFEERF24.57% °

x
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24. CONVERTIBLE NOTES CONTAINING LIABILITY AND 24, JBEREEESEEREZKD
EQUITY COMPONENTS (Continued) (48)
(d)  On 26 September 2017, the Company issued 3% convertible (d HR2017F9A26H + AR AL

note due 2020 at an aggregate principal amount of
HK$28,200,000 to Easyknit International (the “Second 2017
Convertible Note”).

The Second 2017 Convertible Note is denominated in HKD
and entitles the holder to convert it into ordinary shares of
the Company at any time between the date of issue of the
Second 2017 Convertible Note on 26 September 2017 and
its settlement date on 26 September 2020 at a conversion
price of HK$0.06 per conversion share (subject to anti-dilutive
adjustments). The holder may redeem the Second 2017
Convertible Note, at any time three months after the grant
date, at 100% of the principal amount outstanding together
with all interest accrued thereon up to and including the date
of redemption. The Company may redeem the Second 2017
Convertible Note on any business day prior to the maturity
date at 100% of the principal amount outstanding together
with all interest accrued thereon up to and including the date
of redemption. On 18 October 2017, the conversion rights
attached to the Second 2017 Convertible Note were partially
exercised for HK$16,920,000, and a total of 282,000,000
conversion shares were issued upon conversion. On 31
March 2019, the Second 2017 Convertible Note with principal
amount of HK$11,280,000 remained outstanding. Assuming
full conversion of the Second 2017 Convertible Note at a
conversion price of HK$0.06 at 31 March 2019, the Second
2017 Convertible Note will be convertible into 188,000,000
new ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each in the share capital of the
Company.

Conversion shares will be allotted and issued upon exercise of
the conversion rights. If the Second 2017 Convertible Note is
not converted during the conversion period up to the maturity
date, it will be redeemed on the maturity date at par with
outstanding accrued interest. Interest of 3% per annum will be
paid semi-annually in arrears up until the settlement date.

The Second 2017 Convertible Note contains liability
component, equity component, and holder and issuer early
redemption options. As the early redemption options are
closely related to the host contract, they are not treated as
separate derivatives. The equity component is presented in
equity heading “convertible note equity reserve”. The effective
interest rate of the liability component of the Second 2017
Convertible Note is 44.06% per annum at the date of initial
recognition.

N4 4858 28,200,000 78 TTEATH
2020 F BB Z 3% Al IR Z & T
K ZE B ([ 5 =1 2017 FE AR
=) -

Z1H2017 F AR ER ST
HIMERIFEAZEUER IR
50.06 BT HIRE(FERW
BN E)  KR2017F9H 26
B2 5% — {52017 E A R E &3
TR RHMN 202049 A26 B 2 #
BB AR LinER
BARRABZEBEEG - FEA
AJFESR T A #iR =8 A 2 (E {6
M LA100% KR EEBAS S5 E
AREEERBEER AR E
RRMAFEFAERSE — 152017
FAMRREE o AN B Al £ 5 H
BRIEMZE AR LA100%
KEEASSHERMBEER
BEER A EAAAFET
IAEEE 2017 E A B E
%o R2017E 108188 » £=
192017 F AR =i 7 HIRESS
31716 16,920,000 7T * R K
i B 25 17 A ££ 282,000,000 A% 3
#R% 1 o A201943A31H -
B0 FR BRRZE KR
BB A4 % A11,280,0008 7T °

RERIA TR 0.06 78T 2 HIRE
MR2019F3A31HA2 M LB E
2017 FAMRERE - F=H
2017 F AR FE A KR AR LD
Al Z B ARERZEEE0.01 /8T
2.188,000,0000% %7 I @A A% (5 °

RITEE R RN S S i3 R E&ET
HARED o 855 — 1) 2017 F ]
BEEALBENEZIHAY
RAERE  BEREEBENER
BERMAZ N ZEFHRFEE
B - FER3%2F EREFFFH
RKEMFE HEELEEBBILE -

ZHo017T FA MR EEREE
B S - D EFH A KR
TARFELORE - ARERED
BRFBANEREE - WTE
BITHETAERRE o K55
RIATRRERRSREE] 2
o B 2017 Fr R ERE 2
B ER D R IR TERE 2 B A
RAEBFBEEE44.06% °
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24,

CONVERTIBLE NOTES CONTAINING LIABILITY AND
EQUITY COMPONENTS (Continued)

The movement of the liability component of the above convertible

el
B
=
EIE

sREAE

i

K &

L

B

Bk

EHiATB AR R B R D Z B SN

notes is set out below: ™
2019 2018
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
At the beginning of the year REH] 69,656 95,801
Issue of the First 2017 BITHE— D 2017 F R EE
Convertible Note - 6,365
Issue of the Second 2017 BITHE ) 2017 F AR ERE
Convertible Note = 9,624
Derecognition of original liability RE R 2015 F AR
component upon modification 1B IR R0 B BB fE R R AR
of terms of the 2015 ZBEKGH
Convertible Note = (84,977)
Recognition of new liability RE W 2015 F a4
component upon modification B ERFT M B &R 7D
of terms of the 2015
Convertible Note - 35,008
Redemption upon maturity REEAEE D (20,000) -
Conversion i = (6,775)
Accretion of interest MezBaREE 17,123 17,128
Interest paid BRFE (3,793) (3,518)
At the end of the vyear, RER - BIRRBAE
shown under current liabilities 62,986 69,656
SILEEERAT | 2019 Fif
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25. SECURED BANK BORROWINGS

Carrying amount repayable as follows & (&8 18 7 BEEE N T
(based on the scheduled (RBEZIBZAA
repayment dates set out in the ZEEBH)
loan agreements):

— within one year ——FRA

- within a period of more than one  —Z R —FEFBBRELEA
year but not exceeding
two years

— within a period of more than —ZRMEETNBARFHER
two years but not exceeding
five years

— within a period of more than — AR FHHA
five years

Less: Amount due within one B RRBAaEETZ
year shown under current —FRNEHE%E
liabilities

Amount due after one year shown RIERBEEETZ
under non-current liabilities —FRIBrEEE

At 31 March 2019, the Group’s secured bank borrowings carry
interest ranging from Hong Kong Interbank Offered Rate (“HIBOR”)
plus 1.5% to 1.8% or London Interbank Offered Rate plus 0.8%
(2018: HIBOR plus 1.5% to 2.35%) per annum, with effective
interest ranging from 3.03% to 3.33% (2018: 2.03% to 2.95%)
per annum. The loans are secured by investment properties of the
Group with an aggregate carrying amount of HK$776,431,000
(2018: HK$986,740,000) and properties held for development for
sale of the Group with carrying amount of HK$1,730,263,000 (2018:
HK$1,634,964,000). The proceeds were mainly used to finance
acquisition of investment properties and development of properties.

25.

BIRFRTEE
2019 2018
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHET
354,620 420,410
36,208 593,494
627,957 17,408
56,444 61,348
1,075,229 1,092,660
(354,620) (420,410)
720,609 672,250

MR2019F3A31H AEE 2 FIK
HRTEBEBEENTHBRITRAE
WETBABRITRAEIRE]D IN1.5%
Z1.8% 3 s ZIR 1T A ¥ ¥ B 110.8%
(20184 : BB RITREFRBEMN1.5%
£235%)  HEBFFEN F3.03%
Z3.33% (20184F : 2.03% & 2.95%) °
BERUAEBE2REVERAES
H #776,431,000% JC(20184F :
986,740,000/ 7T ) KA £ E 5 EH &3
BY¥BREE1,730,263,00087T(2018
£ 1 1,634,964,00078 7T ) fE AT o 3
BEFERAEKERENERDERR Y
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25.

26.

SECURED BANK BORROWINGS (Continued) 25. BEMRITEE (B)
The Group’s secured bank borrowings that are denominated in AEEUNEHESEEERNGEEEUINZ
currency other than the functional currencies of the relevant group EEIEZ G EMREEHINWT ¢
entities are set out below:
2019 2018
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHET
usD ETT 36,227 -
DEFERRED TAXATION 26. IEIEFIIE
The followings are the major deferred tax liabilities recognised and REARBEFECRALAETE VR
movements thereon during the current and prior years: HIEEBEURASSHNT :
Revaluation Convertible
of properties notes issued Total
MEE L AR RE HBEE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHT FHET FH T
At 1 April 2017 R2017F4 A1 8 (19,995) (1,859) (21,854)
Recognition upon issue of BT A AR AR R RE R
convertible notes - (4,619) (4,619)
Released upon modification of B A& 4% (KR AE
terms of convertible note R - 465 465
Recognition upon modification 8 2k A #AE =45 15 3RS
of terms of convertible note B = (8,414) (8,414)
Release upon conversion of SRR R R AR R
convertible note = 1,838 1,838
(Charge) credit to profit or RAFEEZIBEF
loss for the year (HIBR) & A (2,491) 1,949 (542)
Currency realignment bE 5 A (1,939) - (1,939)
At 31 March 2018 201843 A31H (24,425) (10,640) (35,085)
Release upon redemption of fE (o] AT $ AR AR BF AR B
convertible note - 177 177
(Charge) credit to profit or RARFEEEZRD
loss for the year (#0BR) 5T A (1,570) 2,199 629
Currency realignment DE 5 3 1,602 - 1,602
At 31 March 2019 M201943 A31 R (24,393) (8,264) (32,657)

At 31 March 2019, the Group has unused tax losses of
HK$166,900,000 (2018: HK$155,710,000) available for offset against
future profits. The Hong Kong tax losses of HK$166,900,000 (2018:
HK$153,760,000) can be carried forward indefinitely. The remaining
tax losses of HK$1,950,000 at 31 March 2018 shall expire from 2019
to 2022 (2019: nil). No deferred tax asset has been recognised in
respect of the unrecognised tax losses due to the unpredictability of
future profit streams.

MR2019F3A31 B AEBEREFH
% T8 /&5 18 166,900,000 7 7T (2018 £F :
155,710,0007% 7T ) LA FB 1E 15 $8 oK 210%
F o F 7 B I8 & 18 166,900,000 7% 7T
(20184F : 153,760,000 7 7T ) A £ [R HA
458 o HEAMR 201843 A 31 HWIFIE
[E5181,950,000 78 7T 72 2019 FF & 2022
F(20194F : #)FIH - AR KRAETERT K
FOBFA - BLRERTIEEIR LA
REFELERIBEE -
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27. SHARE CAPITAL 27. B
Nominal
value Number
per share of shares Amount
SREAE BRAEE k]
Notes HK$ HK$’000
fisE BT TAT
Authorised: EE
At 1 April 2017, 31 March 2018 and R2017F4 /18
31 March 2019 20183 A31BK
201943 A31H 0.01 20,000,000,000 200,000
Issued and fully paid: BREITREE
At 1 April 2017 R2017F4A1H 0.01 1,911,832,059 19,118
Issue of new shares k31T (@) 0.01 325,000,000 3,250
Conversion of convertible note HRTRREE (0) 0.01 282,000,000 2,820
Issue of new shares HROET (© 0.01 447,000,000 4,470
At 31 March 2018 and 31 March 2019 72018 3 A 31 H X
201943 A31H 0.01 2,965,832,059 29,658
Notes: Bt &

On 19 July 2017, the Company allotted 325,000,000 ordinary shares of
HK$0.01 each by placing to not less than six placees at a placing price of
HK$0.08 per share. The Company raised HK$25,740,000 (net of expenses)
with the intention at the time of placing to be used to satisfy part of the
consideration for the acquisition of a unit in a non-industrial building for
redevelopment. The new placing shares were issued pursuant to the
refreshed general mandate granted to the directors by a resolution of the
independent shareholders of the Company passed at the special general
meeting held on 26 April 2017.

On 18 October 2017, the Second 2017 Convertible Note with a principal
amount of HK$16,920,000 were converted into shares of HK$0.01 each in
the Company at the conversion price of HK$0.06 per share. Accordingly,
a total of 282,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each were allotted and
issued by conversion of the convertible note.

On 21 February 2018, the Company allotted 447,000,000 ordinary shares
of HK$0.01 each by placing to not less than six placees at a placing price of
HK$0.055 per share. The Company raised HK$24,340,000 (net of expenses)
with the intention at the time of placing to be used to purchase units in an
industrial building for redevelopment. The new placing shares were issued
pursuant to the general mandate granted to the directors by a resolution of
the shareholders of the Company passed at the annual general meeting held
on 24 July 2017.

All shares issued during the year ended 31 March 2018 rank pari
passu with the then existing shares in issue in all respects.

R2017F7A198 » RAR A ERKRE
£ {80.087% JT At & 325,000,000 f% & A%
0.01 BT 2 TR MHD F AL RANEAE
Bt A o AN E1E15 25,740,000 7T (F0BR
Fi&) - BEHTE B IEm S —(E3E
TE¥EFENFERARZBHRME-
FEE D ThR 2017 4 4 A 26 BRI
RAGLRBZBVRFERELTES
ZEHT—ARIRRERT -

MR2017F10A18H XK & £ %
16,920,000 7T 2 88 = 152017 4 7] #
REBAGAR06EITZ HILER LA
ARREROOIBITZKRG - Bt -
FERRBTRAREERA ARE RET
282,000,000 A& &A% 0.01 7T 2 T RmARAR
3 e

M2018F2H218 + AR A AT RE
{8 0.055 7% JTBL £ 447,000,000 B% 5 A%
0.01 7T 2 TR T D RSB &
fL A ° AN R 15 24,340,000 7 7T (3B
X&) - BETEAERE L EY XS
f{EER - M ERH THIR2017F7 A
24 ARFEFRE BB 7 RFERZELL
FEFZ MREERT -

FrENEZE 201843 A31 HILFE T
ZRONSE T EEEREBRITRNZ
FISHER -
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28.

SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

On 29 June 2012, a share option scheme (the “2012 Share Option
Scheme”) was approved by the shareholders of the Company. Under
the terms of the 2012 Share Option Scheme, the board of directors
of the Company may, at its absolute discretion, offer options to
any full-time employee, director or consultant of any member of the
Group (including associated companies) to subscribe for shares in
the Company subject to the terms and conditions stipulated therein.
The 2012 Share Option Scheme is valid during the period of ten years
commencing 29 June 2012, unless otherwise cancelled or amended.

The purposes of the 2012 Share Option Scheme are to encourage
eligible participants to work towards enhancing the value of the
Company and its shares for the benefit of the Company and its
shareholders as a whole.

The maximum number of shares which may be issued under the 2012
Share Option Scheme must not (when aggregate with any shares to
be issued under any other share option schemes of the Company)
exceed 10% of the shares in issue at the date of adoption of the 2012
Share Option Scheme.

The maximum number of shares issuable upon the exercise of the
share options granted to each eligible participant of the 2012 Share
Option Scheme within any 12-month period, is limited to 1% of the
shares of the Company in issue. Any further grant of share options in
excess of this limit is subject to shareholders’ approval in a general
meeting of the Company with such grantee and his associate(s)
abstaining from voting.

The exercise period of the share options under 2012 Share Option
Scheme is determined by the board of directors of the Company and
shall end on a date which is not later than ten years from the date
of grant of the options. At the time of grant of the share options, the
Company must (a) specify the minimum period(s), if any, for which a
share option must be held before it can be exercised in whole or in
part, and (b) specify the minimum performance target(s), if any, which
must be achieved before the share options can be exercised in whole
or in past. The amount payable on acceptance of an offer for grant of
share options is HK$1.

The exercise price in respect of any particular option of the 2012
Share Option Scheme may be determined by the board of directors
of the Company in its absolute discretion and notified to each offeree
but may not be less than the highest of (i) the closing price of the
Company’s shares on the Stock Exchange as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheets on the date of offer, which must
be a business day; (i) the average closing price of the Company’s
shares on the Stock Exchange as stated in the Stock Exchange’s
daily quotations sheets for the five business days immediately
preceding the date of offer; and (iii) the nominal value of the
Company’s shares on the date of offer.

28.

DR BER N 2R S

M2012F6 4298 « AREIREAE—
TR E)([201 2 BEASAERT &) - 1R
B0 2B IR T Bl 2 (558« AR RIES
on - IREBHIIEE - RIRZE ST
HE Z IR REGRANERERKE R
A (PREBMERAR) 2ANEBES - £
B EMEE AT REAARRG 2B’
1 © 2012 AR HERT IBRIE LA fh 5 =0 5E
fHEiEET - BAIM201246 A29 At
10FHIRI N —EH AR »

2012 B ER B S A B TEERS M
ERNRBARBREBRN 2 BEN
BARRDE R ERBIR BN -

RIR2012FBARERT B BE BT 2 &R =
MNEE TS (EBEARA ZEFEAM
BRIERT B T HIT 2 EM D A H5T
B)BBRRMN2012BRETEEAZ
BEETARMN.210% °

PMER12(EA MR - & 201288 M
AEZBRABRSEETEAMERT
ZERER BTRTZRSROE
B UARBEHTROZ1%BR -
EfTE — R BB R AR < R -
ARFBRRERRARBRRRE L4 A
1EE - AR ARS8 ARHER

o

il

RI% 2012 BB R AR AT 8 2 B B HE 1T (2 1
BMARRERGRE - BATEREKE
BREE PR TFZAER - MR
BRI - AR BMA (o) ERRBAES
BRAOTTEZAFEFA 2 &R HR (40
B) - R(o)ERBRER XA ITRE
ZRIMBATR 2 RIERBIEE (WE) -
SRR LB B BT o

ARAEFSURABHNBE BT
2012 Rk &) 2 (AT FE B 21T
®E - YAMEEXZOA  EABETE
EBRASIR)RENAR(LEREE
B RE R A2 8 B MERMIIALRE
PRADTRBEZ P 2 W {E - (il) BER 2 X H
HATAEZ%A  REXMzSRRE
RETFIAR R BB X P 2 A9 YT
B+ M(i) ARFRMNEL B ZHEE
(AEEERE) -
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28. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

Details of share options granted under the 2012 Share Option
Scheme are as follows:

28.

U BERZ N 25 ()

2012 B IR A IR 2 BRI 0
T~

Exercise price

Date of grant Vesting period Exercise period per share

R B B 1T1EHER BRITEE

HK$

T

14.10.2016 Nil 14.10.2016-13.10.2019 0.176
113

A

The following table discloses movements of the Company’s share
options held by employees and directors pursuant to the 2012 Share
Option Scheme during the current and prior years:

TR 201 20R I B R E R
EERAALT 2 BRERERRBE
FEEH

Number of share options
BREHE
Outstanding Lapsed Outstanding Lapsed  Outstanding
Exercise at during at during at
Date of grant price 1.4.2017 the year 31.3.2018 the year 31.3.2019
R A I W1.4.2017 $231.3.2018 #31.3.2019
fei £ RERKH mER RERENR o3
HK$
B
Directors EZ
14.10.2016 0.176 33,900,000 (11,300,000) 22,600,000 - 22,600,000
Employees £S5
14.10.2016 0.176 79,100,000  (11,300,000) 67,800,000 (22,600,000) 45,200,000
113,000,000 (22,600,000 90,400,000 (22,600,000) 67,800,000
Exercisable at end of RERA1THE
the year 90,400,000 67,800,000
Weighted average MEFHTEE
exercise price (HK$) (#1) 0.176 0.176 0.176 0.176 0.176

The fair value of the options granted on 14 October 2016 was
HK$2,083,000. No options were granted during the years ended 31
March 2019 and 2018.

R2016 10 B 14 BRI EZ AFE
2,083,000/ 7T © #ZE 20194 & 2018
F3 A31BIEFEILE R L EAAE -
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28.

SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

The fair value was calculated using the Black-Scholes model with
Binomial Tree method. The inputs into the model were as follows:

Grant date BB

Share price (HK$) f& (& (BT)
Exercise price (HK$) IEEGET)
Expected volatility TERT R @
Expected life (years) TEETRRR (£ H7)
Risk-free rate 2 B A 2
Expected dividend yield TERTARF =

No share option was exercised under the 2012 Share Option Scheme
in both years.

28.

RO ABER 2R 5 (&)

NHETIER AR — HREEAR =X
BEE - RARAZBABBLAT

14.10.2016

0.126
0.176
37.76%
3.0
0.63%

A ESF Z A R E 201 2 AR 1T
EREAAE

WA RAR | 2019 F4f
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29. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING FROM 29.
FINANCING ACTIVITIES

RERMEES 2 BEZAER

TRAJIAKERARE TS 2 AEE
B BRERSNMFRSEE - KERE
EHZABNEMRERES  IARK
RERERELER/AER 2 GERE
MEBRZKERMEBLHZIRERE °

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities arising from
financing activities, including both cash and non-cash changes.
Liabilities arising from financing activities are those for which cash
flows were, or future cash flows will be, classified in the Group’s
consolidated statement of cash flows as cash flows from financing

activities.
Convertible Secured bank
notes borrowings Total
EESESH BHRFRTEE ok
HK$’'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR FEL FET
(Note 24) (Note 25)
(PitzE24) (PitzE25)
At 1 April 2017 R2017F 4818 95,801 779,700 875,501
Bank borrowings raised E5RTER - 318,071 318,071
Proceeds from issue of convertible notes %47 AJ IR =& A5 2R 44,200 - 44,200
Repayment of bank borrowings BERIREE - (5,359) (5,359)
Interest paid BERFE (6,623) (25,065) (31,688)
133,378 1,067,347 1,200,725
Non-cash changes: L EH -
- Interest expense on convertible notes —EREEZ MBS 17,128 - 17,128
- Interest expense on bank borrowings —BITEEZAERY - 25,313 25,313
— Gain on fair value change —ATRREEZ
of convertible note NFEZE M 217) - 217)
— Interest payable on convertible notes -RBEFEEHHE
reclassified to “trade and other AR R FIE
payables” in prior years FEHREMENFIE 3,105 = 3,106
- Conversion of convertible note L EA e (5,775) - (5,775)
- Recognition of equity component —ERABRRER Y
of convertible notes ) (27,994) = (27,994)
— Derecogpnition of original liability —RERARRER
component upon modification R EUEER
of terms of convertible note N=L 140 (84,977) = (84,977)
- Recognition of new liability —RENARRER
component upon modification R R
of terms of convertible note BEKD 35,008 - 35,008
At 31 March 2018 R20184F3A31H 69,656 1,092,660 1,162,316
Bank borrowings raised EERIER - 609,605 609,605
Acquisition of liabilities through FER R B A R
acquisition a subsidiary (note 33(b)) B & (P 33(b)) = 151,870 151,870
Redemption of convertible note upon AR B i R RER
maturity (20,000) - (20,000)
Repayment of bank borrowings BERIEE - (330,399) (330,399)
Disposal of a subsidiary HEHRBAR - (448,858) (448,858)
Interest paid YRFIE (3,793) (47,401) (51,194)
45,863 1,027,477 1,073,340
Non-cash changes: FELEH
— Interest expense on convertible notes  — AIHARREIE 7 M B % 17,128 - 17,123
- Interest expense on bank borrowings —RITERZFERZ - 47,752 47,752
At 31 March 2019 R2019%F3A31H 62,986 1,075,229 1,138,215
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30. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS/CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS

(a)

During the year, the Group had the following transactions with
wholly-owned subsidiaries of Easyknit International:

HEehX
BAAE

Rental expense
Acquisition of a motor vehicle

Ms. Lui Yuk Chu, a director of the Company, is also one of
the beneficiaries under a family trust holding 31.95% (2018:
36.74%) equity interest of Easyknit International at 31 March
2019. Ms. Lui Yuk Chu also holds 19.09% (2018: 21.95%)
equity interest of Easyknit International through an entity
wholly-owned by her.

Details of the convertible notes issued to Easyknit International,
including an instance of redemption upon maturity, are set out
in note 24(a), (c) and (d).

Compensation of key management personnel

The remuneration of directors and other members of key
management during the year was as follows:

Short-term employee benefits EHEEEF
Salaries and other benefits e kHMmER

Contributions to retirement RIREFIEH B 5K

benefits schemes

The remuneration of directors and key executives are
determined by the remuneration committee and executive
directors, respectively, having regard to the performance of
individuals and market trends.

30.

BEALRS BEXRS

@ FA AEEEXEREBRZEZE
WBARBUNTRS :
2019 2018
HK$’000 HK$’000
FEx T
2,496 2,496
405 =
RAMEEZEERL L B2019
FIASIANMABTEXKEBRRE
31.95% (2018 4F : 36.74%) ##E 2%
RIEERAZHAZ— c EEHL
ThER—MEEERAZER
M35 A 7k & B B 19.09% (2018
1 21.95%) K2 o
) BEITAXEBRZAIBRREEZ
HERERISBAZERS
18 - HIIRKE24@) ¢ (€) K (d) °
) IEBEEABZEHBH
BEEREMFTEERABRER
ZBEmT -
2019 2018
HK$’000 HK$’000
FEx F#T
10,428 8,413
72 104
10,500 8,517
EERFETBRABZHE SR

HHFMEE G RATESRRE
AL ZERBREMISBEMETE
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30. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS/CONNECTED 30.
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

BEALRS BEXS (&)

(d)  In January 2011, the Company entered into an employment @ R2011F1 A ARFIHEERHK
agreement with Mr. Koon Wing Yee, the spouse of Ms. Lui Rt BB EXELEEFLER
Yuk Chu, to act as general manager of the Company. The Wi EREAERARREE -
employment agreement, which constitutes a connected ZIEK—ERER S 2 BB
transaction, commenced on 21 February 2011 but may be 20112821 HBH - B A
terminated by either party at any time by three months’ notice. NEREEEEPFR—FET
The monthly salary has been adjusted twice to HK$180,000 “EABAmKL - BFAFHSE
with effect from 1 April 2017 and further to HK$300,000 with H TR TAER2017F4 818
effect from 1 April 2018. The remuneration of Mr. Koon Wing HFEES A180,000/8 7T * M
Yee as general manager of the Company during the year ended 2018F 4 A1 ARRE—THES
31 March 2019 was HK$3,900,000 (2018: HK$2,340,000) 300,000/ 7t ° & Z=20194 3 A
and was included in the “compensation of key management 31 BIEFABKBREEEREARA
personnel” in (c) above. Details of share options of the A4BASIE 7 Bl & 43,900,000 7T
Company granted to Mr. Koon Wing Yee are set out in (g) (20184F : 2,340,000/ L) KB
below. PIETEU EQEZIEEEHRAS

ZEHMIA - BRARQRETEK
BAREBREZFBEHIINIAT
(e)R
(e)  As set out in note 28, share options granted to directors of the () WAMIEE28FTEL - BERRIER T AR
Company and their close relatives are as follows: AIZERREEHRNOT -
Number of share options
BREZE
QOutstanding at Lapsed QOutstanding at Lapsed  Outstanding at
1 Apri during 31 March during 31 March
2017 the year 2018 the year 2019
20174 1201845 R2019%
4185t RERKR 3A31 Btk RERKR 3RS BHE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T ThL T TAL FiEn
Directors 2
Kwong Jimmy Cheung Tim BRALE 11,300,000 - 11,300,000 - 11,300,000
Lui Yuk Chu ERGaL 11,300,000 - 11,300,000 - 11,300,000
Koon Ho Yan Candy (note) BRI L (M) 11,300,000 (11,300,000) - - -
33,900,000 (11,300,000) 22,600,000 - 22,600,000
Employees &2
Koon Wing Yee, the spouse EAERE  EEHRL
of Lui Yuk Chu i 11,300,000 - 11,300,000 - 11,300,000
Koon Chun Ting, a son of BRELS  EXUKT
Lui Yuk Ch 757 11,300,000 (11,300,000 - - -
Ku Wai Ming, a cousin of hEREE  ERGAL
Lui Yuk Chu LER 11,300,000 - 11,300,000 - 11,300,000
33,900,000 (11,300,000) 22,600,000 - 22,600,000
67,800,000 (22,600,000) 45,200,000 - 45,200,000
Note: Ms. Koon Ho Yan Candy resigned as an executive director of the et : BRIMREZTRAERBE2017F4
Company with effect from 18 April 2017. H18 HEBHEARRIRITES ©

RMEFEEAESEE 2 B 5

No equity-settled share-based payment expenses was X
BT X R o

recognised in both years.
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30.

31.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS/CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

() During the year ended 31 March 2019, the Group received
rental income totalling HK$288,000 (2018: HK$505,000) from
certain close relatives of Ms. Lui Yuk Chu.

(9) During the year ended 31 March 2019, the Group paid
HK$10,000 (2018: nil) to Easyknit Charitable Foundation
Limited, a company controlled by Ms. Luk Yuk Chu, which is
recognised in profit or loss as “donations”.

hy () During the year ended 31 March 2019, the Group
acquired 100% equity interest in Wellmake Investments
Limited and shareholder loan from Easyknit International
for a cash consideration of HK$318,130,000 excluding
bank balances acquired amounting to HK$176,000.

(i) During the year ended 31 March 2019, the Group
disposed of its entire 100% equity interest in
Total Expect Limited and shareholder loan to
Easyknit International for a cash consideration of
HK$586,142,000 excluding bank balances and cash
disposed of amounting to HK$102,000, resulting in a
gain on disposal of a subsidiary of HK$43,139,000.

(i) The cash consideration payable to Easyknit International
amounting to HK$318,130,000 per (i) above was
offset with the cash consolidation receivable from
Easyknit International amounting to HK$586,142,000
per (i) above, which gave rise to a net settlement of
HK$268,012,000 by Easyknit International to the Group.

Details of the above are disclosed in notes 33(b) and 34,
announcement dated 21 November 2018 issued jointly with
Easyknit International and circular dated 12 February 2019
issued jointly with Easyknit International.

The net settlement arrangement per (iii) above constitutes
major non-cash transactions for the purpose of the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year ended 31
March 2019.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group
will be able to continue as a going concern while maximising the
return to shareholders through the optimisation of the debt and equity
balances. The Group’s overall strategy remains unchanged from prior
year.

30.

31.

BEALRS BEXS (&)

)  BE2019F3A31HILLFER -
AREFBKBMEE LT 2ET
T 2 e WA ££288,000/8 7T
(20184F : 505,000/87T) °

@ HEE201943A31HIER - K
% @ ¥ {10,000 7t (2018 4F :
) T REEEESSERAF
—REEH®RL LTS Z AR
RB=EERA B -

@ B0 HZE201963A31 BILE
A AEEBKEBEBK
IBEEICERRAR100%
BRMREER BeN
8 /318,130,000 JT
(T BEEWERITEAS
176,000/ 7T) °

i) & ZE201943A318 It
FR - AREE KR
£ Total Expect Limited
100% #Em MR ERK « 3
& X B &586,142,000 78
T(TEEBLERITES
K IR4 102,000 ) * &
B & — R B A Rl
43,139,000 7T °

@iy AR i) Rk B R
04 R E318,130,00078 7T
ERARYE bt (i) B ok & BB
U B ) 586,142,000 7T i
i BEBUKEBEBRRAE
B %5845 8 268,012,00078
=c

iz S BRI EE33(0) 234 ~ A
81520184 11 21 HEEKEEH
BEES B 2 AE R BEIA2019
F2 A 21 A #xEBHRES 5%
KA E -

R Bl i) 2 F AL ETHERE
20193 A31 BILFEHRAR
SHERMEBREZIIERER
% °

EXREBERE

A E Y A AR E R AR RAEE
HTERAREREEE  BBEEE
B SIS BB T T AR F R
CHE PREERENY P Ty
RS -
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31. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 31. BEAREMRERE (&)
The capital structure of the Group consists of net debts, which AEBzEARERSERFE &
includes convertible notes and secured bank borrowings disclosed BIED RIRMIFE24 K251 5 2 AT R
in notes 24 and 25, respectively, net of cash and cash equivalents BRBERRTEE  TiREEER
and equity attributable to owners of the Company, comprising issued ReMBEEEITRA - Ritaf RE
share capital, accumulated profits and other reserves. b fE 2 AN A AR FE G HE 2 o
The directors of the Company review the capital structure on a regular AAREBTHRTEALRE - tEAR
basis. As part of this review, the directors consider the cost of capital HH—EHD BEREREAKARER
and the risks associated with the capital. Based on recommendations HiEEER - REEENER  ~AEE
of the directors, the Group will balance its overall capital structure EEEIRMNIRE BT REENE
through the payment of dividends, new share issues and raising or BIRITEEREAER AT EHERE
repayment of bank borrowings and other debts. NG o
32. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 32. £@MITAE
a.  Categories of financial instruments a. SmIAZEH
2019 2018
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FET
Financial assets SREE
Available-for-sale investments A ERE - 207,213
Financial assets at FVTPL BAFEFABSEZSBMEAE 122,226 39,054
Debt instruments at FVTOCI BAFEFAEMEEKZEZ
EBEBITAE 15,857 -
Amortised cost/loans and BEER A B RN W R E
receivables (including cash (BIEEERERRE)
and cash equivalents)
— Trade and other receivables —E 5 Rk EH A EWRIE 4,503 33,443
— Loans receivable —ERER 336,010 265,297
- Bank deposits with original —HBA=EAZSH
maturity of more than three HRITER
months 12,763 -
- Bank balances and cash —RITHEHR RIS 141,582 125,422
632,941 670,429
Financial liabilities ==L
Amortised cost SRR
— Trade and other payables —E 5 KHAMERNRIE 45,521 40,843
— Convertible notes I 62,986 69,656
— Secured bank borrowings —HEBIRITEER 1,075,229 1,092,660
1,183,736 1,203,159
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32. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

32. EWMTAGAE

b.  Financial risk management objectives and policies b. HEEREEBZRBEK
The Group’s major financial instruments include available-for- AEEZFES T ABIEAH
sale investments, financial assets at FVTPL, debt instruments HERE RAFEFABZEZ
at FVTOCI, trade and other receivables, loans receivable, CREE BATERAEMS
bank deposits with original maturity of more than three ERHFZESITE  BH5REM
months, bank balances and cash, trade and other payables, FEW B  [EWE TR - BB =18
convertible notes and secured bank borrowings. Details of REIBZRITER - RITHEHR K
these financial instruments are disclosed in respective notes. He  BHREMEMNKIE - 7]
The risks associated with these financial instruments and the BIREERBERRITEER - &%
policies on how to mitigate these risks are set out below. SeRMTAZHBERENAR
The management manages and monitors these exposures to MizEm e ZZSTEF R 2R
ensure that appropriate measures are implemented on a timely B A B A (] P& 1K 3% 5 RLBR 2 BUR
and effective manner. YN BEEEREREEZ
£ L Bk DA e AR 3 IR J% 7B Uk ER BN
HEEH ©
Market risk R
(i)  Currency risk () EEEE
All of the Group’s sales and purchases are denominated AEBFAHEE RFEEY
in the group entities’ functional currency. NEBEEE 2SS
(=R
The carrying amount of the group entities’ foreign RIREHR - AHNETIE
currency denominated monetary assets and monetary CEEEBRCEKEEZ
liabilities at the end of the reporting period is as follows: BREEAT ¢
Liabilities Assets
af& BE
2019 2018 2019 2018
HK$’000 HK$’'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FAET FHET FHET
HKD against USD BT H T - = - 496
SGD against USD T i 3T (36,227) = 37,029 =
Sensitivity analysis BREE DT

The Group is mainly exposed to the exchange rate risk
on HKD against USD and SGD against USD for the
foreign currency denominated monetary assets and
monetary liabilities.

Under the pegged exchange rate system, the financial
impact on exchange difference between HKD and USD
will be immaterial, and therefore no sensitivity analysis
has been prepared.

AEBEBRIEINEZER
BERERABZEXR
BEBRKBBILIEET
REINF TR ETTZ AR

MR RERGIE BT
HXTERERZ BB
W REKR - BULRER
HPREDH -
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32. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

b. Financial risk management objectives and policies

(Continued)
Market risk (Continued)

(i) Currency risk (Continued)

The net amount of the USD denominated monetary
assets and monetary liabilities of the group entity
whose functional currency being SGD is not material.
In management’s opinion, the financial impact on
exchange difference between SGD and USD will be
immaterial, and therefore no sensitivity analysis has been

prepared.

The Group currently does not have a foreign currency
hedging policy to eliminate the currency exposures.
However, the management monitors the related foreign
currency exposure closely and will consider hedging
significant foreign currency exposures should the need

arise.

(ii)  Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk management

The Group’s primary cash flow interest rate risk relates
to its perpetual bond and contingent convertible notes
which are classified as financial assets at FVTPL, debt
instruments at FVTOCI, other receivables, bank deposits
with original maturity of more than three months, bank
balances and secured bank borrowings. The interest
rates and terms of repayment of the secured bank
borrowings of the Group are disclosed in note 25. The
Group is also exposed to fair value interest rate risk in
relation to fixed-rate loans receivable and convertible
notes. The Group has not used any derivative contracts
to hedge its exposure to such interest rate risk, however,
the management monitors interest rate exposure and will
consider other necessary action when significant interest

rate exposure is anticipated.

The Group’s exposure to interest rate risk on financial
liabilities is detailed in the liquidity risk management
section of this note. The Group’s cash flow interest rate
risk is mainly concentrated on the fluctuation of HIBOR

arising from secured bank borrowings.

32.

I A (&)

b.

B ERER R FERBE (E)

5 ERE (A,
) EEmEE)

(i)

WERE R INE TR
BEERZUAXTIIEZE
KEEREBABZIFR
UTEKR- EEERE
g T E R T IE K2R
HEBRELTEKN B
it AR ISR DT o

7 45 50 50 4 1 5
B LM EEAR - A
- EREeERERE
M2 sME RS RS E B
AREEREANEAR
AT o

FIEmE
ES

AEBEz T EZNERRYS
RXAEHZRDERERRA
FEFABGHNERERE
MEATRERE - 2R
SFAEET A H 2 H as H
BT A Hb UK
B BRE=EAZHZR
TER ROTEHRRER
RRITER - AKEER
RIRITEEZMEREE
HRE R E25 HEE - K
& B TR A R B E BB IR
ERRARERE 2 A
BENERER - NREEILR
BEBETAITES DAY
RN ERR - A B
B R AR RS
BERMEEARMNEER
BB T ERERE AL AR 1T
) o

FEERSBAEF X
RBRERAHEZREE
CRBER &AL -
AEBZBRSRENER
LERRABRFERRT
EEZEBRITAEFR
E

EMINENCE ENTERPRISE LIMITED | Annual Report 2019



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e VI RAR M R

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z 201943 A31 HILFE

32. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

b.

Financial risk management objectives and policies b.

(Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

(if)

Interest rate risk (Continued)

32. EMIAE)

Mg ERER R EREE (F)

5 /EEE ()

(i)

Total interest revenue/income from financial assets that

are measured at amortised cost is as follows:

Interest revenue

Financial assets at amortised cost
Other income

Financial assets at amortised cost

Total interest income

Interest revenue

Loans and receivables

Other income

Loans and receivables (including bank
balances and cash)

Total interest income

Interest rate sensitivity

gl

H

gl

Gl
=
H
&

gl

BREE
EHERATTEZ S MEE
U A
REERATEZERMERE

SRR

B

RN R IR

HIA

RN R IR
(BRERITESREED)

BN

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined
based on the exposure to interest rates for non-
derivative instruments as referred to above at the end
of the reporting period and the stipulated change taking
place at the beginning of the financial year and held
constant throughout the reporting period. A 50 basis
points (2018: 50 basis points) increase or decrease is
used when reporting interest rate risk internally to key
management personnel and represents management’s
assessment of the reasonably possible change in

interest rates.

FIEmb ()
HEHERATEZSRE
EZ A B WA B
(I

2019
HK$’000
T

19,601

1,686

21,287

2018
HK$'000
TET

16,593

2,367

18,960

FRGRE

LA SR FE 55 AT R AR B
VA b B i 7 ¥R 5 BRI R 3k 3F
PTHETAZFIR R K
FEMREZHTERER
RESHEBGFTIEMmE
TE o 5OfEEAEZH (20184 :
SO{E YR, ) #E sk =
ArmEEEEAE RN
ERF @R AR ERE
B ERR AT SRS
E}j °

EFRATE

| 2019 %
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32. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

b. Financial risk management objectives and policies

(Continued)
Market risk (Continued)

(i)  Interest rate risk (Continued)
Interest rate sensitivity (Continued)

If interest rates had been 50 basis points (2018: 50 basis
points) higher or lower for its variable rate borrowings
and all other variables were held constant, the Group’s
post-tax profit for the year ended 31 March 2019
would decrease/increase by HK$4,489,000 (2018:

HK$4,562,000).

If interest rates had been 50 basis points higher or lower
for its listed debt investments at FVTPL and all other
variables were held constant, the Group’s post-tax profit
for the year ended 31 March 2019 would decrease/
increase by HK$83,000 (2018: no change in post-tax

profit).

If interest rates had been 50 basis points higher or lower
for its debt instruments at FVTOCI and all other variables
were held constant, the Group’s investment revaluation
reserve for the year ended 31 March 2019 would
decrease/increase by HK$66,000 (2018: no change in

other comprehensive income).

The bank balances, bank deposits with original maturity
of more than three months and other receivables
are excluded from the sensitivity analyses as the
management of the Group considers that the interest

rate fluctuation is not significant.

In- management’s opinion, the sensitivity analyses are
unrepresentative of the inherent interest rate risk as the
year end exposure does not reflect the exposure during

the year.

32.

I A (&)

b.

B ERER R FERBE (E)

FAEER (F)
(i) FIEmE )

PRGRE (&)

WEZEEEZMESN
R K FA 50 1 £ % 25 (2018
FB0EEEZ)MATAE
HEMARGEFIE K&
B % & £20194 3 A 31
BlEFE 2 REEF &R
A /1% 14,489,000 TT
(20184 : 4,562,000
TT) e

M EZRAFEFABRZ
EFTEBREZFMESR
3 1K 7 50 8 £ % 2 M A
EHEMAEZHZTE

£ B R E £22019%3 A
31 BIEFEZBBEFE
B/ H#N83,000% JT
(2018 4F : i 14 i ) W %

HER AT EFARME
mkEZz BT A ZFXR
B BE R 50 {H £ 2 25
FEEMmEEgERTE -
AEBREZ2019F3 A
SIBLFEEZIRESHE
B R L1 166,000 7
JL(20184F « Hih 2 E UK
A EEBE) o

RITHER  BB=EH2
B ROTFEFAREMER
BETEREEHREREST
NEAREBEEEER BT
RZRBITERK -

EEERE  ZREED
7 3 B R B FE T
b - AEERRTEE
BRERER -
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32. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 32. LRITA(H)
b. Financial risk management objectives and policies b. HXKREKREREBZRECEK (E)

(Continued)

Market risk (Continued) TSRk (4E)
(iii)  Equity price risk (i) BRI EREEE

The Group is exposed to equity price risk through its
investments in listed equity securities. The management
manages this exposure by maintaining a portfolio of
investments with different risks. The Group’s equity price
risk is mainly concentrated on equity instruments and
listed debt investments quoted in the Stock Exchange
of issuers operating in property investment and
development, telecommunications, aviation, consumer
business and banking and finance industry sector. In
addition, the Group has appointed a special team to
monitor the price risk and will consider hedging the risk
exposure should the need arise.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined
based on the exposure to equity price risk at the
reporting date.

Year ended 31 March 2019

If the prices of the listed equity securities has been
5% higher/lower, post-tax profit for the year ended 31
March 2019 would increase/decrease by HK$2,352,000
as a result of the changes in fair value of listed equity
securities.

If the prices of the listed debt investments at FVTPL
has been 5% higher/lower, post-tax profit for the year
ended 31 March 2019 would increase/decrease by
HK$833,000 as a result of the changes in fair value of
listed debt investments at FVTPL.

If the prices of the debt instruments at FVTOCI has been
5% higher/lower, investment revaluation reserve for the
year ended 31 March 2019 would increase/decrease by
HK$662,000 as a result of the changes in fair value of
debt instruments at FVTOCI.

BERRERLETERAR
5 REBARBRABRE
Rk EEEEREET
FERZREBS AER
ZER - AREZ RAE
REREERRRBRZA
BEZRATAR ETE
BIRE  BBEITARED
ERBENER B M
EHBEEBRRITR
SRITE - WI AKE
B — 45 Rl BB A Ba iz
ERERNEEBESE
iEFapEAC

FRED

AT SURE DT —RER
WE R MAR Z RAE
REREE

HZE201963 31 HILF
IS

HEMBABHERS L
Tt/ TF5% @ REZE2019
E3ABNBIEFEEZHE
EAAGHE R AE S
AT EEBHTWE M, KD
2,352,000 7T ©

WA FEFAERZ L
MESEEERLEA T
[%£5% ' IREZE2019F 3 A
1AL FEZHEZFE
RiEAFEFABZRZ b
MEEREZAFEES
i 3 hn /8 4> 833,000/%5
.

iMIE A EFTAEMEE
Wz ER T ABR L
F,/ T 5% « REE2019
FEIABIAIFEZIRESE
HFEEREAFEFA
HtemEkszEBEIA
ZRFEES MG,
662,000 7T °
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32. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

b.

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

(iii)

Equity price risk (Continued)
Year ended 31 March 2018

If the prices of the listed equity securities had been 5%
higher/lower, post-tax profit for the year ended 31 March
2018 would increase/decrease by HK$143,000 as a
result of the changes in fair value of financial assets at
FVTPL.

If the prices of the listed equity securities classified as
available-for-sale investments had been 10% higher:

o investment revaluation reserve would increase by
HK$20,721,000 as a result of the increase in fair
value of available-for-sale investments; and

If the prices of the listed equity securities classified as
available-for-sale investments had been 10% lower:

o post-tax profit would decrease by HK$250,000
and investment revaluation reserve would
decrease by HK$20,471,000 as a result of
the decrease in fair value of available-for-sale
investments.

I A (&)

B ERER R FERBE (E)

5 E R ()
(i)  RAEE @R (E)

HZE2018F3 A31 HILF
I3

W ETRARESZ B
T/ 5% A FE
SFABHzeRMEBEZE
)% B EE, £ 20184 3 A
318 1k FE 1% % F
hn/ @i 143,000 7 7T

WP ETHEERE 2
FARAESBR LI
10% :

o REABMRFEFEMER M
HE R E 2 A FHEE AN
il #& 120,721,000
JG °

WHEAHRBEREZ
EHRAESERT K
10% :

o BREA ARG
EREZATFERD
i J& 4> 250,000 % 7T &
%A 5 R 1 R
20,471,000/87T °
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32. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

b.

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment

As at 31 March 2019 and 31 March 2018, the Group’s
maximum exposure to credit risk which will cause a financial
loss to the Group due to failure to discharge an obligation by
the counterparties is arising from the carrying amount of the
respective recognised financial assets except for listed equity
securities as detailed in note 21. The Group does not hold any
collateral or other credit enhancements to cover its credit risk
associated with its financial assets, except that the credit risks
associated with loans receivable is mitigated because they
are secured over guaranteed money, marketable securities or
properties.

The Group’s internal credit risk grading assessment for loans
receivable comprises the following categories:

32. EWMTAGAE

b. HMEEKREEBZRECR (&)

15 B R el (B 1
M20194E3 A31 B KX 201843 A
318 AREFfMEBREEF KR
FEEITEAMERYKIBRN R
AEERBKESHEERS#
BEMRAE - HEHE21 FTeEs
ETRRAEEBRIN o AL E A
BAEMEFREMEEEGR
B LWEESESHEEMRBE
BER  EEKEFEBEER
R - RABKS RMRE
& ETESFSEIER -

FEBERKERZ A EERR
ARBIEATEER

Financial assets

Internal other than trade
credit rating Description Trade receivables receivables
LREE
REEE TR ] B 5 RBWFIE (TBEESRKRHE)
Low risk The counterparty has a low risk of default and Lifetime ECL - not 12m ECL
does not have any past-due amounts credit-impaired
yENE RGEFHENRBRE B S E AR R BEBHNEHEES 12@ARHEERR
B-UEEEEERE
Medium risk Debtor frequently repays after due date Lifetime ECL - not 12m ECL
credit-impaired
o B BEBALERIEERER EEBHNEREES 12@AENREEES
B-UEEEEERE
High risk There have been significant increases in credit  Lifetime ECL - not Lifetime ECL - not
risk since initial recognition through information credit-impaired credit-impaired
developed internally or external resources
= AR FRABVROEHINBRECEERREER BEAFNESRCES BAEAHNEHEES
AR B A R AN B-UEZFLECERE B-IEZLEEERE
Loss There is evidence indicating the asset is credit- Lifetime ECL - credit- Lifetime ECL - credit-
impaired impaired impaired
18 REBRTEELREERNE EEEBRNEDEES BEAENNEREER
B-BEBLEEERE B-EREEERE
Write-off There is evidence indicating that the debtor is in  Amount is written off Amount is written off
severe financial difficulty and the Group has no
realistic prospect of recovery
A EREBRBEREBARABRENBRE AEET SEMH SR

K] REHR I AE B R
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32. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

32. EWMTA A

b. Financial risk management objectives and policies b. HMEEREEEZERBEER (E)
(Continued)
Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued) S EEfe R B (&)
The table below details the credit risk exposures of the Group’s TR AEB LB EERETE
financial assets, which are subject to ECL assessment: HEEERTHNEERRSE
1% :
Gross
External Internal 12m or carrying
2019 Notes credit rating credit rating lifetime ECL amount
128 A=k
E{EBEEBN
2019 F Bz MREEFTHR ABEETR FEHEESE HERTEE
HK$’000
FAT
Debt instruments at FVTOCI
RATFEFAHMEZEARR2EKTA
Investments in listed bonds 18 CC to AA (i) 12m ECL 15,280
EWEHEZRE 12 {8 ATEEE
BEE
Financial assets at amortised cost
RBHEAARTIRSRERE
Loans receivable 16 N/A Low risk 12m ECL 345,202
FEW &R TiE A {ivEN 128 AFEH(E
=44t
Trade and other receivables 20 N/A (i) 12m ECL 8,797
B 5 R E M EYGRIE TERA 12 B ATEHA(E
BEE
Bank balances and cash 22 A1l to Prime-1 N/A 12m ECL 141,582
RITHEBRERS TiEMA 12 @ ATEHAE
=44t
Bank deposits with original maturity 22 Prime-1 N/A 12m ECL 12,763
of more than three months
BB =18 A B2 IRITIF K NERA 12{@ATEHE
BEE
Notes: P3E -
(i) For the purpose of internal credit impairment, the Group considers 0] RALEERETS AEEZE

if there is any past due record or other relevant information available
without undue cost or effort to assess whether credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition.

(ii) For the purpose of internal credit impairment, the Group estimates
with reference to external credit rating adjusted by a premium on
probability of default rate and forward-looking information that is
available without undue cost or effort.

BRAEEMARLENBRAY
ERAEBNABZEMARE
KaTE B R R R EERRE
BEEEEM -

(i RABEERENS @ 2Z50 0
EEFRUBBORERBEAL
ERALB N AR ZATEIEER
AR - AEEER R -
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32. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

b.

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

Loans receivable

The Group has concentration of credit risk in relation to loans
receivable, amounting to HK$336,010,000 at 31 March 2019
(2018: HK$265,297,000), from a few borrowers with 56%
(2018: 57%) of the balance secured by guaranteed money,
marketable securities or properties. The largest borrower of
the Group by itself accounted for approximately 15% (2018:
21%) of the Group’s loans receivable at 31 March 2019. The
Group seeks to maintain strict control over its outstanding
loans receivable to minimise credit risk. The management has
a credit policy in place and the exposures to the credit risk
are monitored on an ongoing basis. Impairment allowances on
outstanding loans receivable are determined by an evaluation
of financial background, financial condition and historical
settlement records, including past due rates and default rates,
of the borrowers at the end of each reporting period. The
borrowers are assigned different grading under internal credit
ratings to calculate the ECL, taking into consideration of the
estimates of expected cash shortfalls which are driven by
estimates of possibility of default and the amount and timing of
cash flows that are expected from foreclosure on the collaterals
(if any) less the costs of obtaining and selling the collaterals.
During the year ended 31 March 2019, allowance for loans
receivable amounting to HK$2,808,000 was recognised in
profit or loss. At 31 March 2019, allowance for loans receivable
amounted to HK$9,192,000.

Trade and other receivables

No allowance for impairment was made since the directors
of the Company consider that the probability of default or the
maximum exposure is minimal.

Bank deposits and bank balances

No allowance for impairment was made since the directors
of the Company consider that the probability of default is
negligible as such amounts are receivable from or placed in
banks with good reputation.

ERT A (&)

Mg ERER R EREE (F)

=B R EG ()

TEYE S
AEEBBRREHEEBRA
MR2019%43A31H 2 & ¥ A
336,010,000 7T (20184 :
265,297,000 70) 2 FEIWE R Z
EHREERK - EF56% (2018
F:657%) CBREAERESR . £
MHEHFKYEERIEE - KEEH
ZRAERANE KGR EER
MR2019E3 A3 B 2 EW E
#915% (20184 : 21%) AN %
B sk HE R EERKRERE
BRI Mhﬁﬁ%ﬂﬁoa
B EHEEERR LI EETE
ERE - BBRFEHEERARSR
SR E SR MR R
BEERGHE  BiEaHARE
NE . BEAEBERBKRERZE
B - R@mAﬁﬁW%%E
TRESETRRBRERAGTE
JEHEEEIE - 3 M%ﬁﬁ%ﬁ
SR A DIREBEFTHELN
ZATREIE R BRI R E 2 IR
SR ERELER (E) RERR
BREHEEERZAR - REZR
20193 A31 HILFA - EKE
%&%1%2 808,000/ 7T B R 1B 25 g
o 20193 A31 B » Bl E
mmﬁgjgzooo%n o

EZREMBERTE
WRBEHREREREARFE
RBEOBERREAR ISR -

RITIFARIRTTAS 6
WEBELREREBEARNARE
ERBENMEMTREARZ
ESEDNEMERTHRREEE
ZIRTT o
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32. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 32.

b. Financial risk management objectives and policies b.

(Continued)
Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)
Debt instruments at FVTOCI

The Group assesses the credit risk of investments in debt
securities at the reporting date. The Group’s debt instruments
at FVTOCI mainly comprise listed bonds that are graded by
credit-rating agencies as per globally understood definitions
and some bonds without external credit rating are assessed
by internal credit ratings. During the year ended 31 March
2019, expected credit losses on debt instruments at FVTOCI
amounting to HK$181,000 was recognised in the profit or
loss. At 31 March 2019, the impairment allowances for debt
instruments at FVTOCI amounted to HK$181,000.

At 1 April 2018
Impairment allowance recognised for new financial
assets purchased

»2018%F 4811
B

At 31 March 2019 7201943 A31H

Liquidity risk

In the management of liquidity risk, the Group monitors
and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed
adequate by the management to finance the Group’s
operations. The management monitors the utilisation of
borrowings and ensures compliance with loan covenants.

As at 31 March 2019, the Group has available unutilised bank
loan facilities of HK$233,055,000 (2018: HK$328,766,000).

The following table details the Group’s remaining contractual
maturity for its financial liabilities. The table has been drawn
up based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities
based on the earliest date on which the Group can be required
to pay. The table includes both interest and principal cash
flows.

I A (&)

B ERER R FERBE (E)

EE R B E S ()

BN FEGAEME N2 E
BTA

NEBRRE BT H BB
KEZEERKE - AEEIEATF
Bt AR E2EREZEEIA
FEREREETARERES
HARERFHZ EHEFRIT
EONSME R R 2B EHERA
HEEFIETTGE RER
20193 A31BILFER - &
AFEFAEMEEKE 2 ES
T A8 B{= B 518 181,000 7T
B8R - R20194 3 A 31
B BAFESFAEMBEEKE
2 (&% T EFE & 181,000 %

I °©

12m ECL
1218 A
FEER
HK$’000
FTAT

MATEEENH S BE ERER

181

181

REET/EE
BRBESEREEmS - A%
B ELiE R AR E IR AR R R HK
FzHReRERREIAEAEER
ZREME - EREEEEEL
A FERE B TERIFRK

M2019%3A31H - A&EH
EXAHHEABTEREE A
233,055,000/8 L (2018 4F :
328,766,000 7T) °

TRFNFEHzERMEBEZR
BRAMNIMER - IhRTIRAE
BARERLNRZERIHAZ
ERABERNARSREIR -
RANBENERAZHELRE -
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32. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 32. &€@mMIEA(E)
b. Financial risk management objectives and policies b. HERREEBEREE(E)

(Continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued) FEE LR (1)
Liquidity table THEELF
More than
3 months but Total
Effective Less than less than Over  undiscounted Carrying
interest rate 3 months 1 year 1-2 years 2-5 years Syears  cashflows amount
#B3ER KBRS
ERAE  OMER  EORME 128 25§ BE5E ittt RER

% HK§ 000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS 000 HK$'000 HKS 000 HK$'000
TEn Thr TERL Thn TERL Thn TEn

2019 0195
Non-derivative financial HTEeRERE
liabilties
Trade and other payables ~ EHRAMER

7B - 45,5 - - - - 45,52 45,52
Convertible notes TEREE 2591 116,678 - - - - 116,678 62,086
Secured bark borrowings  AEAH{IER 312 342,053 37,39 58,337 654,502 64039 115727 1075229

505,152 37,396 58,337 654,502 64,039 1,319,426 1,183,736

2018 N18E
Non-derivative financial HiteRaR
liabilties
Trade and other payables B RAMER

A - 24,768 16,075 - - - 40,843 40,843
Convertible notes TERZE 23.46 116,678 20,400 - - - 137,078 69,656
Secured bark borrowings  AEAF(IER 218 41,821 17,248 601,598 2,09 68,159 1131124 1092660

563,267 53,723 601,698 2,08 68,159 1,309,045 1,203,159
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32. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 32. 2RIT A (&)
c. Fair value c. AFE
(i)  Fair value of the Group’s financial assets that are () AEERELEMEEER
measured at fair value on a recurring basis REEFTEZEHEES
S
Some of the Group’s financial assets are measured at WOAEBZERHEER
fair value at the end of the reporting period. The following HEBHREAFESE -
table gives information about how the fair values of T2 [t 75 B a0 e 7 E 2%
these financial assets are determined (in particular, the EoRMEEATE(LER
valuation techniques and key inputs used). BT A 2 i (B i R 88 A2
&) o

Fair value Valuation techniques and
Fair value at 31 March hierarchy key inputs

Financial assets M3ABNBZAFE AFERR [ERERTREAZSE
SRIEE 2019 2018
HK$'000  HK$'000
FHET FHET
Available-for-sale investments - 207,213  Level 1 Quoted bid prices in an active
market
A ERE F11R FE RIS PRz i E

Debt instruments at FVTOCI
BRAFEFAHMEE KGR 2 &K

TR
Listed debt securities 15,857 - Leveld Quoted bid prices in an active
market
TRETSES R REMSHRe HE
Financial assets at FVTPL
RAFESAEBRZERMERE
— Listed equity securities 56,338 3,436  Level 1 Quoted bid prices in an active
market
EARANEE 3 ER N W& RIS ke BB
— Perpetual bond 4,012 = Level 1 Quoted bid prices in an active
market
KAEFH ER PRRMISH AR HE
— Contingent convertible notes 15,940 - Leveld Quoted bid prices in an active
market
RA AR T F FAR ERTISF ke HE
— Principal protected deposits 25,800 35,618 Level 3 Discounted cash flows-future

cash flows are estimated
based on exchange rate
of USD against HKD and
expected yields of the

instruments
RAETFR £33 FHRBEERE-RARRERE
DEETHABTZHBER
T A 7Bt ERIEL A5
— Convertible note 9,891 - Level 3 Binomial Option Pricing Model
AR E IR XTI ZIEA B TEEED
— Investment fund 10,245 - Level 3 Discounted cash flows-future
cash flows are estimated
REES FEIH WHRRSRE -HARAKRELR
SHEITHE

174 EMINENCE ENTERPRISE LIMITED | Annual Report 2019




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e VI RAR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z 201943 A31 HILFE

32. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 32. &@MIE(E)
c.  Fair value (Continued) c. DAVEGE
(i)  Fair value of the Group’s financial assets that are () AEERELEMEEER
measured at fair value on a recurring basis R FEGTFEZLHEEZ
ARSI
There were no transfers between Levels 1, 2 and 3 in FAR - FoRREIR
both years. 2 B MEF S -
Upon initial application of HKFRS 9 during the current RAFEBXERESY
year, available-for-sale investments were reclassified to R ELEAEIFRE - 7]
financial assets at FVTPL, details of which are set out in HEEREEFTHDERR
note 2.2. AREEFAERZzERE
B HiHEERME22 -
(i)  Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurements (i) FE3RAFETENE R
2019
Principal
protected Convertible Investment
deposits note fund Total
RAFR  AHEREE REES® Fok)

HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TET THET TET TET

At the beginning of the year 1A & 4] 35,618 - - 35,618
Purchases BE 165,290 10,000 10,391 175,681
Interest received BFIE (1,010) (76) (257) (1,343)
Unrealised fair value RIBERAERZ R

(loss) gain recognised ERANFEE

in profit or loss (E518) Wz = (33) 61 28
Settlements “HE (161,716) - = (161,716)
Exchange realignment PE 5 A% (2,382) - 50 (2,332)
At the end of the year REXR 25,800 9,891 10,245 45,936
Of the total fair value gains or losses for the year included ERFEFABEHNATF
in profit or loss, HK$28,000 relates to financial assets at Bl EEEES -
FVTPL held at 31 March 2019. 28,0007 JT B2 7 20194 3

A31 BREAMNRAFER
AEERMEREEFR °
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32. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

cH Fair value (Continued)

(i)  Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurements

(Continued)

At the beginning of the year REH]
Purchases =
Interest received 24 FILE
Settlements “®
Exchange realignment T 54 R B
At the end of the year RER

(iii)

Fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities
that are not measured at fair value on a recurring
basis

Except for the convertible notes issued, the directors
of the Company consider that the carrying amounts
of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded at
amortised cost in the consolidated financial statements
approximate to their fair values.

At 31 March 2019, fair value of liability component of
the convertible notes issued by the Company, which is
recognised at amortised cost of HK$62,986,000 (note
24), was HK$94,786,000.

32.

I A (&)

c. AYE(58)

(i)

(iii)

hi

FEIR R FlE B LR
(#)

2018
Principal
protected
deposits
RAFR
HK$’000
FET

53,980
64,519
(849)
(85,759)
3,727

35,618

RERBEEMERERZR L
FEEZEHEERE
FAEEZ N FE

BREBRTHARERRER
Sh RRAREERR - N
iR M B RRIREHAA
JIRMEREERSREA
ERRAEEREEL A FER

e

;Eo

MR2019F3A31H AR
RIBITH I RBRZEMNE
&SN BN B (G 856K
AR 62,986,000 7T (Hf
524)) 594,786,000/ 7T °
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33. ACQUISITION OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES THROUGH 33.
ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

ERWBEHNBARARBEERAE

MR2018F4 8308 & & E
R—ZBIE=FUNRELKE
295,000,000 7 7T 52 Ak 4 B8 —
Bf{B8A & Empire Sail Limited
100% = EREER - RRE
KR A GFEF 2 R4 88 - Empire
Sail Limited X EM—FHE AR Z

(a)  On 30 April 2018, the Group completed the acquisition of (@)
100% equity interest in a subsidiary, Empire Sail Limited, and
shareholder loan from an independent third party for a cash
consideration of HK$295,000,000. The shareholder loan
was eliminated in full on consolidation. The principal assets
of Empire Sail Limited and its sole subsidiary are investment
properties. The assets acquired and liabilities assumed were as

follows: Igﬁéﬁﬁ?&ﬁ%% °© J‘I&Eﬁé?’{
RamEAEDT
30 April 2018
2018% 4 530 H
HK$’000
FHExT
Investment properties LAY 295,000
Net assets assumed BERERE 295,000
Net cash outflow on acquisition: I B 2 IR &R HFE8
Consideration paid during the year FRZARE (265,500)
Deposits paid for acquisition of investment B EMELESTNNEE
properties brought forward (29,500)
(295,000)

Subsequently, the Company proposed to dispose of the
above investment properties by tender at a minimum price of
HK$310 million (see note 15). Details of this are set out in the
Company’s announcement dated 4 October 2018 and circular
dated 20 November 2018.

At the date of issuance of the consolidated financial
statements, the tender process for seeking potential buyers is
in progress.

B ARAREZEBBEUE
8310,000,000% 7t i & Ll 1%
B (RMzE15) - SMER
HYIAARAR HEA2018510 A
ABZAERHEA2018F11 A
202K -

REERMBHRTIEANS Ve
BB T EVHRIRIEF IEAEETTH -
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33. ACQUISITION OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES THROUGH 33.
ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

(b)  On 8 March 2019, the Group completed the acquisition of
100% equity interest in a subsidiary, Wellmake Investments
Limited, and shareholder loan from Easyknit International for a
cash consideration of HK$318,130,000. The principal assets of
the subsidiary are investment properties. The assets acquired

and liabilities assumed were as follows:

Property, plant and equipment
Investment properties

Trade and other receivables

Tax recoverable

Bank balances

Other payables

Amount due to Easyknit International
Secured bank borrowings

Net assets assumed

Net cash outflow on acquisition:
Consideration paid
Bank balances acquired

Deemed cash outflow on acquisition
(see note 30(h))

mE - BERRE
BREWE

B 5 NEMmEUGRIA
QL EE
RITHER
HA0 R HIR

FEf ok & BIR F0R
BHEMBITER

BEAWEFE

Wi 2 B2 HDF AR

BERRE
PR RBIRTT A 84

Wi 2 BAER &R
(R.MFE30(h))

ZBYWEHBLARANBEERARE
(%)

(b) 201943 H8H & REBMKE
B B LA 3R & X {8 318,130,000 /8
TC 5E Ak U BE — R B A Rl 4E 2%
EABR AR Z100% M IRE
BR - ZMWBRAIZEEEEA
WEME - WBEER B BEAE
s

8 March 2019
201943 A 8H
HK$’000
FHAT

167
471,486
2,378
288

176
(4,495)
(4,232)
(151,870)

313,898

(318,130)
176

(317,954)
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DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY 34. HE—RMHEBLR
On 8 March 2019, the Group completed the disposal of its entire M2019F3 A8H + A& B T K A 5k
100% equity interest in a subsidiary, which was principally engaged EEREEHMBAR (ZEHREME
in property development, to Easyknit International for a cash ER)22EH100%Ez= - BE2REA
consideration of HK$586,142,000. The net assets of the subsidiary at 586,142,000 7t - ZMIBARIREE
the date of disposal were as follows: REAZBEFENT :
8 March 2019
2019% 3 H8H
HK$’000
FHET
Property, plant and equipment Yz - B KEE 667
Properties held for development for sale BIEERME 1,001,386
Other receivables H b JE WK IE 329
Bank balances and cash RITHEBRIA S 102
Trade and other payables B 5 & E A FE A RIE (10,623)
Secured bank borrowings BHEBRITEE (448,858)
Net assets disposed of L EEEFE 543,003
Net gain on disposal: HE 2 W S8
Net assets disposed of &2 FEE (5643,003)
Cash consideration ReRE 586,142
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE B ARz Wk 43,139
Net cash inflow arising on disposal: HEMEAZRESRAFE
Cash consideration BeRE 586,142
Bank balances and cash disposed of P ERITEBR KA (102)
Deemed cash inflow on disposal (see note 30(h)) HEZRIERERA (RHTEE30()) 586,040
PLEDGE OF ASSETS 35. EBEEA
At the end of the reporting period, the following assets of the Group RIPEHR  KEEEBTHEE TR
were pledged to banks to secure credit facilities granted to the TERBRILFTARE 2 EERE -
Group:
2019 2018
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
Investment properties REE 776,431 986,740
Properties held for development for sale  #{EH &R E 1,730,263 1,634,964
2,506,694 2,621,704
In addition, rentals in respect of the above investment properties and AN - Bl E YRS M ElFED
future sale proceeds and rentals in respect of the above properties EREBYMEBRZEEMSRELRES
held for development for sale were also pledged to these banks. IR T ERIT ©
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36.

OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS

The Group as lessee

FRREBRTER
ZRERSRRK

Minimum lease payments recognised
in profit or loss during the year

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had commitments for
future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating
leases which fall due as follows:

Within one year —FA
In the second to fifth year inclusive E_EFEERF(REEERE)

The table above includes commitments for future minimum lease
payments under non-cancellable operating leases payable to a
subsidiary of Easyknit International which fall due as follows:

Within one year —FR
In the second to fifth year inclusive FE_FEERF(BREEEMRT)

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the Group for
certain of its office premises. Leases are negotiated for a term of one
year to three years (2018: one year to three years).

Under the leases entered into by the Group, the lease payments are
fixed and no arrangements have been entered into for contingent
rental payments.

The Group as lessor

Property rental income earned during FARBZYERS
the year A

Less: Outgoings o X H

HeW A F5E

Net rental income

KERNZHE
REBEREEA
2019 2018
HK$°000 HK$’000
FHET FHT
2,550 2,543

RBERR - REERATFHI R
TAHHEEERY 2 RRREBRS AR
AR

2019 2018
HK$’000 HK$’000
TR TET
2,496 2,550
1,040 3,687
3,536 6,137

ERBEATEHIHR 2 TR LS
BHZ RRRERE MR T RBERZ

—RIMBRRZARER -
2019 2018
HK$’000 HK$’000
TiEx FAT
2,496 2,496
1,040 3,536
3,536 6,032

KERONRIEAEB 2 ETHAEY
¥7EMNES  BHcHEEEA—F
E=F(2018F : —FE=F) -

RIBEAREER L 2BH  HENRE

B 5E R I SR ST S AT A

AEHE

REBEREHEA
2019 2018
HK$’000 HK$’000
FiEx FET
42,627 33,012
(2,624) (2,300)
40,003 30,712
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36.

37.

OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS (Continued) 36. REHNZH (&)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had contracted with RIERR - REERBEPETZA TR

tenants for the following future minimum lease payments: REARFHELIM I

2019 2018
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FHIT

Within one year —F R 55,470 32,466

In the second to fifth year inclusive F_EFNF(BREEMRT) 63,127 62,411

Over five years HBRhT 2,875 9,172

121,472 104,049

Under the leases entered into by the Group, the lease payments are WIEEAREBFIZZ2HY  HONRA

fixed and no arrangements have been entered into for contingent BT M WEIT LS AESNRETHE - 5

rental payments. The properties held have committed tenants for BYEZBANBEP LA —F2

terms of one year to six years (2018: one year to six years). NEF(20184F « —FERF) ©

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 37. EXREIE

2019 2018
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHIT
Capital expenditure contracted for but B ET 4018 & RG-S B 7%
not provided in the consolidated HERFBBEZEARNES
financial statements in respect of Wl
— investment properties (note (a)) — & &M (M (a) 1,684 265,975
— limited partnership interest —ERERRATEDR
(note (o)) (PR7E (b)) 39,000 =
40,684 265,975

Notes: B &

() The amount at 31 March 2018 included HK$265,500,000 for acquisition of (a) R2018F3A31Hz ¢ B BERIES
units and carparking spaces in a commercial building to earn rental and/ BREBHBARNKE—RIEEF
or for capital appreciation through acquisition of subsidiaries. Deposits paid N2 B REMARBRBS R HEE
amounted to HK$29,500,000 at 31 March 2018 which was presented in the #E - R2018FE3ASTHE [ IZE A
consolidated statement of financial position as “deposits paid for acquisition 29,500,000%ﬁ%&?éﬂﬁﬁ%ﬂﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁ]
of investment properties”. Details of this transaction are set out in the BIWBREMEZBMNIZEE ] ZX5
Company’s announcement dated 11 January 2018 and circular dated 15 ZHIEEHYNAAT HH A2018F1 A
March 2018. Completion of this transaction took place on 30 April 2018 (see HAZAMEBHA2018F3 1582
note 33(a)). BEK o ZR HER201854 A30B K °
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37. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS (Continued) 37. EAREE &)

Notes: (Continued) BisE : (48)

(b) The amount at 31 March 2019 represented USD5 million (equivalent to b) Ho01943A31 B £iEiE5EEET
HK$39,000,000) for subscription for limited partnership interest in a limited (#8% 7 39,000,0003%5 7)) B EA AR
partnership (the “Limited Partnership”) as a limited partner. The purpose ABAZEAERABAT((ARAEA
of the Limited Partnership is primarily achieving capital appreciation and AN ERABATIEE  BERABA
participation through investments in equity and equity-related securities in AENMTEARDEANERLET
Asia-Pacific and Europe and portfolio funds with a similar investment focus. AR BN AN B B A AR R B A 188 R IR
The business of the Limited Partnership will be conducted and managed BEYIEOUZ BEIRE - BRABA
by one single general partner (the “General Partner”) who will act as agent FMEBEEH 2L RABA(EES
of the Limited Partnership while the investment committee of the Limited AR TR o LBA B AR
Partnership (comprising individuals who are not connected with the Group) BRABAFRIMREA  MERABA
shall decide and approve all investment and divestment decisions of the AR EE B (R EAEE L &R BN E
Limited Partnership with reference to the investment objective. The limited AER) BIRRIR AR EAERASAT
partners of the Limited Partnership, including the Group, shall take no part in EHEIREFBUE AT - RIEQLBES
the operation of the Limited Partnership on the management or conduct of the BAEZEAS  SAERAEATZE
business and affairs except with the written consent of the General Partner. RABA(DIEAEER) NMERXBEARS
Details of this transaction are set out in the Company’s announcements dated BAFEANEESERER R EES &
27 March 2019 and 10 May 2019. At the date of issuance of the consolidated o x5 EEEH AR AT H E5 2019
financial statements, the Group’s subscription for limited partnership interest #3827 AR 201945 A 10 AR -
in the Limited Partnership has not been completed (see note 40(a)). R A BRHRETFIE B E - AN E 26

ERER AR ZERABARER A
sk (RHIEE40@)) °
38. RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES 36. RIKERIGHE

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory Provident Fund
retirement benefits scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under the Hong
Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance. Under the MPF
Scheme, the employees are required to contribute 5% of their monthly
salaries or up to a maximum of HK$1,500 and they can choose to
make additional contributions. The employer’s monthly contributions
are calculated at 5% of the employee’s monthly salaries or up to a
maximum of HK$1,500 (the “mandatory contributions”). The employees
are entitled to 100% of the employer’s mandatory contributions upon
their retirement at the age of 65, death or total incapacity.

Employees of the subsidiaries in the PRC are members of the state-
sponsored pension scheme operated by the PRC government. The
subsidiaries are required to contribute a certain percentage of their
payroll to the pension scheme to fund the benefits. The only obligation
of the Group with respect to the pension scheme is to make the
required contributions.

There were no forfeited contributions utilised to offset employers’
contributions for the year. The employers’ contributions which have

AEEBRBEEB RGBS ENE
Bl - ZERTE MR MEAESRIKE
FIEEI([RESETE]) - RoaTESat 2l
T BEERES AFSHEN5% k&
% /31,5007 - BB WAL R
IMER - BEBAEFAREBZSA
FERTEHARE% KR Z A1,5008 7T
([eaBIEETR]) o B B 65 BRBRIKEE -
T REREBRITRENN  JZHE
FoRFIMEHEFZ 100% ©

KRB 8 R B2 1 8 A BB AT R
T ZBERERASFEIKE - HEA
AAEHE T O L AR Bl
R AEBEZBEERRBRSHENE
HPTALTE 2 3K o

AREEIE A LKA AIEEHEE
k- EREREBa kA MEERER

been dealt with in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and TR 2 BEMKAT
other comprehensive income were as follows:
2019 2018
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Employers’ contributions recognised RIBFRAFPRERZ
in profit or loss BEHRK 368 318

At the end of the reporting period, there were no forfeited
contributions available to reduce the contributions payable in the
future years.

M|EHR - LB LUK AT AR
EARRFEZ AP -

EMINENCE ENTERPRISE LIMITED | Annual Report 2019



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR EE

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z 201943 A31 HILFE

39.

PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at 31 March 2019
and 31 March 2018 are as follows:

Name of subsidiary

MEAREH

Directly hela:

ERfE

Fanju Investments Limited

REZBBRAT

Glory Link Investment Limited

AREERRAT

Indlirectly held’:
FERE

Capital Well (H.K.) Limited
EM(EE)BRAR

Chancemore Limited

City China International Limited
HRERERAR

Clever Wise Holdings Limited
BRERERAT

Daily Leader Limited
Empire Sail Limited
FERAT

Excellent East Limited
BRERAF

Gainever Corporation Limited

KEBERAH

Giant East Limited
BERERAA

39. XEMBATIZFHE

K201943 A31H K2018F3HA31H »
ARBEEMBRARZFBAT -

Proportion of nominal

Place of Nominal value of value of issued share
incorporation/ issued share capital/ capital/paid-up
establishment and paid-up registered registered capital held
operation capital/stated capital by the Company Principal activities
BRARE/ KARER
MR/ HREMBRE/ BRAREK/HR
RIRELHE ERRAEE aMEAEERA L FEXE
2019 2018
British Virgin Islands Ordinary US$1 100% 100% Investment in securities
(“BVI")/Hong Kong
KERANE,/ % i AR BERE
Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 100% 100% Investment in securities
A ERR1ET BARE
Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 100% 100% Property investment
&k LER1AT NERE
BVI/Hong Kong Ordinary US$1 100% 100% Property investment
ABRAES/ BE LER1ET NERE
Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 100% 100% Loan financing
Tk LER1AT ERRE
BVI/Hong Kong Ordinary US$1 100% 100% Property investment
AERLEE/ B LERIER NERE
BVI/Hong Kong Ordinary US$1 100% 100% Property development
EBRAES/ BE L ihaE NEER
BVI/Hong Kong Ordinary US$100 100% - Property investment
ABRLEE/ B L@R100%T NERE
Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 100% 100% Property investment
£k LRk BT NERE
Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 100% 100%  Investment in securities
k Lamk2 BT ErRE
Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 100% 100% Property investment
£k LaR1 BT NERE
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39. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 39. TEMEBATZFE (FE)
Proportion of nominal
Place of Nominal value of value of issued share
incorporation/ issued share capital/ capital/paid-up
establishment and paid-up registered registered capital held
Name of subsidiary operation capital/stated capital by the Company Principal activities
BRARA/ KARER
RilwYe HRIEMBER/ BRIRA/HR
WEAR SR RIREE I ERRAEE AMBAEERA  FEER
2019 2018
Goldchamp International Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$10,000 100% 100% Property investment
trEERARAR B L@k 10,000 87T NERE
Golden Top Properties Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 100% 100% Property investment
BIEEZERAT B LakoAT NERE
Grow Well Profits Limited BVI/Singapore Ordinary US$1 100% 100% Property investment
and investment in
securities
RERLEE/ K TaR1IET NEREREFRE
Janson Properties Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 100% 100% Property investment
RBEXARAR BB LEk2ET NERE
Main Lucky Enterprises Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 100% 100% Property development
BatEERAR Y TRR1AT NEER
Top Channel Enterprises Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 100% 100% Property investment
BHPEERAR Ek ERRI BT nERE
Total Expect Limited BVI/Hong Kong Ordinary US$1 - 100% Property development
ABRNEE/ B LRI En NEER
Treasure Arts International Group Limited BVI/Hong Kong Ordinary US$1 100% 100% Property development
EHEREEARAA ABRLEE/ B LERIEn NELE
Wealth Plan Development Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 100% 100% Property development
RERERARAG Ek LRk AT NELE
Wellmake Investments Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$9,998 100% - Property investment
(Non-voting deferred
shares HK$27)
BERERRAA h LiBR9,998 T NER
(BRI
2B71)
(Easyknit Enterprises (Huzhou) Co., Ltd.) PRC Registered US$25,544,206 100% 100% Property investment
(‘Enterprises Huzhou")™*
XBEZE(AM)BRRA(TANEZD > & MR 26,644,206 % T NER

*

* BEREARAFAZEBRERELERE
RRBEMBRAEZBE - HERR
ARELRE BEAFFERENED
AR RERE - EREEHRND
ZEE -

The non-voting deferred shares of Wellmake Investments Limited carry no
rights to receive notice of, attend or vote at any general meeting and have very
limited rights to participate in a distribution of profits and, on liquidation, to the
repayment of the amount paid up on the shares.

e AN BEEA—FRPERLZINERE
¥ KEHAS0F - HE2054%6 12 A
148 o

Enterprises Huzhou is a wholly foreign owned enterprise established in the
PRC, to be operated for 50 years up to 14 December 2054.
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39.

40.

PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company, which, in
the opinion of the directors of the Company, principally affected the
results of the year or constituted a substantial portion of the assets of
the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion
of the directors of the Company result in particulars of excessive
length.

At the end of the reporting period, the Company has other
subsidiaries that are not material to the Group. Majority of these
subsidiaries operate in Hong Kong. The principal activities of these
subsidiaries are summarised as follows:

Principal activity Principal place of business

TEXEK TEEXME
Investment holding Hong Kong
REZR B

Inactive Hong Kong
e 3

Inactive PRC

JEIE R a3

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at 31 March
2019 or 31 March 2018.

EVENTS AFTER THE END OF THE REPORTING PERIOD

The following significant events took place subsequent to 31 March
2019:

(@  On 26 March 2019, the Group entered into a subscription
agreement with the General Partner of the Limited Partnership
to subscribe for limited partnership interest in the Limited
Partnership with a commitment of USD5 million (equivalent to
HK$39,000,000) (see note 37(b)). In April 2019, a deposit of
USD100,000 (approximately HK$780,000) was paid.

At the date of issuance of the consolidated financial
statements, the Group’s subscription for the limited
partnership interest in the Limited Partnership has not been
completed and the Group will classify this interest as financial
assets at FVTPL upon completion.

39. FEMBARZFERE (E)
BEARREEZER  ERMAIIRZ
AREMBAR  AEEFEAFEZ
¥ENERAEEEETEIS - BRI
ARBERZZERINHEMMEARZ
HEAEEERBRITE -

RIEHR - NARMAEMEAER
MEYTAREZEZHMBAR - ILEH B
DAIKRIARBEBEE - ILEWB LA
ZEBEBBIEMT ¢
Number of subsidiaries
MEATEE
2019 2018
24 16
8 10
2 2
34 28
2B B ARKR2019F3 A31 H5,2018
F3 A31 BEITEMEBES
40. REHRRBREE

SR EAFHERER 201943431 B2
% -

(@ 20194 3A26H  AEEHH
ERAEBARNEBER AL
—REWE URBERAE
NEINERAEARER  BX
7 % £ %8 /55,000,000 7T (8
& 39,000,000 7T ) ( B K5
37(b)) - 201954 A » Bftizs
100,000 7T (#7780,000/87T) ©

RERMBHRERTIERE A&
ERBAREEARNERER
NEER AR TR B AR R B AR
TR IEER D BRRAT
Bt ABENERMEE -
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40. EVENTS AFTER THE END OF THE REPORTING PERIOD

(Continued)

(b)  On 26 March 2019, the Company entered into the third deed of
amendment with Madian in relation to the proposed alterations
of the conversion price of the 2015 Convertible Note, which
was subsequently terminated and replaced by the fourth deed
of amendment entered into between the Company and Madian

on 8 April 2019.

According to the fourth deed of amendment, it is proposed
that (i) the conversion price of the 2015 Convertible Note be
further revised from HK$0.16 per conversion share to HK$0.06
per conversion share; and (ii) restrictions be imposed on
conversions that would lead to an offer being required under
Rule 26 of the Hong Kong Code on Takeovers and Mergers (the
“Takeovers Code”) and/or the Company breaching the public
float requirement under the Listing Rules. The restrictions will
prevent conversion to the extent that would lead to a breach of
the public float requirements and/or require a mandatory offer

under Rule 26 of the Takeover Code.

Details of the third deed of amendment, which was
subsequently terminated, are set out in the Company’s
announcement dated 27 March 2019. Details of the
fourth deed of amendment are set out in the Company’s
announcement dated 9 April 2019 and circular dated 3 May
2019. A special general meeting of the Company will be held
on 21 May 2019 to approve, among others, the fourth deed of

amendment.

At the date of issuance of the consolidated financial
statements, the conditions precedent of the fourth deed of

amendment have not yet been fulfilled.

40.

BREHARKSE(E)

MN201943 268 © AR & &
Madian gt % £ 5] 2015 G A]
BEE 2 KRBT E=H1{EF]
2 BER AR W AR A A
Madian 220194 4 A 8 HT LAY
FEMIMERT IR -

RIBEETMERT IR - B2 ()
1 2015 F AR IR 2 KR E
BRI 0168 T — &
A EERABEMN0.06ET &
(i) BB G BE B YIS kA
By R (T =PRI D) 55 26 162 1R
BEHRSAARER TR
AT R R R EF I 8 2 255 R
i o BZFR B AT L iR & 5
BUE R AR E 2 Bk, 3
RIBUREE <F RIS 26 ik 2 M EFR H
SEHIAREE o

FDERT R (BRI ) #,
RARRBEA2019F3 A27H
A% - BB REBENFERE
HRARR BB A2019F4 A9
HE A% K2019F5 A3HMRA
K o A RIS 201945 A21 B
BFKRERRIAS « ABbE(HA
BIE) EMREETRIE -

RERMBHRERTIERL - F1
DERT RN Fo R MG 1T R R E
B o
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41. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY NN B 2 B IEAR R TR
2019 2018
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
Non-current assets IEMBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - BE KRG 1,488 2,064
Interests in subsidiaries S EPNG 2,226,218 2,328,706
2,227,706 2,330,770
Current assets MENEE
Other receivables E fth jE W R IE 294 251
Bank balances RITHEEER 121,038 46,714
121,332 46,965
Current liabilities mEAE
Other payables H fth &~ 5008 1,034 1,396
Convertible notes AR R 62,986 69,656
64,020 71,052
Net current assets (liabilities) REBEE(AE)FE 57,312 (24,087)
Total assets less current liabilities BERERREAE 2,285,018 2,306,683
Non-current liabilities ERBEE
Deferred tax liabilities BELEHIEAE 8,264 10,640
2,276,754 2,296,043
Capital and reserves BN R
Share capital [N 29,658 29,658
Reserves (note) e (I sE) 2,247,096 2,266,385
2,276,754 2,296,043
SILEEERAT | 2019 F3f
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41.

42.

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY

(Continued)

Note:

Movements of the Company’s reserves during the current and prior years are as

follows:

At 1 April 2017

Loss and total comprehensive
expense for the year

Issue of new shares

Transaction costs attributable to
issue of new shares

Recognition of equity component of
convertible notes

Deferred tax liability on recognition of
equity component of convertible notes

Transfer upon modification of terms of
convertible note

Deferred tax liability released upon
modification of terms of
convertible note

Recognition upon modification of
terms of convertible note

Deferred tax liability on recognition
of equity component upon
modification of terms of
convertible note

Issue of shares on conversion of
convertible note

Deferred tax liability released upon
conversion of convertible note

Transfer upon cancellation of
share options

At 31 March 2018

Loss and total comprehensive
expense for the year

Transfer upon redemption of
convertible note

Deferred tax liability released upon
redemption of convertible note

Transfer upon cancellation of
share options

At 31 March 2019

RECLASSIFICATION

Certain comparative figures have been restated to conform with the

current year’s presentation.

RW201754R18
AEEBBR
2HEBEREE
RITHR
BATHRID
ZRBEA
WRATRREE .

[ %
BRAAREE B
RAKZEERARRE
ERAHARERER
R
EYRAHRRRRER
BRI EERE
Bf&
FYARIRERIEK
R iR
FYRARRERIES
R iR R AL
ZERERBEE

SUBMTRR R R
Syl
SBMRRR B E
BEEREAR
BURBE e

o5

M2018463A31R

AEEER
REER%2HE

BRI ARRRE
FrEg

BE AR RR R R
ELHEAE

ER R e v ¢

M2019463A31R

41. RDQBZEHEARRE ()
BaE
KA REERFARBEFEZESHNT
Convertible
note Share
Share equity Capital Contributed options  Accumulated
premium reserve reserve surplus reserve losses Total
TRERE
R EE B fHE RAGE BABE BRERE REEE k]
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET TET FET TET FET
2,019,688 21,181 53,194 261,126 2,083 (202,368) 2,154,904
- - - - - (2,090) (2,000)
42,865 - - - - - 42,865
(505) - - - - - (505)
- 27,994 - - - - 27,994
- (4,619) - - - - (4,619)
- (14,304) - - - 14,304 -
- 465 - - - - 465
- 50,992 - - - - 50,992
- (8,414) - - - - (8,414)
14,100 (11,145) - - - - 2,955
- 1,838 - - - - 1,838
- - = - (431) 431 =
2,076,148 63,988 53,194 261,126 1,652 (189,723) 2,266,385
- - - - - (19,466) (19,466)
- (7,519) - - - 7,519 -
- 177 - - - - 177
- > - - (395) 395 o
2,076,148 56,646 53,194 261,126 1,257 (201,275) 2,247,096
42. EHFHHE

ETHUREFOREIIATEAFEZHET ©
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Financial Summary

MBERBE

RESULTS E
Year ended 31 March
BZE=A=1+—HILEE
2015 2016 2017 2018 2019
HK$’'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
T FHT T FHT T
Revenue = 192,489 103,439 36,518 49,605 62,228
Profit (loss) before taxation KRB AT (B18) 35,118 (61,238) (29,592) 54,608 50,910
Taxation 1A (4,032) (8,030) 2,965 (1,069) (400)
Profit (loss) for the year AN R IR R FEAG A
attributable to owners of FEHF (E18)
the Company 31,086 (69,268) (26,627) 53,539 50,510
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEREE
At 31 March
R=BA=+-—H
2015 2016 2017 2018 2019
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’'000 HK$'000 HK$°000
FHT FHT T T T
Total assets BEE 1,919,181 2,574,086 3,407,650 4,011,917 4,034,545
Total liabilities FEN=N (356,536) (249,642) (955,497) (1,296,629) (1,300,375)
Equity attributable to owners 22 FIRR R fE(G
of the Company T 1,562,645 2,324,444 2,452,153 2,715,288 2,734,170
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Summary of Properties

YIE O

At 31 March 2019 % 20194 3 A 31 H

Tai Po
New Territories

A. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES A RBREYE
Approximate
gross floor/
saleable/
Location b:ub’ld Purpose sitearea  Lease-term
BaEm/
Az BR/WEERE HOFES
(sq.ft.)
(EAR)
Ground Floor BERELT Commercial 578  Long
No. 148 Johnston Road Hr3E [EES R
Wanchai 14857 T~
Hong Kong
Ground Floor BBREL Commercial 472 Long
No. 6 Cannon Road SR [SES R
Causeway Bay T
Hong Kong
Sixth Floor B Industrial 8,608  Medium
Nos. 650-652 el I¥ T E
Castle Peak Road, and 650-652%% ' 612 %
No. 18A Wing Hong Street KEE 18A
Kowloon
Second Floor =3 Industrial 2,981 Medium
Nos. 790, 792 and 794 RpiEE T¥ ]
Cheung Sha Wan Road 790%% ~ 79257 ) 794 %%
Kowloon 21
Unit B on First Floor NEESILE6465 » 6485  Industrial 1,910  Medium
Fung Wah Factory Building KB4BATREET XAE T% i Hf
Nos. 646, 648, 648A —1BEB
Castle Peak Road,
Kowloon
Roof NEXKEE205%KE Industrial 2910  Medium
No. 20 Wing Hong Street T¥ HH
Kowloon
Fifth Floor NBEKEE20%AE Industrial 3,402  Medium
No. 20 Wing Hong Street I% el
Kowloon
House 9, Villa Castell HANBERE20% Residential 1,599  Medium
No. 20 Yau King Lane MBRLFIFFE F=x HH
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Summary of Properties

e 2

At 31 March 2019 20194 3 A 31 H

A.

10.

11.

12.

13.

Location

Units 1 and 2 on Seventh Floor
Block D and Car Parking Space
No. 46 on Lower Ground Floor

Shatin Heights

No. 8003 Tai Po Road

Shatin

Kowloon

Third Floor
No. 161 Wong Nai Chung Road
Hong Kong

Easy Tower, No. 609
Tai Nan West Street
Cheung Sha Wan
Kowloon

Office Unit Nos. 01, 02, 03, 05,
06, 07, 08 and 09 on Twelfth
Floor and Car Parking Space
Nos. 329, 330 and 331 on
Third Floor, Capital Centre

No. 151 Gloucester Road

Wan Chai

Hong Kong

15 Ardmore Park #04-03
Singapore 259959

15 Ardmore Park # 06-04
Singapore 259959

15 Ardmore Park #18-02
Singapore 259959

An industrial complex located at
No. 108 of Dongliang Road,

Zhili Town, Wuxing District,
Huzhou City, Zhejiang Province
of the People’s Republic of China
with a total of sixteen building
blocks being built and four

building blocks under construction

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

ik

AW A AREARK 80035
YWRIEE D B 1 5
2SR BN MR E TN Efz
4657

EREEREI61H 2

NEEDE
KPITIEI 6095
KBRS

EREFELITEIS1R
BARROAR 121/ 01 -
0203050607 "
08 % 09 5k it A B AL AL
318#)329 330 2 3315
B

15 Ardmore Park #04-03
1004 259959

15 Ardmore Park #06-04
1 h0%% 259959

15 Ardmore Park #18-02
#1003 259959

—TEFRLEFE TR
BRMEEZEENMK
ARTEER 2 BEWAL
RAPBHNT A

WM TR A B R
TR 108 57

Purpose

R

Residential
F=E

Residential
FE

Industrial/
commercial

I%/m%

Commercial

[GES

Residential
F=E

Residential
F=E
Residential

FE

Industrial

I

A, BREYXEGE)

Approximate
gross floor/

saleable/
site area Lease-term
BLEm,/
BR/EERE HOFESH
(sa.ft)
(EAR)
2,086 Medium
HH
781 Medium
H
74,458 Medium
HH
11,316 Medium
HHR
2,885 Freehold
aid)
2,885 Freehold
Eaic)
2,885 Freehold
%M
1,956,558 Medium
i HR
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B. PROPERTIES HELD FOR DEVELOPMENT FOR SALE B. REHEZRRWHE
Approximate
Location il Purpose sitearea  Lease-term Stage of completion
it} BAERAEE HOFH  TRER
(sq.ft.)
(FAR)
1. Unit A1, A2, B, B2, C2 NEEILIE646 Industrial 9,206  Medium For redevelopment
and D on Ground Floor, 648 + B48A%E I% e fEER
Unit A, B, C, D on First Floor, CETEAE
Unit A, B, C on Second Floor, WTRAT A2 Bl B2
Unit A, B, C, D on Third Floor, C2 R DEfI
Unit A, B, C, D on Fourth Floor, —#A B CDEfL
Unit B, C, D on Fifth Floor, ZBA B CEBf-
Unit A, B, C, D with Roof on =#A B CDEfI
Sixth Floor WA B C DEfI
Fung Wah Factorial Building Ti#EB - C DEfi-
Nos. 646, 648, 648A SNEA B C- DEfL
Castle Peak Road EXR
Kowloon
2. Portion A and Portion B of NEERDEEME 1215 Industrial 5483  Medium For redevelopment
Car Park on Ground Floor, KEIRAEM TEAIA I% ] feEs
Flat A and B on First Floor, BARBED  —EAKB
Flat A and B on Second Floor, B —BAKBEN =
Flat A and B on Third Floor, ARBEf - MIEA  BEfL
Flat A and B on Fourth Floor & LREETE  AEARBENMN
Flat Roof, Flat A and B on NEARBE - HIEAKRB
Fifth Floor, Flat A and B on B NEARBEM
Sixth Floor, Flat A and B on VA BEUKKE

Seventh Floor, Flat A and B on
Eighth Floor, Flat A and B on
Ninth Floor & Roof

Wing Cheong Factory Building
No. 121 King Lam Street

Cheung Sha Wan
Kowloon
3. Nos. 11, 13and 15 ERREEMLEE11 13 Commercial 2,857  Long Under development
Matheson Street R15% [EES K& BREH
Causeway Bay
Hong Kong
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